# DANISH LEGAL PUBLICATIONS IN ENGLISH, FRENCH AND GERMAN

A LIST COMPILED BY

# JENS SØNDERGAARD

Librarian, Royal Library, Copenhagen

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Intro	duction	171
1.		173
	0	173
		174
	C. In German $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$	176
11.	LAW IN GENERAL (INCL. BIOGRAPHY AND BIBLIOGRAPHY)	179
ш.	SCANDINAVIAN COOPERATION	182
		182
		184
IV.		185
		0
v.		187
		187
		189
	C. Other legal history	190
VI.	PRIVATE LAW	191
	A. Private law in general	191
	2010 at 20	192
	1. Law of persons	192
		192
		193
		195
		196
		196
		196
		197
	A STATE AND AND AND A STATE AN	198
	G	199
		200
		200
		201
		202
		202
		203
		204
		205
		205
		205
		207
	I. Restraint of trade and unfair competition	207

VII.	CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PROCEDURE, ARBITRATION AND	
	BANKRUPTCY	209
	A. Procedure in general	
	B. Civil procedure	
	1. In general	
	2. Arbitration	
	3. Bankruptcy	
	C. Criminal procedure	212
nerstereter		
VIII.	CRIMINAL LAW, TREATMENT OF OFFENDERS AND	
	CRIMINOLOGY	
	A. Criminal law in general	213
	B. Treatment of offenders. Penology	216
	C. Criminology	22 I
IX.	PUBLIC LAW	223
	A. Public law in general	
	B. Constitutional law	225
	1. In general	
		225
	2. Law of citizenship	226
	3. The Schleswig question	227
	4. The Faroe Islands	230
	C. Administrative law	230
	1. General and miscellaneous works	230
	2. Social welfare	233
	3. Sterilization and castration	234
	4. The Parliamentary Commissioner or Ombudsman	235
	D. Taxation	237
ų		57
x.	PUBLIC INTERNATIONAL LAW	238
	A. General and miscellaneous works	238
	B. Works on special subjects	
	I. Law of the sea, territorial waters, straits, fishery	243
	2. United Nations and other international organizations	
		245
	3. Neutrality	247
	4. Denmark-Germany during the Second World War	247
	5. The West Indies	248
	6. The Danish-Norwegian Greenland dispute	248
XI.	PRIVATE INTERNATIONAL LAW AND INTERNATIONAL LAW	
	OF PROCEDURE	251
	A. Private international law	251
	B. International law of procedure	253
XII.	FOREIGN AND COMPARATIVE LAW	253
AUTI	HOR INDEX	255

## INTRODUCTION

HIS bibliography deals mainly with publications on Danish law in English, German, and French by Danish as well as foreign authors. For national Danish bibliographical reasons, however, works by Danish authors on foreign legal history, jurisprudence, public international law, foreign and comparative law have been included.

The bibliography lists monographs, articles in periodicals, summaries of works in Danish, and selected reviews of works in Danish. A few mimeographed texts have been included.

Texts of treaties have as a rule been omitted. Such texts can usually be found in one of the main languages in Danish collections of treaties or in League of Nations treaty series and United Nations treaty series.

It may be stated—with due reservation—that the present list covers the period from 1920 to the end of 1962. Danish law changes quickly, especially because of the great activity of the legislators. In this way much material has become obsolete and such material has been omitted even if it relates to the period after 1920. On the other hand, some material concerning the period before 1920, especially in the field of legal history, has been included.

Material on Danish law in the principal languages is rather scarce and moreover difficult to trace. The present list aims at giving research workers from other countries better facilities for studying Danish law. The collection and compilation of material began about five years ago.

During the last decade there has been a growing activity in the Scandinavian countries with the purpose of making Scandinavian law better known. In this connection I may mention-besides Scandinavian Studies in Law-a recently published bibliography: Scandinavian Legal Bibliography. Prepared by Stig Juul, Ake Malmström and Jens Søndergaard. Uppsala 1961. 196 p. (Acta Instituti Upsaliensis Jurisprudentiae Comparativae. 4). This bibliography contains an introductory survey of the law and legal literature of the five Nordic countries followed by a systematic survey of the most important legal publications with a translation of the titles into English.

A detailed account of Danish law in one of the principal languages is still lacking, but in 1963 the Danish Committee of Comparative Law published a book in English, written by a number of Danish and Norwegian lawyers under the editorship of N. V. Boeg: *Danish and Norwegian law. A general survey*. Copenhagen 1963. 251 p.

The Nordic Council has discussed the publishing of a "Yearbook of Scandinavian law", giving a survey of developments in the field of law, but up to the time of writing no decision has been taken.

The present bibliography to a considerable degree follows the pattern of corresponding Finnish and Swedish bibliographies, viz.: (a) Veikko Reinikainen: English, French and German literature on Finnish law in 1860–1956. Helsinki 1957. 179 p. (Library of Parliament publications. 2).

(b) "Swedish Legal Publications in English, French and German 1935–1960. A list compiled by Lars Frykholm assisted by Tryggve Byström." Published in Scandinavian Studies in Law 1961, pp. 155–217.

The system of classification is that of *Scandinavian Legal Bibliography* and "Swedish Legal Publications" with such modifications as are necessitated by the material.

Within each group the material has been listed in alphabetical order according to names of authors.

The location of articles in periodicals has been indicated in the same way as in the corresponding Finnish bibliography, i.e. by means of a stroke between the article and the periodical.

It need hardly be mentioned that the present list is incomplete. It has been compiled from material in the Royal Library of Copenhagen and other research libraries in Copenhagen. Only in a few cases has material not examined by the compiler been included. Undoubtedly a visit to the large libraries of Germany, France, England, and the United States would produce much supplementary material. Such material may be included in a later, revised edition or in a supplement. Any information that foreign readers may care to give will be highly appreciated.

> JENS SØNDERGAARD Librarian, Royal Library Copenhagen

## I. TEXTS OF STATUTES

## A. LEGISLATIVE TEXTS IN ENGLISH

- Act No. 203 of 11 June 1954 on the Parliamentary Commissioner for civil and military administration. Stephan Hurwitz: The Ombudsman. Det danske Selskab, Copenhagen, 1961, 47–53. Journal of the International Commission of Jurists, 1958, 234–43. Public law, 1958, 245–53. Political science, Wellington, 1960, 135–42. [1]
- Act respecting invalidity and national pensions. No. 238. Dated 10 June 1960. – International Labour Office. Legislative series, 1960, Denmark 2. 28 p. [2
- Apprenticeship Act No. 261. Dated 20 October 1956. International Labour Office. Legislative series, 37: 1956, Denmark 2, 1–26. [3]
- Citizenship Act No. 252 of 27 May 1950. Laws concerning nationality. United Nations, New York 1955 (United Nations legislative series), 121-5. [4
- Constitution of Denmark. Amos J. Peaslee: Constitutions of nations. 2nd ed. Vol. 1. The Hague 1956, 730–46. [5
- The Constitution of the Kingdom of Denmark Act 5th June 1953 and the Succession to the Throne Act 27th March 1953. Publ. by the Bureau of the "Folketing". Copenhagen 1950. 12 p.
- The Constitutional Act. Denmark. Publ. by The Royal Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Copenhagen 1961, 119-29. [7
- The Danish Companies Act No. 123 of 15th April 1930 as amended. J. H. Schultz, Copenhagen 1951. 31 p. [8]
- The Danish Contracts of Insurance Act 1930. Rendered in English by K. Lundberg. Copenhagen 1931. 53 p. [9
- The Danish Criminal Code. With an introduction by Knud Waaben. Publ. by the Danish Committee on Comparative Law. Copenhagen 1958. 118 p. [10
- The Danish Patent Act. Consolidation order of 19th December 1958. Transl. publ. by The Comptroller of Patents. Copenhagen 1959. 10 p.
- The Danish Registration Act ("Tinglysningsloven") No. 111 of 31 March 1926. – Fr. Vinding Kruse: The right of property. Vol. 2. London 1953, 299–317.
- Hurwitz, Stephan: The Danish parliamentary commissioner for civil and military government administration. – Public law, 1958, 236–53 (text of the statute 245–53). – Journal of the International Commission of Jurists, 1958, 224–43 (text of the statute 234–43). – Journal der Internationalen Juristenkommission, 1958, 242–62 (text of the statute 253–62). [13]
- Hurwitz, Stephan: The Scandinavian Ombudsman. Political science, Wellington, 1960, 121-42 (text of the statute 135-42). [14

- Hurwitz, Stephan: Denmark's Ombudsmand. The Danish parliamentary commissioner for civil and military government administration. – Wisconsin law review, 1961, 169–99 (text of the statute 194–9). [15
- The Merchant Shipping (Masters' and Seamen's) Act No. 229 of 7th June 1952. J. H. Schultz, Copenhagen. 21 p. [16]
- The Merchant Shipping (Construction and equipment etc. of ships) Order of 15th November 1952. Copenhagen 1956. 150 p. [17]
- Ministry of Social Affairs Notification, No. 142 of the Industrial Injuries Insurance Act. Dated 8 May 1959. Ministry of Social Affairs, Copenhagen. 40 p. (Mim.) [18]
- The Monopolies and Restrictive Practices Control Act No. 102 of 31 March 1955 and ministerial order No. 193 of 18 June 1955 concerning registration of notification under the Monopolies Act. – Guide to legislation on restrictive business practices. Vol. 1. O.E.E.C., Paris 1960.
- The Monopolies and Restrictive Practices Control Act No. 102 of 31st March 1955. — International conference on control of restrictive business practices. University of Chicago 1960, 251-7. [20]
- Notification of the National Insurance Act No. 228. Dated 12 September 1957. – International Labour Office. Legislative series, 38: 1957, Denmark 1, 1–62.
- Order No. 258 promulgating the Act on the establishment of a credit institute for the fisheries industry. – Food and agricultural legislation, 9: 1960, No. 2, 1-7. [22
- Public Libraries Act of May 27, 1950 with amendments of May 25, 1956 and March 21, 1959. Published by Statens Bibliotekstilsyn. Dansk Bibliografisk Kontor, Copenhagen 1961. 9 p. [23]
- Rehabilition Act. No. 170 Dated 29 April 1960. International Labour Office. Legislative series, 1960, Denmark 1. 12 p. [24
- Seaman's Act No. 229. Dated 7 June 1953. International Labour Office. Legislative series, 33: 1952, Denmark 1, 1–23. [25]

## B. LEGISLATIVE TEXTS IN FRENCH

- Code pénal danois. Trad. établie par M. Richaume-Lambert avec le concours et les conseils de N. V. Boeg. Nouvelle collection du comité de législation étrangère et de droit international. Les codes pénaux européens. Tome 1. Paris 1955, 325-86. [26]
- Code pénal danois du 15 Avril 1930 entré en vigeur le 1. Janvier 1933. Trad. sous la direction de August Goll par Magda Schroll et Jean Adigard des Gautries. Paris 1935. 104 p. (Association Internationale de Droit pénal. Collection des lois pénales étrangères 2.) [27
- Constitution du Royaume de Danemark du 5 juin 1953 et Loi de succession au trône du 27 mars 1953. J. H. Schultz, Copenhagen 1953. 12 p. [28]

- Constitution du Royaume de Danemark du 5 juin 1953 et Loi de succession au trône du 27 mars 1953. – Revue du droit public et de la science politique, 60: 1954, 77-85. [29]
- Goll, August; Danemark. Rapport concernant la loi du 11 mai 1935 sur l'application de la stérilisation et de la castration. — Recueil de documents en matière pénale et pénitentiaire, 5: 1935, 6-11 (text of the statute, 7-11). [30]
- Loi du 1 mars 1889 sur les registres du commerce, raisons de commerce et procuras. Traduit par P. Dareste. — Annuaire de législation étrangère. Lois votées en 1889. Année 19. Paris 1890, 723-31. [31
- Loi du 6 avril 1906 sur la vente. Traduit par P. Dareste. Annuaire de législation étrangère. 2. série, 6. année. Paris 1907, 475-90. [32]
- Loi (Nr. 242) du 8 mai 1917 sur les accords et autres transactions en matière de droit des biens. Annuaire de législations étrangère publiée par la Société de Législation Comparée. Lois votées en 1916 et 1917. 2. série. Année 15. Paris 1917–18, 327–9. [33]
- Loi no 536 du 4 octobre 1919 sur le tribunal permanent d'arbitrage. Annuaire de législation étrangère. 2. série. Année 17. Paris 1920, 238-44. [34
- La loi du 11 mai 1935 sur l'application de la stérilisation et de la castration. Recueil de documents en matière pénale et pénitentiaire, 5: 1935, 7-11.
- Loi codifiée sur les dessins ou modèles industriels (de 1905/1936). La propriété industrielle, 52: 1936, 215-18 (No. 193 of September 1, 1936). [36]
- Loi contre la concurrence déloyale et les désignations illicites de produits (Du 31 mars 1937). — La propriété industrielle, 54: 1938, 97-100. (See now No. 145 of May 1, 1959.) [37]
- Loi no 264 du 27 mai 1950 relative aux bibliothèques publiques du Danemark, modifiée par la loi no 132 du 25 mai 1956 et par la loi no 87 du 21 mars 1959. Publié par Statens Bibliotekstilsyn. Dansk Bibliografisk Kontor. Copenhagen 1961. 10 p. [38]
- Loi sur les gens de mer (no 229 du 7 juin 1952). J. H. Schultz, Copenhagen. 21 p. [39
- Loi concernant les inventions d'employés (no 142 du 29 avril 1955). – La propriété industrielle, 72: 1956, 196-7. 4º. [40
- Loi sur les marques de fabrique ou de commerce (no 211 du 11 juin 1959). – La propriété industrielle, 76: 1960, 61-7. 4°. [41
- Loi sur les marques collectives (no 212 du 11 juin 1959). La propriété industrielle, 76: 1960, 67-8. 4°. [42
- Loi sur le droit d'images photographiques (no 157 du 31 mai 1961). Le droit d'auteur. Revue du Bureau de l'Union internationale pour la protection des œuvres littéraires et artistiques, 74: 1961, 293-5.
- Loi relative au droit d'auteur sur les œuvres littéraires et artistiques

43

(no 158 du 31 mai 1961). – Le droit d'auteur. Revue du Bureau de l'Union internationale pour la protection des œuvres littéraires et artistiques, 74: 1961, 295-301. [44

## C. LEGISLATIVE TEXTS IN GERMAN

- Adoptionsgesetz vom 25. Mai 1956. Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 22: 1957, 512-24. [45
- Adoptionsgesetz vom 25. Mai 1956. Bergmann, A.: Internationales Ehe- und Kindschaftsrecht. 3. Aufl. Bd. 1. Frankf. a. M. 1952 ff. (Looseleaf. Dänemark, 25–8.) [46]
- Bankgesetz (Nr. 122) vom 15. April 1930. Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht 4: 1930, 693–703. (Transl. by Curt Menzel. See now Act No. 169 of June 15, 1956.) [47]
- Dänisches Gesetz über die Eingehung und Auflösung der Ehe vom 30. Juni 1922. – Alexander Bergmann: Internationales Ehe- und Kindschaftsrecht. Bd. 2. Berlin 1926, 54–73. – 2. Aufl. Bd. 1. 1938, 85–99. [48]
- Dänisches Gesetz über das Erbrecht der Ehegatten und die Fortsetzung der Gütergemeinschaft Nr. 120 vom 20. April 1926. Übers. von Curt Menzel. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 1: 1927, 879–82. [49]
- Gesetz betreffend Vermittlung bei Arbeitsstreitigkeiten vom 18. Januar 1934. – Hans Joachim Seeler: Der Arbeitskampf in der deutschen und ausländischen Gesetzgebung. Frankf. a. M. 1958, 77–80. (Forschungsstelle für Völkerrecht und ausländisches öffentliches Recht der Universität Hamburg. Dokumente. Bd. 28.) [50
- Gesetz vom 25. März 1872 über den Konkurs sowie über einige Abänderungen der geltenden Bestimmungen über Pfand- und Zwangsvollstreckung. – Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa 1. Skandinavien. Dänemark. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906, 149-79. (In Danish and German.) [51
- Gesetz vom 12. April 1892 über die Errichtung von Seegerichten ausserhalb Kopenhagens sowie über Seeverklarung und Seeverhör. – Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa 1. Skandinavien. Nordisches Wechsel- und Seerecht. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906, 189–92 (Danish and German text). [52
- Gesetz vom 14. April 1905 über Zwangsvergleich ausserhalb des Konkurses und über Erweiterung der Zulässigkeit des Zwangsvergleichs während des Konkurses. – Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa. 1. Skandinavien. Dänemark. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906, 180-89 (Danish and German text). [53]
- Gesetz vom 14. April 1905 über den Zwangsvergleich ausserhalb des Konkurses und über Erweiterung der Zulässigkeit des Zwangsvergleiches während des Konkurses. – M. Harnik: Der gerichtliche Aus-

gleich (Präventivkonkordat) nach den Gesetzen der verschiedenen Staaten Europas. Vienna and Leipzig 1928, 96–108. [54

Gesetz über den Kauf vom 6. April 1906. – Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa. 1. Skandinavien. Dänemark.

- Gesetz über Verträge und andere Rechtsgeschäfte auf vermögensrechtlichem Gebiete vom 8. Mai 1917 (Nr. 242). – Zeitschrift für das gesamte Handelsrecht und Konkursrecht, 81: 1918, 220-32. [56]
- Gesetz über die Eingehung und Auflösung der Ehe vom 30.6.1922 in der Fassung der Novellen vom 15.3.1939. – Bergmann, A.: Internationales Ehe- und Kindschaftsrecht. 3. Aufl. Bd. 1. Frankf. a. M. 1952 ff. (Looseleaf. Dänemark, 11-22). [57]
- Gesetz über Aktiengesellschaften (Nr. 123) vom 15. April 1930. Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht 4: 1930, 666–92. (Transl. by Curt Menzel. See now Act No. 313 of August 28, 1952.) [58]
- Gesetz über Massnahmen bezüglich geistesschwacher Personen vom 16. Mai 1934. – Juristische Wochenschrift, 64: 1935, 2469-70. [59]
- Gesetz über Genehmigung der Sterilisation und Kastration vom 11. Mai 1935. – Juristische Wochenschrift, 64: 1935, 2470-72. [60
- Gesetz Nr. 176 vom 11. Mai 1935 über die Zulässigkeit der Sterilisation und Kastration. – Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 26: 1935, 544-6.
- Gesetz über Zusatz zum Bürgerlichen Strafgesetz betr. Verrats und anderer landesschädlicher Tätigkeit Nr. 259 vom 1. Juni 1945. – Ernst Siegfried Hansen: Disteln am Wege. Von der Besetzung Dänemarks bis zu Bonner Erklärungen. Bielefeld 1957, 387–95. [62]
- Gesetz über die Selbstverwaltung der Färöer vom 23. März 1948. Zeitschrift für ausländisches öffentliches Recht und Völkerrecht, 20: 1959/60, 264–70. [63
- Das Gesetz Nr. 264 über Volksbüchereien vom 27. Mai 1950 wie durch die Gesetze Nr. 132 vom 25. Mai 1956 und Nr. 87 vom 21. März 1959 abgeändert. Hrsg. von Statens Bibliotekstilsyn. Dansk Bibliografisk Kontor, Copenhagen 1961. 9 p. [64]
- Gesetz Nr. 203 vom 11. Juni 1954 über den Parlamentskommissar für Zivil- und Militärverwaltung. – Journal der internationalen Juristenkommission, 1958, 253–62. [65
- Hurwitz, Stephan: Die Kontrolle der Verwaltung in Dänemark. Der dänische Parlamentskommissar für Zivil- und Militärverwaltung. – Journal der internationalen Juristenkommission, 1958, 242–62 (text of the statute 253–62). [66]
- Marcus, Franz: Das Staatsangehörigkeitsrecht der nordischen Staaten Dänemark, Norwegen, Schweden, Finland, Island. Bearbeiter für Schweden: Josef Fischler. – Sammlung geltender Staatsangehörigkeitsgesetze. Bd. 8. Frankf. a. M. 1952. 171 p. – Nachtrag. Frankf. a. M. 1955. 22 p.

12-631245 Scand. Stud. in Law VII

<sup>3.</sup> Aufl. Berlin 1906, 100–109 (Danish and German text). [55

- Marcus, Franz: Das dänische Strafgesetzbuch vom 15. April 1930 in der Fassung der Bekanntmachung vom 24. Juni 1939. Nach dem Stande vom 1. April 1953. Walter de Gruyter, Berlin 1953. 75 p. (Sammlung ausserdeutscher Strafgesetzbücher 62.) [68
- Marcus, Franz: Das dänische Monopolgesetz vom 31. März 1955. Zeitschrift für das gesamte Handelsrecht und Konkursrecht, 119: 1956, 73-88. [69]
- Marcus, Franz: Das neue dänische Adoptionsgesetz. Rabels Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 22: 1957, 512-24. [70]
- Marcus, Franz: Das dänische Gesetz über die Aktiengesellschaften. Alfred Metzner Verlag, Frankf. a. M. 1960. 92 p. (Ausländische Aktiengesetze hrsg. von der Gesellschaft für Rechtsvergleichung in Hamburg Bd. 6.) [71
- Menzel, Curt: Das neue dänische Aktiengesellschafts- sowie das neue Bankgesetz. Vorbemerkung und Übersetzung. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 4: 1930, 656–703 (Gesetz über Aktiengesellschaften, 666–92. Bankgesetz, 693–703.) [72
- Skandinavische Staatsangehörigkeitsgesetze. Übers. von Dieter Schneider. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 17: 1952, 100–108 (Dänisches Gesetz Nr. 252 vom 27. Mai 1950, 100–105.) [73]
- Staatsangehörigkeitsgesetz Nr. 252 vom 27. Mai 1950, in Kraft seit 1. Januar 1951. – Bergmann, A.: Internationales Ehe- und Kindschaftsrecht. 3. Aufl. Bd. 1. Frankf. a. M. 1952 ff. (Looseleaf. Dänemark, 2–5).
- Strandungsgesetz vom 10. April 1895. Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs.
   Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa. 1. Skandinavien. Nordisches Wechsel- und Seerecht. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906, 181–6 (Danish and German text). [75
- Thronfolgegesetz vom 27. März 1953. Dänemark. Hrsg. v. dem Kgl. Dänischen Ministerium des Äusseren, Copenhagen 1962, 130. [76
- Das Tinglysningsgesetz (Gesetz Nr. 111 vom 31. März 1926). Fr. Vinding Kruse: Das Eigentumsrecht. Bd. 2. Berlin 1935, 1673–1702 (Anordnung Nr. 298 vom 26. November 1926 betreffs Tinglysning, 1703– 34). [77
- Veiter, Theodor: Die Autonomie der Färöer. Zeitschrift für ausländisches öffentliches Recht und Völkerrecht 20: 1959/60, 243-64 mit Gesetz über die Selbstverwaltung der Färöer vom 23. März 1948, 264-70. [78]
- Verfassung des Königreichs Dänemark. Dänemark. Hrsg. v. dem Kgl. Dänischen Ministerium des Äusseren, Copenhagen 1962, 121–130. [79
- Warenzeichengesetz Nr. 211 vom 11. Juni 1959. Gewerblicher Rechtsschutz und Urheberrecht. Auslands- und internationaler Teil, 1960, 300-303. 4° [80

## II. LAW IN GENERAL

#### (INCL. BIOGRAPHY AND BIBLIOGRAPHY)

- Beauchet, L.: Bulletin de la jurisprudence danoise. Journal du droit international privé (Clunet) 30: 1903, 650–51. 32: 1905, 1097–1100. 34: 1907, 1177–82. 35: 1908, 1233–9. 36: 1909, 1184–7. 37: 1909, 1296–1300. [81]
- Boeg, N. V.: International Law Association's 44th conference (in Copenhagen 1950). – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 20: 1950, 73-7. [82
- Boeg, N. V.: Législation danoise. Revue de droit international et de droit comparé, 31: 1954, 201-203. 32: 1955, 129-33. 33: 1956, 202-204. 34: 1957, 213-15.
- Boeg, N. V.: The International Law Association. Its objects and work. – Liber amicorum of congratulations to Algot Bagge. Stockholm 1956, 10–15. [84
- Bruun, Viggo and Bruun, Dybvad: Denmark law digest. Martindale-Hubbell law directory. Vol. 4. New Jersey 1963, 2599–2603. (The digest was for many years made by V. Falbe-Hansen. Annual revised ed.)

Dahl, Frantz: Anders Sandøe Ørsted as a jurist. Copenhagen 1932. 47 p. [86

Dahl, Frantz: L'œuvre juridique da A. S. Ørsted. Copenhagen 1934. 48 p. [87

- Dahl, Frantz: Geschichte der dänischen Rechtswissenschaft in ihren Grundzügen. Übers. v. K. Haff und H. Henningsen. Leipzig 1940. 145 p. (Also in: Archiv für Beiträge zum deutschen, schweizerischen und skandinavischen Privatrechte. Hft. 31. Transl. from the author's article in: Festskrift i Anledning af 200 Aars Dagen for Indførelsen af Juridisk Eksamen ved Københavns Universitet. 1937). Review by Ernst Heymann in Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 13: 1942/43, 274-5.
- Dänemark. Hrsg. vom Kgl. Dänischen Ministerium des Äusseren, Copenhagen 1962. 900 p. (With several articles on legal questions. English edition 1961.) [89
- Le Danemark et le Marché commun. Revue du Marché Commun 1962, 161–8. [90
- Danish and Norwegian law. General survey. Edited by the Danish Committee of Comparative Law, N. V. Boeg chairman. Copenhagen 1963.
  251 p. Written by a number of Danish and Norwegian lawyers: Stig Juul, Carsten Smith, W. E. von Eyben, Allan Philip, C. J. Arnholm, N. Kjærgaard, Mrs. E. F. Selmer, St. Hurwitz. [91]
- Denmark. Publ. by the Royal Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Copenhagen 1961. 912 p. (Contains some information on Danish law.)

[92

Denmark. Establishing a business in Denmark. – World trade information service. Washington 1959. Part 1. No. 59-76. 8 p. [93

.....

- von Eyben, W. E.: Judicial law making in Scandinavia. The American journal of comparative law, 5: 1956, 112–15. [94
- Fuchs, Wilhelm: Juristische Bücherkunde 1. Darstellender Teil. Göttingen 1953. 506 p. (Dänemark, Norwegen und Schweden, Finland, 200-204). [95
- Goldschmidt, Verner: From unwritten law to modern practice. Danish Foreign Office journal, No. 28, 1958, 16–19. (Also in French in Revue danoise No. 15, 1959, 15–18.) [96]
- Goldschmidt, Verner: Du droit coutumier à la codification. Revue danoise. No. 15, 1959, 15–18. (Also in English in Danish Foreign Office journal. No. 28, 1958, 16–19.) [97
- Haff, Karl: Dänisches Recht. Stier-Salmo, Fritz und Elster, A.: Handwörterbuch der Rechtswissenschaft Bd. 1. Berlin 1926, 896-9. [98
- Hvidt, Valdemar: Dänemark. Franz Schlegelberger u. a.: Rechtsvergleichendes Handwörterbuch für das Zivil- und Handelsrecht des Inund Auslandes. Bd. 1. Berlin 1929, 19–24, 950. [99
- Jacobsen, J. Hartvig: Carl Torp (1855-1929). Yearbook of the Northern associations of criminalists, 1949/50. Stockholm 1950, XIII-XIV. [100
- Klerk, Niels: Législation. Danemark. Revue de droit international et de droit comparé, 27: 1950, 234-7. [101
- Kluger, C. J.: Aus dem dänischen und dem schwedischen Rechtsleben. – Deutsche Richterzeitung, 1961, 320.
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: A Nordic Draft Code. A Draft Code for Denmark, Finland, Iceland, Norway and Sweden. Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1963. 20+412 p. 70 kr. [102 a
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: Frantz Dahl. 25. Oktober 1867-21. Dezember 1937. – Zeitschrift für vergleichende Rechtswissenschaft, 52: 1937/ 38, 259-68.
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: Ein guter dänischer Mann und Wissenschaftler Frantz Dahl. – Der Schleswiger. Flensburg 1940, 3-8. 4° [104

Munch-Petersen, Erwin: Gesetzgebung, Rechtsprechung und Literatur in Dänemark im Jahre 1927. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 2: 1928, 875–903. [105]

- Munch-Petersen, Hans: Main features of Scandinavian law. Law quarterly review, 43: 1927, 366-77. [106]
- Munch-Petersen, Hans: Traits caractéristiques du droit scandinave. Bulletin mensuel de la Société de Législation Comparée, 57: 1928, 145-59.
- Munch-Petersen, Hans: The system of legal education in Denmark. Journal of public teachers of law, 1928, 31-2. [108
- Orfield, Lester B.: A visit to the Scandinavian university law schools. Journal of legal education, 11: 1959, 534-42. [109
- Orfield, Lester B.: Danish law. Miami law quarterly, 5: 1950/51, 1-39, 197-237.

- Orfield, Lester B.: The growth of Scandinavian law. Philadelphia 1953. 363 p. Reviewed by Allan Philip in The American journal of comparative law, 3: 1954, 580-83, and by André Tunc in Revue internationale de droit comparé, 7: 1955, 463-5. [111
- Philip, Allan et Richaume-Lambert: Danemark. Catalogue des sources de documentation juridique dans le monde. 2nd ed. Unesco, Paris 1957, 176-82. (Statutes, legal literature, bibliographies, libraries etc. Also with English title: A register of legal documentation in the world.)
- Philip, Allan: Danish law. Scandinavia. Past and present. Vol. 3. Odense 1959, 108-9.
- Philip, Allan: Denmark. Legal aspects of foreign investment. Ed. by W. G. Friedmann. Boston 1959, 200–208. [114
- Philip, Allan: Législation comparée. Danemark. Juris-Classeurs. Droit comparé. Éditions Techniques, Paris 1961. Vol. 1. 18 p. (Fasc. mobiles). [115
- Platou, O.: États scandinaves (Suède, Norvège, Danemark). Années 1889-91. – Annales de droit commerciales 6: 1892 II, 169-71.

Années 1892–93. – 9: 1895, II, 139–41.

- » 1894–95. 11: 1897, 221–6.
- » 1896–99. 15: 1901, I, 136–9.
- » 1900–1903. 19: 1905, I, 81–4.
- » 1904–1906. 23: 1909, 511–15.
- » 1907–1910. 27: 1913, 127–34.
- Scandinavian legal bibliography prepared by Stig Juul, Åke Malmström and Jens Søndergaard with the collaboration of Kaare Haukaas, Ármann Snævarr and Heikki Jokela. Almqvist & Wiksell, Stockholm 1961. 196 p. (Acta Instituti Upsaliensis Jurisprudentiae comparativae.
  4) Review: F. H. Lawson in International and comparative law quarterly, 1962, 915. René David in Revue internationale de droit comparé, 14: 1962, 476. Peter Riedberg in Archiv für die zivilistische Praxis, 1962, 474-5.
- Scandinavian studies in law. Vol. 1 ff. Almqvist & Wiksell, Stockholm 1957 ff.

Schlegelberger, Franz: Rechtsvergleichendes Handwörterbuch für das Zivil- und Handelsrecht des In- und Auslandes Bd. 1-7. Berlin 1929-40. (In vol. 1 a survey of Danish law, 19-24). [119

Schnitzer, Adolf F.: Vergleichende Rechtslehre. 2. Aufl. Verlag für Recht und Gesellschaft, Basle 1961. 725 p. (Nordische Staaten, 243-7). [120]

Skavang, Nils B.: History and development of Scandinavian law. Some salient traits. – Seminar, 6: 1948, 60–71. [121

Søndergaard, Jens: Legal studies. – Denmark. Publ. by The Royal Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Copenhagen 1961, 665-9. [122

Søndergaard, Jens: Rechtswissenschaftliche Forschung. – Dänemark.

[116

116.

Hrsg. vom Kgl. Dänischen Ministerium des Äusseren, Copenhagen 123 1962, 659-63.

- Systèmes juridiques scandinaves (Danemark, Norvège, Islande, Suède, Finlande). - Traité de droit comparé par P. Arminion, B. Nolde et M. Wolff. Tome 2. Paris 1950, 437-89. 124
- Teisen, Axel: Scandinavia. Bibliography of comparative law. American Bar Association journal, 1: 1915, 160-62, and 2: 1916, 270-75. 125
- Wohlhaupter, Eugen: Das Recht Schleswig-Holsteins und der Norden. - Zeitschrift für Schleswig-Holsteinische Geschichte, 70/71: 1943, 49-[126

## III. SCANDINAVIAN COOPERATION

## A. IN GENERAL

- Bahr, Henrik: The Scandinavian Airlines System (SAS). Its origin, present organization and legal aspects. - Arkiv for Luftrett. Oslo, 1: 1961, 199-253 (SAS Consortium Agreement, 240-53). 1127
- Bloch, Joachim-Dieter: Der Entwurf einer nordischen Konvention über die Vereinheitlichung des Konkursrechts. - Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 7: 1933, 458-67. -[128
- Bloch, Joachim-Dieter: Die nordische Konvention über internationalprivatrechtliche Bestimmungen auf dem Gebiet des Ehe-, Adoptions-, und Vormundschaftsrechts. - Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 8: 1934, 627-37. [120
- de Block, Anton Leo: Skandinavische samenwerking inzake wetgeving. Gouda 1927. 294 p. (Diss., Leiden). 130
- Eek, Hilding: Evolution et structure du droit scandinave. Revue Hellénique de droit international. Athens 1961. 21 p. 131
- Ekeberg, Birger: Die nordische Zusammenarbeit auf dem Gebiete der Gesetzgebung. - Le Nord. Revue internationale des pays du Nord, 1: 1938, 82-91. 132
- Ekeberg, Birger: The Scandinavian cooperation in the field of legislation. - L'unification du droit. Unification of law, 1948, 320-39. (Also in French.) 133
- Entwurf eines gemeinsamen Skandinavischen Patentgesetzes Gewerblicher Rechtsschutz und Urheberrecht. Auslands- und internationaler Teil 1962, 590-615. 133 a
- von Eyben, W. E.: Inter-Nordic legislative cooperation. Scandinavian studies in law 6: 1962, 63-93 (Transl. of the author's article in Tidsskrift for Rettsvitenskap, 1960, 298-322). 134
- Falk, Sara: Memorandum sur les méthodes suivies dans les travaux d'unification de la législation scandinave. - L'unification du droit. Annuaire. Unification of law. Yearbook, 1956, II: 1957, 299-317. [135

- Falk, Sara: La cooperation nordique sur le plan législatif en 1957. L'unification du droit. Annuaire. Unification of law. Yearbook, 1957: 1958, 260–71. (Also in English.) – en 1958. – 1958: 1959, 146–9. [136]
- Holm-Nielsen, Henning: The Scandinavian convention on bankruptcy and arrangements outside bankruptcy. — Journal of comparative legislation and international law, 18: 1936, 262-5. [137]
- Holm-Nielsen, Henning: Die Nordische Konkurs- und Vergleichskonvention. – Konkurs und Treuhandwesen. Berlin 1936, 67-8. [138]
- Jaeger, Ernst: Nordisches Konkursabkommen. Zeitschrift für Zivilprozess, 61: 1937/39, 441-8. [139
- Konkurskonventionen zwischen Dänemark, Finnland, Island, Norwegen und Schweden vom 7. November 1933. – Zeitschrift für Zivilprozess, 61: 1937/39, 449-52. [140
- Larsen, Knud: Die nordische Zusammenarbeit auf dem Gebiete des Staatsangehörigkeitsrechts. – Le Nord. Revue internationale des pays du Nord, 5: 1942, 65-81. [141
- Lindgren, R. E.: International co-operation in Scandinavia. Yearbook of world affairs, 13: 1959, 95-114. [142
- Ljungman, Seve: L'unificazione del diritto privato scandinavico. Rivista trimestriale di diritto e procedura civile, 3: 1949, 912. [143]
- Ljungman, Seve: The unification of Scandinavian law. Lectures on topics of international law and economic development 2. Egyptian Society of International Law, Cairo 1959, 37-43.
- Malmström, Åke: Die Zusammenarbeit der nordischen Staaten auf dem Gebiete der Gesetzgebung. Ergebnisse und Erfahrungen. – Europäische Zusammenarbeit im Rechtswesen. Berichte und Vorschläge. Hrsg. v. Konrad Zweigert. Tübingen 1955, 18-32. [145]
- Matteueci, Mario: The Scandinavian legislative cooperation as a model for a European cooperation. – Liber amicorum of congratulations to Algot Bagge. Stockholm 1956, 136-45. [146]
- Nordic Council. Memorandum concerning the methods of unification of law followed by the member states (Denmark, Finland, Iceland, Norway and Sweden). – L'unification du droit. Annuaire 1956 II: 1957, 291-7. [147]

Nylén, Torsten: Scandinavian cooperation in the field of air legislation. – The journal of air law and commerce, 24: 1957, 36-46. [148]

- Orfield, Lester B.: Uniform Scandinavian laws. American Bar Association journal, 38: 1952, 773-5. [149
- Petrén, Gustaf: Scandinavian cooperation. Annuaire européen. European yearbook, 2: 1956, 60–74. (Summary in French, 74–75.) [150]
- Petrén, Gustaf: Scandinavian cooperation in the field of legislation during 1956. – L'unification du droit. Annuaire. Unification of law. Yearbook 1956: 1957, I, 230–41. (Also in French.) [151]
- Petrén, Gustaf: Memorandum on the problem of method in Nordic legislative cooperation and information regarding the programme for such cooperation, and measures to counteract differences in the inter-

pretation of common legislation. – L'unification du droit. Unification of law, 1960, 209-18.

- Pontoppidan, Niels: A mature experiment: The Scandinavian experience. – American journal of comparative law, 1960, 344-9. [153]
- Sandström, Emil: La coopération scandinave en matière de législation. – L'unification du droit. Unification of law, 4: 1956, 276–81. (Also in English.)
- Strahl, Ivar: Les congrès de juristes nordiques. Revue internationale de droit comparé, 4: 1952, 259-67. [155
- Strahl, Ivar: Scandinavian cooperation in the field of legislation. Scandinavia. Past and present. Vol. 3. Odense 1959, 113-17. [156]
- Strahl, Ivar: The Scandinavian jurists' congresses. Scandinavia. Past and present. Vol. 3. Odense 1959, 118-21. [157
- de Sydow, Gunnar: La coopération scandinave en matière de législation après la deuxième guerre mondiale. – L'unification de droit. Unification of law, 3: 1954, 486-95. (Also in English.) [158]

Topsøe-Jensen, V.: Die nordischen Juristentagungen. – Le Nord. Revue internationale des pays du Nord, 2: 1939, 148–57. [160

Uddgren, Lars: Die nordische Konvention über Erbe, Testament und Nachlassverordnung. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 9: 1935, 266-74. [161

Uddgren, Lars: Die nordische Konvention über Anerkennung und Vollstreckung von Urteilen. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 9: 1935, 513-15. [162

Union Scandinave. – Repertoire de droit international. Suppl. Paris 1934, 431-5. (On the Scandinavian conventions. See also No. 1142.) [163

- Walin, Gösta: La méthode législative dans les pays nordiques. Revue internationale de droit comparé, 8: 1956, 389-95. [164
- Würtemberg, Erik Marks von: Die gemeinsame nordische Cesetzgebung.
   Rabels Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 10: 1936, 705-23.

## B. NORDIC COUNCIL

- Dolan, Paul: The Nordic Council. Western political quarterly, 12: 1959, 511–26. [166
- Herlitz, Nils: Der Nordische Rat. Voraussetzungen, Aufbau, Aufgaben. Bonn 1955. 16 p. [167
- Herlitz, Nils: The Nordic Council. Scandinavia. Past and present. Vol. 3, 1959, 43-8. [168

Nagel, Heinrich: Der Nordische Rat, seine Organe, seine Funktionen und seine juristische Natur. – Jahrbuch für internationales Recht, 6: 1956, 199–214.

The Northern Council. – European yearbook, 1: 1955, 463-67. (Also in French.)

170

3: 1957, 396-401.

4: 1958, 368-73.

- 5: 1959, 596-609.
- Petrén, Gustaf: The Nordic Council. A unique factor in international law. – Acta Scandinavica juris gentium, 29: 1959, 346-62. [171
- Petrén, Gustaf: Der Nordische Rat. Schriftenreihe zur europäischen Integration 1. Düsseldorf 1960, 151-65. [172
- Robertson, A. H.: European institutions. London 1959. (The Nordic Council, 214-19. The statutes of the Nordic Council, 358-60.) [173]
- Simson, Gerhard: Der Nordische Rat. Zeitschrift für ausländisches öffentliches Recht und Völkerrecht, 15: 1953/54, 128-31. [174]
- Sørensen, Max: Le Conseil Nordique. Revue générale de droit international public, 58: 1955, 63-84. [175]
- Das Status des Nordischen Rates. Zeitschrift für ausländisches öffentliches Recht und Völkerrecht, 15: 1953/54, 132-3. [176]
- The Statute of the Northern Council. European yearbook, 1: 1955, 465-7 (also in French). 2: 1959, 596-609 (with rules of procedure). [177
- Wendt, Frantz: The Nordic Council and co-operation in Scandinavia. Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1959. 247 p. (Legislative cooperation, 53– 9. The Nordic Council and legal and administrative problems, 132– 42.)

## IV. JURISPRUDENCE

- Castberg, Frede: Philosophy of law in the Scandinavian countries. -The American journal of comparative law, 4:1955, 388-400. [179]
- Cohn, Georg: Existentialismus und Rechtswissenschaft. Basel 1955. 191 p. Review: Hans Kelsen in The American journal of international law, 1957, 718–19. [180
- Eckhoff, Torstein: Sociology of law in Scandinavia. Scandinavian studies in law. Stockholm, 4: 1960, 29–58. [181
- von Eyben, W. E.: The attitude towards judicial precedent in Danish and Norwegian courts. – Scandinavian studies in law, 3: 1959, 53-86. (Transl. of the author's article in Tidsskrift for Rettsvitenskap, 1954, 484-536.) [182
- von Eyben, W. E.: Judicial law making in Scandinavia. The American journal of comparative law, 5: 1956, 112–15. [183

Geiger, Theodor: Vorstudien zu einer Soziologie des Rechts. Aarhus, Copenhagen 1947. 347 p. 4º (Acta Jutlandica, XIX. 2. 1947). [184

Hart, H. L. A.: Scandinavian realism. – Cambridge law journal, 1959, 233-40. [185

Herlitz, Nils: The critical points of [the] rule [of law] as understood in

<sup>2: 1956, 574-9.</sup> 

the Northern countries. – Annales de la Faculté de droit d'Istanbul, année 8, tome 9, 1959, 139–54. [186

- Herlitz, Nils: Critical points of the rule of law as understood in the Nordic countries. – Civibus et rei publicae. Festskrift till Georg Andrén. Stockholm, 1960, 162–75.
- Holm-Nielsen, Henning: Functional jurisprudence and the law of torts with special reference to Danish law. — Studi in memoria di Aldo Albertini. 3. Padua 1938, 225-32. [188]
- Kelsen, Hans: Eine realistische und die reine Rechtslehre. Bemerkungen zu Alf Ross: On law and justice. – Österreichische Zeitschrift für öffentliches Recht, Bd. 10. N.F. 1959, 1–25. [189]
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: Zur Überwindung des Wertnihilismus in Rechtsphilosophie und Ethik. – Archiv für Rechts- und Sozialphilosophie, 41: 1955, 145–64. [190
- Marshall, Geoffrey: Law in a cold climate. The Scandinavian realism. – Juridical review, 1956, 259–67. [191
- Meyer, Poul: Justice in politics. Legal essays. A tribute to Frede Castberg on the occasion of his 70th birthday 4 July 1963. Universitetsforlaget Oslo 1963, 125-34.
- Orfield, Lester B.: A survey of Scandinavian legal philosophy. Wisconsin law review, 1956, 448-80, 585-624. [192
- Ross, Alf: Theorie der Rechtsquellen. Ein Beitrag zur Theorie des positiven Rechts auf Grundlage dogmenhistorischer Untersuchungen. Leipzig 1929. 14+458 p. 4°. (Phil. diss., Uppsala.) [193
- Ross, Alf: Recht und Wirklichkeit. Juristische Blätter 59. Jahrg. Wien 1930, 245-51, 2°. [194
- Ross, Alf: Kritik der sogenannten praktischen Erkenntnis. Zugleich Prolegomena zu einer Kritik der Rechtswissenschaft. Copenhagen 1933. 456 p., 4°. [195
- Ross, Alf: Le problème des sources du droit à la lumière d'une théorie réaliste du droit. – Annuaire de l'Institut International de Philosophie du Droit et de Sociologie Juridique. Paris 1934, 167-187. [196]
- Ross, Alf: Towards a realistic jurisprudence. A criticism of the dualism in law. Copenhagen 1946. 304 p. Review by Jerome Hall in Harvard law review, 63: 1949, 18.
- Ross, Alf: Tu-Tu. Scandinavian studies in law. Vol. 1. Stockholm 1957, 137–53. (Transl. of the author's article in: Festskrift til Henry Ussing. Copenhagen 1951, 468–84. Also in Harvard law review, 70: 1956/57, 812–25.) [198
- Ross, Alf: On law and justice. Stevens, London 1958. 11+383 p. (American ed. University of California Press, Berkeley 1959). Review:
  A. H. Campbell in Modern law review, 1959, 703-06. H. L. A. Hart in The Cambridge law journal, 1959, 233-40. Hans Kelsen in Österreichische Zeitschrift für öffentliches Recht, 1959, 1-25. A. K. R. Kiralfy in International and comparative law quarterly, 1960, 163-4. W. L. Morrison in The Yale law journal, 1959/60, 1090-6. [199]

- Ross, Alf: Legal norms and norms of chess. Österreichische Zeitschrift für öffentliches Recht, 10: 1959/60, 477-87. (This article is part of "On law and justice", publ. 1958.) [200
- Ross, Alf: Hacia una ciencia realista del derecho. Critica del dualismo en el derecho. Abeledo-Perrot, Buenos Aires, 1961. 333 p. [201

# V. LEGAL HISTORY

#### A. SCANDINAVIAN LEGAL HISTORY

von Amira, Karl: Nordgermanisches Obligationenrecht Bd. 2. Westnordisches Obligationenrecht. Leipzig 1895. 15+964 p. 202 von Amira, Karl: Germanisches Recht. 4. Aufl. bearb. von K. A. Eckhardt. Bd. 1. Rechtsdenkmäler. Berlin 1960, 88-97. (Grundriss der 203 germanischen Philologie 51.) Aubin, Hermann: Rechtsgeschichtliche Betrachtungen zum Nordseeraum. - Zeitschrift der Savigny Stiftung für Rechtsgeschichte. Ger-204 manische Abteilung, 72: 1955, 1-33. Bergman, C. G.: A Scandinavian review. The literature of legal history 1921-1922. - Revue d'histoire du droit, 6: 1925, 334-43. 205 Blüting, M. Joachim: Vom Erbgangsrecht nach dem jütischen Landrecht. Hrsg. von Hjort-Lorenzen. Copenhagen 1859. 226 p. 206 Code of Christian the Fifth. London 1756. 476 p. 207 Dänische Rechte. Übers. von Claudius von Schwerin. Weimar 1938. 15+ 222 p. (Germanenrechte. Bd. 8. Schriften der Akademie für Deutsches 208 Recht.) Dareste, P.: Les anciennes lois du Danemark. - Journal des Savants, 200 1881, 108-17. Dreyer, Johann Carl Henrich: Beiträge zur Literatur der nordischen Rechtsgelehrsamkeit. Hamburg 1794. 246 p. 210 Frensdorff, Ferdinand: Das Stadtrecht von Ripen in seinem Verhältnis zu dem von Lübeck. – Hansische Geschichtsblätter, 4: 1883, 89-110. 211 Grimm, Jacob: Literatur der altnordischen Gesetze. Zeitschrift für geschichtliche Rechtswissenschaft, 3: 1817, 73-128. 212 Haff, Karl: Die dänischen Gemeinderechte. 1. Teil. Almende und Markgenossenschaft. 2. Teil. Die Feldgemeinschaft. Leipzig 1909. 213+ 213 111 p. Haff, Karl: Elucubratio Blasii Ekenbergers auer dat erste undt ander koning Woldemari Lohbuch anno 1595. 1. Teil. Buch 1. (Erbrecht, Familien- und Sachenrecht. Zugleich ein Beitrag zur Geschichte der Rezeptionsversuche im Norden. Leipzig 1932. 165 p. (Archiv für Beiträge zum deutschen, schweizerischen und skandinavischen Privat-214 rechte. 12. Heft).

- Haff, Karl: Der deutsche Einfluss auf das dänische Recht des Mittelalters. – Zwischen Elbe und Skagerrak. Hrsg. von Rehder Heinz Carsten. Hamburg 1938, 121–32. (Aus Hansischem Raum. Schriftenreihe der Hansischen Gilde. Bd. 3.) [215]
- Haff, Karl: Die geistige Einwirkung von Hamburg-Bremen auf das heidnische Skandinavien und sein Recht. Hamburg 1939. 24 p. (Hefte der Hansischen Gilde). [216]
- Haff, Karl: Zum Bienenrecht in den schwedischen und dänischen Landschaftsgesetzen. – Zeitschrift der Savigny Stiftung für Rechtsgeschichte. Germanistische Abt., 60: 1940, 253-7.
- Haff, Karl: Beiträge zur Hamburger und Skandinavischen Rechtsgeschichte. Beilage zur Vorlesung über Deutsche Rechtsgeschichte. Universität Hamburg 1947. 28 p. [218
- Hasse, P.: Die Quellen des Ripener Stadtrechts. Untersuchungen zur dänischen und lübschen Rechtsgeschichte. Hamburg 1883. 85 p. (Der Text des Stadtrechts, 76-85.) [219
- Hasse, P.: Dänenrecht und Fremdenrecht in Dänemark zur Zeit Waldemar II. Vortrag. Kiel 1883. 15 p. [220
- Kean, A. W. G.: Early Danish criminal law. Journal of comparative legislation and international law, 19: 1937, 253-9. [221
- Kurze Geschichte der dänischen und norwegischen Gesetzgebung. Materialien zur Statistik der dänischen Staaten. Bd. 3. Flensburg and Leipzig 1791, 382-496. [222
- Le Bras, G.: Manuscrits scandinaves des droits savants. Revue historique de droit français et étranger, 32: 1954, 563-5. [223]
- Lehmann, Heinz: Die deutsche Kanzlei zu Kopenhagen als Vorkämpferin für den Absolutismus in Dänemark und als Verwaltungszweig innerhalb des dänischen Verwaltungssystems bis 1676. Hamburg 1936. 59 p. (Diss.) [224
- Lehmann, Karl: Verlobung und Hochzeit nach den nordgermanischen Rechten des früheren Mittelalters. München 1882. 134 p. [225]
- Lehmann, Karl: Verzeichnis der Literatur der nordgermanischen Rechtsgeschichte. – Zeitschrift der Savigny-Stiftung für Rechtsgeschichte. Germanistische Abteilung, 7: 1887, 205-34.
- Nachtrag, 8: 1888, 170-3.

- 1887-1888. 10: 1889, 246-8.

- Maurer, Konrad: Das älteste Hofrecht des Nordens. München 1877. 164 p. [227
- Maurer, Konrad: Das angebliche Vorkommen des Gesetzsprecheramtes in Dänemark. – Sitzungsberichte der Königl. bayerische Akademie der Wissenschaften. Philos. – philol. Classe 1887, II, 363-99. [228]
- Maurer, Konrad: Überblick über die Geschichte der Nordgermanischen Rechtsquellen. – Franz von Holtzendorff: Encyclopädie der Rechtswissenschaft. 4. Aufl. Bd. 1. Leipzig 1882, 319-358. (Die Geschichte der dänischen Rechtsquellen, 349-58.) [229]

[226

- Merschberger, Gerda: Die Rechtsstellung der germanischen Frau. Leipzig 1938. 197 p. (Mannus-Bücherei 57.) [230
- de Montmorency, J. E. G.: Danish influence on English law and character. – Law quarterly review, 40: 1924, 324-43. [231
- Müller, G. C.: Über die germanische Bürgschaft mit besonderer Rücksicht auf das jütsche Low. – Zeitschrift für deutsches Recht, 1: 1839, 321-50. [232
- Pappenheim, Max: Die Entstehung der altdänischen Schutzgilden. Breslau 1884. 69 p. (Diss.) [233
- Pappenheim, Max: Die altdänischen Schutzgilden. Ein Beitrag zur Rechtsgeschichte der germanischen Genossenschaft. Breslau 1885. 516 p. [234
- Pauls, Volquart: Die Apenrader Skraa vom 1. Mai 1335. Heimatblätter aus Nordschleswig, 1936, 147–50. [235]
- Paulsen, P. D. C.: Über das Studium des nordischen Rechts im Allgemeinen und des dänischen Rechts insbesondere. Kiel 1826. 51 p. [236]
- Paulsen, P. D. C.: Beitrag zu der Lehre von der Bürgschaft aus dem nordischen Rechte. – Zeitschrift für deutsches Recht, 4: 1840, 124– 47.
- Schultze, Alfred: Die Rechtslage des alternden Bauern nach den altnordischen Rechten. – Zeitschrift der Savigny Stiftung für Rechtsgeschichte. Germanistische Abt, 51: 1931, 258-317 (Das altdänische Recht, 261-76). [238]
- v. See, Klaus: Das Jütische Recht. Aus dem Altdänischen übersetz und erläutert. Hermann Böhlaus Nachfolger, Weimar 1960. 216 p. [239
- Stein, L.: Geschichte des dänischen Civilprocesses und das heutige Verfahren. Kiel 1841. 228 p. [240
- Stemann, C. L. E. von: Das Güterrecht der Ehegatten im Gebiete des Jütschen Lovs. Copenhagen 1857. 9+212 p. [241
- Wolgast, Ernst: Lex Regia. Das dänische und das deutsche Staatsführungsgesetz 1665–1934. Würzburg 1935. 75 p. (Text of Lex Regia of Nov. 14, 1665, 44–54). [242
- Yver, J.: L'égalité entre heritiers en Normandie et dans les coutumiers scandinaves. Revue historique de droit francais et étranger, 1962, 495-6.

## B. ROMAN LAW

Westrup, C. W.: Quelques observations sur les origines du mariage par "usus" et du mariage sans "manus" dans l'ancien droit romain. Paris 1926. 49 p. [244]

Westrup, C. W.: On the antiquarian-historiographical activities of the Roman Pontifical College. – Det kgl. danske Videnskabernes Selskab. Historisk-filologiske Meddelelser, XVI. 3, Copenhagen 1929. 49 p.

245

- Westrup, C. W.: Notes sur Cujas. Studi in onore di P. Bonfante. 3. Milan 1930, 131-49. [246]
- Westrup, C. W.: Introduction to early Roman law. Comparative sociological studies. The patriarchal joint family. Part 1. The house community. Section 1. Community of cult. 1944. 280 p. Sect. 2. Community of property. Joint family and family property. 1934. 196 p. Part 2. Patria potestas. 1. The nascent law. 1939. 310 p. Part 3. Sources and methods. Book 1. Primary sources. 1950. 214 p. Book 2. The ancient Roman tradition. 1954. 152 p. [247]
- Westrup, C. W.: Family property and patria potestas. Copenhagen 1936. 72 p. 4°. [248
- Westrup, C. W.: Alcune osservazioni circa le fonti e i metodi nell' investigazione del primo diritto romano. – Rivista internazionale di filosofia del diritto. Rome, 17: 1937, 393-410. [249]
- Westrup, C. W.: La propriété familiale. Principes fondamentaux et lignes de son évolution. – Recueil d'études en l'honneur d'Edouard Lambert. I. Recueil Sirey, Paris 1938, 163-72. [250
- Westrup, C. W.: Recherches sur les formes antiques de mariage dans l'ancien droit romain. – Det kgl. danske Videnskabernes Selskab. Historisk-filologiske Meddelelser. Bd. 30. Nr. 1. Copenhagen 1943. 86 p. [251]
- Westrup, C. W.: Notes sur la sponsio et le nexum dans l'ancien droit romain. Le nouveau fragment des Institutes de Gaius. – Det kgl. danske Videnskabernes Selskab. Historisk-filologiske Meddelelser. Bd. 31. Nr. 2. Copenhagen 1947. 28 p. [252
- Westrup, C. W.: Sur la royauté primitive de Rome. Archives d'histoire du droit oriental, 4: 1949, 85-116. [253
- Westrup, C. W.: Sur les Gentes et les Curiae de la royauté primitive de Rome. – Revue internationale des droits de l'Antiquité, 1954, 435-73. [254]

#### C. OTHER LEGAL HISTORY

- Ekman, Ernst: The Danish Royal Law of 1665. Journal of modern history, 29: 1957, 102–107. [255]
  - Frisch, Hartvig: The constitution of the Athenians. A philologicalhistorical analysis of pseudo Xenofon's treatise: De re publica Atheniensium. Copenhagen 1942. 352 p. (Classica et mediaevalia. Dissertationes 2). [256]
  - Frisch, Hartvig: Might and right in Antiquity. Transl. by C. C. Martindale. 1. Copenhagen 1949. 276 p. (Humanitas 2). [257
  - Hammerich, L. L.: Clamor. Eine rechtsgeschichtliche Studie. Det kgl. danske Videnskabernes Selskab. Historisk-filologiske Meddelelser. Bd. 29. Nr. 1. Copenhagen 1941. 206 p. [258]
  - Juul, Stig: Die Inzestregeln in den indoeuropäischen Rechten. Classica et Mediaevalia, 2: 1939, 27-54. [259

- Iuul, Stig: The Danish Supreme Court through 300 years. Scandinavian studies in law, 6: 1962, 163-83. (From the author's article in "Højesteret 1661-1961", vol. 2, 1 ff.)
- Westrup, C. W.: La succession primitive devant l'histoire comparative. Recueil Sirey, Paris 1928. 35 p. (See also: Revue historique de droit français et étranger. 4 série, 6: 1927, 588-9.) [261
- Westrup, C. W.: Über den sogenannten Brautkauf des Altertums. Rechtsvergleichende Studien. – Zeitschrift für vergleichende Rechtswissenschaft, 42: 1927, 47-145. [262
- Westrup, C. W.: Quelques observations sur la notion antique de la fidélité. Paris 1927. 35 p. [263
- Westrup, C. W.: Sur le mode primitif de formation de la coutume. Un essai d'une documentation logique. Revue historique de droit français et étranger, 4 série, 9: 1930, 619-20. [264]
- Westrup, C. W.: Sur la notion du droit et sur le mode primitif de formation du droit positif c'est-à-dire du droit dit coutumier. La revue d'histoire du droit, 11: 1932, 1-18. [265]
- Westrup, C. W.: Quelques remarques sur la propriété primitive devant l'histoire comparative. – Revue historique de droit français et étranger, 4 série, 12: 1933, 223-40. [266]
- Westrup, C. W.: Joint family and family property in early law. A comparative study. – Studi in memoria di Aldo Albertoni. 1. Padua 1934, 143-78.
- Westrup, C. W.: A near-kin within the kin. A comparative study. Det kgl. danske Videnskabernes Selskab. Historisk-filologiske Meddelelser. Bd. 33. Nr. 4. Copenhagen 1952. 26 p. [268]

#### VI. PRIVATE LAW

### A. PRIVATE LAW IN GENERAL

- Gomard, Bernhard: Droit privé. Annuaire de législation étrangère. 3: 1952/54, 137-40. 4: 1955, 58-60. 5: 1956, 36-41. 6: 1957, 170-74. 7: 1958, 53-5. 8: 1959, 132-8. 9: 1960, 127-32. [269
- Günther, Kurt: Das Privatrecht in Dänemark. Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 13: 1940/42, 122-43. [270
- Haulrig, Kurt et Lando, Ole: Droit privé. Annuaire de législation étrangère.

1: 1938/49, 211-18. 2: 1950/51, 201-06. [271

Lehr, Ernest, avec la collaboration de H. Munch-Petersen, Kristen Johanssen, Elsa Eschelsson: Éléments de droit civil scandinave (Danemark, Norvège, Suède). Paris 1901. 416 p. [272]

Marcus, Franz: Dänische Gesetzgebung auf dem Gebiete des Privatrechts

- Dänisches Gesetz über das Erbrecht der Ehegatten und die Fortsetzung der Gütergemeinschaft Nr. 120 vom 20. April 1926. Übers. von Curt Menzel. – Zeitschrift ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 1: 1927, 879-82. [298]
- Faurholt, Johannes and Per Federspiel: Recent Danish legislation on the relation of husband and wife. Copenhagen 1927. 16 p. (International Law Association. Danish branch). [299]
- Fritze, Herbert: Die Wirkungen der Ehetrennung und Ehescheidung für Ehegatten und Kinder im modernen skandinavischen Recht. Mannheim 1935. 162 p. (Archiv für Beiträge zum deutschen, schweizerischen und skandinavischen Privatrecht. Hft. 18). [300
- Gaudefray-Demanbynes, G.: Le mariage et le divorce au Danemark. Revue internationale de droit comparé, 4: 1952, 461–78. [301
- Gesetz über die Eingehung und Auflösung der Ehe vom 30.6.1922 in der Fassung der Novellen vom 15.3.1939. – Bergmann, A.: Internationales Ehe- und Kindschaftsrecht. 3. Aufl. Bd. 1. Frankf. a. M. 1952 ff. (Loseblatt. Dänemark, 11-22). [302
- Hamdorf, Franz: Die Feststellung der Vaterschaft nach dänischem, schwedischem und norwegischem Recht. Hamburg 1956. 131 + 15 p. 4°. (Diss. Hamburg, typewritten.) [3°3
- Holm, G. H. et Klahn, C.: Danemark. Divorce et séparation de corps dans le monde contemporain sous la direction de Galriel le Bras. Recueil Sirey, Paris 1952, 85-93. [304]
- Marcus, Franz: Review of Ernst Andersen: Ægteskabsret (Marriage law) 1-2. Copenhagen 1954-56. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 24: 1959, 573-4.
- Marcus, Franz: Das neue dänische Kindergesetz. Rabels Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 26: 1961, 51-63.
  - [306
- Marcus, Franz: Zur Wirksamkeit dänischer Ehefähigkeitszeugnisse. Das Standesamt, 15: 1962, 318–19. [307
- Menzel, Curt: Das neue dänische Ehegüterrecht. Beiträge zur Erläuterung des deutschen Rechts, 68: 1927, 644-9. [308
- Meyers, E. M.: De scandinavische ontwerpen tot regeling van het huwelijksgoederenrecht. – Weekblad voor Privatrecht, Notarisambt en Registratie Nos 2639 en 2641 1920. 25 p. [309]
- Munch, Mogens: Danemark. Le régime matrimonial légal dans les législations contemporaines sous la direction de André Rouast. Paris 1957, 109–13. [310
- Munch-Petersen, Hans: Das Eherecht Dänemarks. Rechtsverfolgung im internationalen Verkehr. Bd. 4. Das Eherecht der europäischen Staaten und ihrer Kolonien. 2. Aufl. Teil 1. Berlin 1937, 721–48.

[311

- Nationality of married women. Rev. ed. United Nations, New York 1954, 35-6 (Danish Nationality Act). [312
- Neugebauer, Ernst Christian: Ehescheidung ohne Verschulden. Die

deutsche Ehescheidungsreform und das ausländische Recht. Bochum 1931. 70 p. (Diss. Bonn) (Schweden, Norwegen und Dänemark, 25-9). [813

- Pappenheim, Max: Nordische Ehegesetzgebung. Festschrift für Fritz Klein. Vienna 1914, 449-59. [314
- Pappenheim, Max: Vereinheitlichung und Reform des nordischen Eherechtes. – Archiv für Rechts- und Wirtschaftsphilosophie, 13: 1919/20, 175-99. [315]
- Pappenheim, Walther: Die Rechtsnatur des "Sitzenbleibens im ungeteilten Gut" im dänischen Recht. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 6: 1932, 120-34. [316]
- Philip, Allan: [Erbschaft in] Dänemark. Erbschaften im Ausland. Länderbeiträge Europa. Zusammengestellt von Hans Köhler. Vienna 1962, 13–17 (Schriftenreihe für internationales Recht. Bd. 3). [317
- Prinz, Otto: Ehescheidung ohne Verschulden nach nordischem Recht. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 25: 1960, 222-41. [318
- Riismandel, V. J.: Divorce by administrative decree. Denmark. Library of Congress, Law Library, Wash. 1957. 18 p. [319
- Simson, Gerhard: Die Insemination. Zu skandinavischen Gesetzentwürfen. – Juristenzeitung, 1953, 480-83. [320
- Uddgren, Lars: Die nordische Konvention über Erbe, Testament und Nachlassverordnung. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 9: 1935, 266–74. [321
- Urbach, Peter: Das Unterhaltsrecht ehelicher und unehelicher Kinder unter Berücksichtigung der öffentlichen Kinderfürsorge nach dänischem Recht. Hamburg 1955. 106 p. 4°. (Diss. Hamburg, typewritten.) [322
- Vreeland, Hamilton: Validity of foreign divorces. Chicago 1938. 355 p. (Denmark, 269-70). [323
- Walton, F. P.: Scandinavian law of husband and wife. Journal of comparative legislation and international law, 9<sup>1</sup>: 1927, 263-4 (Review of J. Faurholt and P. Federspiel: Recent Danish legislation on the relation of husband and wife. 1927).

## C. LAW OF PROPERTY

- Bauer, Walter: Agricultural credit in Denmark. U.S. Department of agriculture, U.S. Government Printing Office. Washington 1940. 71 p. [325]
- The Danish Registration Act ("Tinglysningsloven") No. 111 of 31 March 1926. – Frederik Vinding Kruse: The right of property. Vol. 2. London 1953, 299-317. [326]
- Gesetz Nr. 111 vom 31. März 1926 über "Tinglysning". Auslandsrecht, 7: 1926, 271. [327

- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: Das neue dänische "Tinglysnings"- (Kundbarmachungs- und Grundbucheintragungs-) Gesetz vom 31. März 1926.
  – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 1: 1927, 217-21. [328]
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: Das Eigentumsrecht. Bd. 1-3. Berlin and Leipzig 1931, 1935, 1936. 2523 p. [329
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: Interessentenkreise und Rechtswirkungen beim Übergang des Eigentumsrechts. – Deutsche Rechtswissenschaft, 3: 1938, 3-19. [330
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: The right of property. Vol. 1 transl. by P. F. Federspiel. Oxford 1939. 495 p. Vol. 2 transl. by David Philip. Oxford 1953. 348 p. [331
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: What does "transfer of property" mean with regard to chattels? — The American journal of comparative law, 7: 1958, 500-515. [332
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: On the rights to the sea and its subsoil. A decision by the Supreme Court of Finland. Legal essays. A tribute to Frede Castberg. Universitetsforlaget, Oslo 1963, 570–87. [332 a
- Storke, Hans: Das neue dänische Liegenschaftsrecht nach dem Tinglysningslov von 31. März 1926 in den Grundzügen unter vergleichender Gegenüberstellung des entsprechenden deutschen Rechts dargestellt. Borna-Leipzig 1929. 7+94 p. (Diss. Kiel). [333
- Storke, Hans: Das dänische Gesetz zur Sicherung der Ernte v. 16. Febr. 1932. – Deutsche Juristen-Zeitung, 37: 1932, 732-4. [334
- Teisen, Axel: Adverse possession prescription. American Bar Association journal, 2: 1916, 189-201. [335]
- Thorsteinsson, Th.: Mortgaging of real estate in Denmark 2nd rev. ed. Copenhagen 1960. 45 p. [336
- Das Tinglysningsgesetz (Gesetz Nr. 111 vom 31. März 1926). Frederik Vinding Kruse: Das Eigentumsrecht. Bd. 2. Berlin 1935, 1673–1702 (Anordnung Nr. 298 vom 26. November 1926 betreffs Tinglysning, 1703–34). [337
- Ussing, Henry: Le transfert de la propriété en droit danois. Revue internationale de droit comparé, 4: 1952, 5-12. [338]

#### D. LAW OF INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT

## 1. Industrial property

## a. In general

Carlsen, Bent: Danish patent, design and trademark law. A brief manual. Copenhagen, 2nd ed. 1933. 26 p. [339

Godenhielm, Berndt: Lettre des pays nordiques. – Propriété industrielle, 71: 1955, 250-53. 4°. – 74: 1958, 95-9. 4°. [340

- Godenhielm, Berndt: A letter from Scandinavia. Industrial property quarterly. Berne 1956, 34-44. [341
- Hjermind, Paul: Dänemark. Eugen Langen: Internationale Lizenzverträge. 2. Aufl. Weinheim 1958, 93-104. [342
- Kierkegaard, Malte: Formalités requises pour le dépôt des demandes. – Annuaire de l'Association internationale pour la protection de la propriété industrielle, 55: 1952, 300-301. [343]
- Kierkegaard, Malte: Formalités requises pour le dépôt des demandes. – Annuaire de l'Association internationale pour la protection de la propriété industrielle, 53: 1950, 257-60. [344]
- Lehmann, Julius and H. Ree: Patent and trade mark rights in Denmark. A compendium of the legal regulations and patent office practice in force from 1. Oct. 1936. 2nd ed. Copenhagen 1936. 68 p. [345]
- Ljungman, Seve: Brief comments on industrial property in Scandinavian education and research. – NIR. Nordiskt immateriellt rättsskydd, 27: 1958, 18–19. [346]
- Ljungman, Seve: Pays nordiques. Rapport au nom des groupes danois, finlandais, norvégien et suédois. – Association internationale pour la protection de la propriété industrielle. Annuaire. 63: 1960, 263-9.
  - [347
- Pearson, P. H.: Industrial property protection in Denmark. U.S. Bureau of Foreign and Domestic Commerce. Comparative law series, 1938, 7–12. [348]
- Tengelin, Sten: Associations in the field of industrial property in the Scandinavian countries, Denmark, Finland, Norway and Sweden. – NIR. Nordiskt immateriellt rättsskydd, 27: 1958, 31-3. [349]
- von Zweigbergk, Åke: Legislation on industrial property in the Scandinavian countries. – NIR. Nordiskt immateriellt rättsskyde 27: 1958, 5-10. [350

## b. Patents

- Andreasen, Hardy: Lettre du Danemark. La jurisprudence danoise en matière de brevets pendant la guerre. – La propriété industrielle, 61: 1945, 135-7.
- Avis concernant les demandes de brevet etc. (Du 10 février 1956). La propriété industrielle, 73: 1957, 10–13. 4º. [352
- The Danish Patent Act. Consolidation order of 19th December 1958. Transl. publ. by The Comptroller of Patents. Copenhagen 1959. 10 p. [353]
- Entwurf eines gemeinsamen Skandinavischen Patentgesetzes. Gewerblicher Rechtsschutz und Urheberrecht. Auslands- und internationaler Teil 1962, 590-615. [353 a
- Falk, Magne: The Nordic patent offices. NIR. Nordiskt immateriellt rättsskydd, 27: 1958, 11–17. [354

- Lehmann, Julius: Das Patentrecht in Dänemark, Norwegen, Schweden und Finnland nebst einigen Aufschlüssen über Isländische Privilegien. Copenhagen 1919. 84 p. [355]
- Lehmann, Julius, and Ree, H.: Priority rights in patent cases under the international convention. A synopsis of the legal regulations and patent office practice in force A. D. 1935 in 31 countries. 2nd ed. Copenhagen, London 1935. 195 p. [356]
- Loi codifiée sur les brevets (De 1894/1936). La propriété industrielle, 52: 1936, 197-201. (See now No. 361 of December 19, 1958.) [357
- Loi concernant les inventions d'employés (No 142 du 29 avril 1955). – La propriété industrielle, 72: 1956, 196–7. 4°. [358
- Ostenfeld, Th.: Prosecution of infringers in Denmark. Patent Office Society journal, 35: 1953, 378-80. [359
- Sandart, Kaj: Nordic associations of independent patent agents and their international relations. – NIR. Nordiskt immateriellt rättsskydd, 27: 1958, 33-5. [360
- Skandinavische Zusammenarbeit auf dem Gebiete des Patentwesens. Gewerbliches Rechtsschutz- und Urheberrecht. Ausländischer und internationaler Teil 1953, 113-80 (Transl. into German of Statens offentliga utredningar 1952:43). (127-37 also in Eduard Reimer: Europäisierung des Patentrechts München 1955, 283-305.) [361
- Steenstrup, F.: Création au sein du bureau international d'un centre de recherches de priorités en matières de brevets. — Association internationale pour la protection de la propriété industrielle. Annuaire, 59: 1956, 302-3.
- von Zweigbergk, Åke: Nordische Zusammenarbeit auf dem Gebiete des Patentwesens. – 60 Jahre österreichisches Patentamt. Vienna 1959, 199–204. [363

## c. Trade marks and designs

- Carlsen, Bent, and van der Hude, Harry: Cession libre des marques. Annuaire de l'Association internationale pour la protection de la propriété industrielle, 53: 1950, 354-6. [364
- van der Hude, Harry: Short survey of the provisions of the Danish Trade Mark Act. - Trade Mark Reporter, 51: 1953, 151-5. [365]
- van der Hude, Harry, and von Zweigbergk, Åke: Marques de service. – Association internationale pour la protection de la propriété industrielle. Annuaire, 59: 1956, 211–2. [366
- van der Hude, Harry, and von Zweigbergk, Åke: Marques de service. – Annuaire de l'Association internationale pour la protection de la propriété industrielle, 58: 1955, 231-4. [367
- Kobbernagel, Jan: Les marques notoires. Annuaire de l'Association internationale pour la protection de la propriété industrielle, 55: 1952, 465-8. [368]

- Loi codifiée sur les dessins ou modèles industriels (De 1905/1936). La propriété industrielle, 52:1936, 215–8 (No. 193 of September 1, 1936). [369
- Loi sur les marques de fabrique ou de commerce (No 211 du 11 juin 1959). – La propriété industrielle, 76: 1960, 61-7. 4°. [370
- Loi sur les marques collectives (No 212 du 11 juin 1959). La propriété industrielle, 76: 1960, 67–8. 4º. [371
- Marcus, Franz: Dortmunder Bier in Dänemark. Aussenwirtschaftsdienst des Betriebs-Beraters. Recht der internationalen Wirtschaft, 8: 1962, 83.
- Rørdam, Kjeld: Das neue dänische Warenzeichengesetz. Gewerblicher Rechtsschutz und Urheberrecht. Auslands- und internationaler Teil 1960, 295-300. 4°. [373
- Rørdam, Kjeld: Grundzüge des dänischen Warenzeichenrechts. Gewerblicher Rechtsschutz und Urheberrecht. Auslands- und internationaler Teil 1958, 394-9. 4<sup>0</sup>. [374
- Torfing, H. B.: The new Danish Trade Mark Act 1960. Trademark reporter, 52: 1962, 378-89. [375
- Uggla, Claës: The Scandinavian trademark law reform, a preview. Trademark reporter, 46: 1956, 759–61. [376
- Warenzeichengesetz Nr. 211 vom 11. Juni 1959. Gewerblicher Rechtsschutz und Urheberrecht. Auslands- und internationaler Teil 1960, 300-303. 4°.

## 2. Copyright

- Graae, Fr.: La nouvelle loi danoise du 26 avril 1933 concernant le droit d'auteur sur les œuvres litteraires et artistiques. – Le droit d'auteur, 46: 1933, 93-5. 4°. (New legislation in 1961.) [378]
- Greve, Rolf: Die Dauer der Schutzfristen in den skandinavischen Ländern. – Börsenblatt für den deutschen Buchhandel. Frankfurter Ausg., 12: 1956, 1212–13. [379
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: Kann das Urheberrecht an Werken der Literatur und Kunst mit Recht als geistiges Eigentum bezeichnet werden?
  Geistiges Eigentum 1: 1935/36, 353-65. (Summary in English 366-68, in French 368-71). [380
- Lögdberg, Åke: Zur skandinavischen Urheberrechtsreform. Archiv für Urheber-, Film-, Funk- und Theaterrecht, 24: 1957, 167-78. [381
- Loi sur le droit d'auteur (Du 26 avril 1933). Le droit d'auteur, 46: 1933, 85–90. 4°. (Superseded by new legislation 1961.) [382
- Loi sur le droit d'images photographiques (No. 157 du 31 mai 1961). – Le droit d'auteur. Revue du Bureau de l'Union internationale pour
  - la protection des œuvres littéraires et artistiques, 74: 1961, 293-5.

[383

Loi relative au droit d'auteur sur les œuvres littéraires et artistiques

(No 158 du 31 mai 1961). – Le droit d'auteur. Revue du Bureau de l'Union internationale pour la protection des œuvres littéraires et artistiques, 174: 1961, 295-301. [384

- Lund, Torben: The personal rights of the author in Danish copyright law. – Geistiges Eigentum 1: 1935/36, 274-80. (Summary in German 280-2, in French 282-3.) [385]
- Lund, Torben: Joint copyright legislation in the Nordic countries. Geistiges Eigentum. Copyright. La propriété intellectuelle, Leiden, 5: 1940, 189–93. [386]
- Lund, Torben: La coopération nordique dans le domaine du droit de propriété intellectuelle. Le Nord. Revue internationale des pays du Nord, 3: 1940, 112-28. (With summary in English and German.) [387]

Lund, Torben: Lettre du Danemark. - Droit d'auteur

62: 1949, 91-4

72: 1959, 142-8

74: 1961, 341-5.

[388

- Lund, Torben: Articles on copyright in: World copyright. An encyclopedia. Ed. by H. L. Pinner. Vols. 1-5. Leyden 1953-60. [389]
- Lund, Torben: Photocopy, copyright and private use. Revue international du droit d'auteur, 14: 1957, 136-88. [390
- Lund, Torben: Letter from Denmark. Copyright bulletin. Unesco. 15: 1962, 53-4. (From Droit d'auteur, 1961, 341-5.) [391
- Lund, Torben: The lending and rental of phonograph records and books. Bulletin of the Copyright Society 9: 1962, 367-77. [391 a
- Neighbouring rights. A comparative study of the law and jurisprudence of certain countries. – Copyright bulletin. Unesco. 9: 1956, 13-18 (Denmark). [392

E. LAW OF OBLIGATIONS, INCLUDING COMMERCIAL LAW

## 1. Obligations in general

- Bloch, Joachim-Dieter: Das einheitliche nordische Wechsel- und Scheckrecht. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 7: 1933, 722-5. [393
- Bloch, Joachim-Dieter: Die Behandlung der Goldklauseln nach dänischem Recht. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 7: 1933, 958–62. [394
- Bloch, Joachim-Dieter: Das schwedische Gesetz über die Schuldverschreibungen. Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 10: 1936, 523-33 (Text des Gesetzes 527-33. Corresponding Danish Act No. 146 of April 13, 1938).
- Capelle, Karl-Hermann: Das Aussenverhältnis bei der Vertretung fremder Interessen nach skandinavischem Recht. – Festschrift für Leo Raape zu seinem siebzigsten Geburtstag. Hamburg 1948, 325-39. [396]

- Delmar, Wilhelm: Die Erklärungstheorie des Dänischen Vertragsgesetzes verglichen mit der Theorie des Deutschen Bürgerlichen Gesetzbuchs. Heidelberg 1923. 178 p. 4° (Diss. In typescript). [397
- Gesetz über Verträge und andere Rechtsgeschäfte auf vermögensrechtlichem Gebiete vom 8. Mai 1917 (Nr. 242). – Zeitschrift für das gesamte Handelsrecht und Konkursrecht, 81: 1918, 220-32. [398]
- Hering, Hans Georg: Die Bedeutung der Denuntiation bei der Zession im modernen Recht folgender Staaten: Dänemark, Norwegen, Schweden, England, Frankreich, Schweiz und Österreich. Leipzig 1929. 52 p. (Diss.) [399
- Loi (Nr. 242) du 8 mai 1917 sur les accords et autres transactions en matière de droit des biens. Annuaire de législation étrangère publiée par la Société de Législation Comparée. Lois votées en 1916 et 1917. 2. série. Année 15. Paris 1917–18, 327–9. [400
- Møller, H. A.: Prescription and preclusion according to Danish law. International law notes, 1: 1916, 58. [401
- Petersen, J. G.: Ansvarsfraskrivelse (Contractual limitation of civil responsibility). Copenhagen 1957. 226 p. (Diss., with summary in English 214-23). [402
- Rodhe, Knut: La législation des pays nordiques sur les titres de créances. - Revue trimestrielle de droit commercial, 3: 1950, 320-31. [403
- Svane, Eskil: The conclusion of contracts. A comparative legal study. Copenhagen 1961. 91 p. (Mim. thesis for the degree of master of comparative jurisprudence at New York University. Summary in Esperanto 77-85). [404]

## 2. Commercial law

Brock, Jens Trampe: États scandinaves (1925–1931). – Annales de droit commercial, 42: 1933, 197–220 (Danemark 213–20). [405
Hvidt, Valdemar: Bankers' credits. Copenhagen, London 1933. 206 p. [406

- Lindvik, Adolf: États scandinaves (1914-1924). Annales de droit commerciales, 35: 1926, 284-307 (Danemark 300-307). [407
- Loi du 1 mars 1889 sur les registres du commerce, raisons de commerce et procuras. Traduit par P. Dareste. — Annuaire de législation étrangère. Lois votées en 1889. Année 19. Paris 1890, 723-31. [408
- Loi (Nr. 243) du 8 mai 1917 concernant la commission, les agents de commerce et les commis voyageurs. Annuaire de législation étrangère.
  2. série. Année 15. Paris 1917–18, 329–31 (Summary). [409]
- Marcus, Franz: Dänische Handelsgesetzgebung bis Ende 1950. Zeitschrift für das gesamte Handelsrecht und Konkursrecht, 115: 1951/52, 28-31. [410
- Marcus, Franz: Bericht über dänische Handelsgesetzgebung 1951–1952. – Zeitschrift für das gesamte Handelsrecht und Konkursrecht, 116: 1953, 61-3. [411

- Munktell, Henrik: [Entwicklung des Handelsrechts.] Bericht über Schweden, Norwegen und Dänemark. – Zeitschrift für das gesamte Handelsrecht und Konkursrecht, 102: 1936, 99–152. [412
- Tybjerg, Erland: Den danske Handelsret og Konkursret. Das Handelsrecht und Konkursrecht Dänemarks. – Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa 1. Skandinavien. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906. 225 p. (Danish and German title and text). [413

## 3. Sale of goods

- Almén, Tore: Das skandinavische Kaufrecht. Ein Kommentar zu den skandinavischen Kaufgesetzen. Deutsche Ausgabe von F. K. Neubecker. Bd. 1-3. Heidelberg 1922.
- Gesetz über den Kauf vom 6. April 1906. Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa 1. Skandinavien. Dänemark. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906, 100–109 (Danish and German text). [415
- Gottheiner, Hans Georg: Zum Eigentumsübergang beim Kauf beweglicher Sachen. Eine rechtsvergleichende und kollisionsrechtliche Betrachtung unter besonderer Berücksichtigung der Nordischen Rechte.
  Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 18: 1953, 356-75 (Das nordische System 360-68). [416]
- Jessen, Jens: Der Handelskauf nach nordischem Recht. Kiel-1921. 62 p. 4º. (Diss. Typescript). [417
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: What does "transfer of property" mean with regard to chattels? – The American journal of comparative law, 7: 1958, 500-15. [418
- Loi du 6 avril 1906 sur la vente. Traduit par P. Dareste. Annuaire de législation étrangère. 2. série, 6. année. Paris 1907, 475-90. [419
- Møller, H. A.: The Danish Sale of Goods Act. -- International law notes, 1: 1916, 71-3. [420
- Ussing, Henry: Le transfert de la propriété en droit danois. Revue internationale de droit comparé, 4: 1952, 5-12. [421

## 4. Insurance

Christensen, Knud: Insurance in Denmark. – Scandinavia past and present. Vol. 3. Odense 1959, 859-61. [422

- The Danish Contracts of Insurance Act 1930. Rendered in English by K. Lundberg. Copenhagen 1931. 53 p. [423
- Droit danois [des assurances maritimes]. Robert de Smet: Traité théorique et pratique des assurances maritimes. Tome 3. Paris 1960, 1-69. [424
- Hellner, Jan: Unwirksamkeit des Versicherungsvertrages wegen Verletzung der Anzeigepflicht nach skandinavischem Recht. - Internatio-

nales Versicherungsrecht. Festschrift für Albert Ehrenzweig. Karlsruhe 1955, 41–56. [425

- The Insurance Operations Act of May 13th, 1959. Haase, Copenhagen 1960. 43 p. (Offprint of Forsikringsrådet. Beretning for året 1958. Vol. 3, 96-137). [426]
- Lundberg, K.: The Danish Contracts of Insurance Act 1930. Rendered in English. Copenhagen 1931. 54 p. [427
- Ministry of Social Affairs Notification, No. 142 of the Industrial Injuries Insurance Act. Dated 8 May 1959. Ministry of Social Affairs, Copenhagen. 40 p. (Mim.) [428
- Moltved, B. H.: Survey of Danish accident insurance legislation. 2nd ed. Publ. by Direktoratet for Ulykkesforsikring. Copenhagen 1960, 43 p. 4° (Mim.) [429]

# 5. Law of torts and damages

- Gomard, Bernhard: Forholdet mellem erstatningsregler i og udenfor kontraktsforhold (A comparison of the rules of damages in tort and contract). Copenhagen 1958. 493 p. (Diss., with summary in English 466-70). [430
- Gomard, Bernhard: Legal problems of compensation involved in the use of nuclear energy. – Scandinavian studies in law. Stockholm, 4: 1960, 59–100 (Transl. of the author's article in Ugeskrift for Retsvæsen, 1958, B, 197–235). [431
- Gomard, Bernhard: Liability without fault. Progress in nuclear energy. Series X. Vol. 3. Oxford 1962, 5-34. [432
- Holm-Nielsen, Henning: Law of torts in Denmark. Journal of comparative legislation, 15: 1933, 176–9. [433
- Holm-Nielsen, Henning: Functional jurisprudence and the law of torts with special reference to Danish law. – Studi in memoria di Aldo Albertini. 3. Padua 1938, 225-32. [434
- Pape, Thorkil: International problems of tort liability and financial protection arising out of the use of atomic energy. International Bar Association. Seventh conference, Cologne 1958. Summary of proceedings. The Hague 1958, 50-53.
- Schafer, Stephen: Restitution to victims of crime. Stevens, London 1960. 130 p. (Denmark 41-43). [436
- Trolle, Jørgen: Ausservertraglicher Schadensersatz nach dänischer Lehre. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 7: 1933, 772–90. [437
- Ussing, Henry: The Scandinavian law of torts. Impact of insurance on tort law. American journal of comparative law, 1: 1952, 359-72.

[438

Ussing, Henry: Evolution et transformation du droit de la responsabilité civile. – Revue internationale de droit comparé, 7: 1955, 485-98.

[439

## F. LABOUR LAW

- Scandinavian studies in law, 1958, 9-53. (Denmark 32-4) [440 Apprenticeship Act No. 261. Dated 20 October 1956. - International
- Labour Office Legislative series, 37: 1956. Denmark 2, 1-26. [441 The Conciliation Board. Act No. 82, 12 April 1910 concerning conciliation in labour disputes as amended 1921, 1927, 1934, 1940, 1945.
- Industrial relations in Denmark. Copenhagen 1947, 25-32. (Latest amendment No. 63, 25th March 1961). [442
- Dreyer, Erik: Conciliation in Danish labor conflicts. Danish Outlook, 3: 1950, 280–85. [443
- Galenson, Walter: The Danish system of labor relations. Harward University Press, Cambridge, Mass. 1952. 12+321 p. [444
- Gesetz betreffend Vermittlung bei Arbeitsstreitigkeiten vom 18. Januar 1934. – Hans Joachim Seeler: Der Arbeitskampf in der deutschen und ausländischen Gesetzgebung. Frankf. a. M. 1958, 77–80 (Forschungsstelle für Völkerrecht und ausländisches öffentliches Recht der Universität Hamburg. Dokumente. Bd. 28). [445]
- Industrial relations in Denmark. Basic collective agreements and laws on labour disputes. Ed. and publ. by Socialt Tidsskrift, Copenhagen 1947. 32 p. [446]
- Labour law. Paper presented by the International Relations Division of the Ministries of Labour and Social Affairs. Rev. ed. Copenhagen 1961. 21 p. (Mim.). (Danish social structure. Pamphlet No. 11.) [447
- Larsen, Helge: Organization of the Danish labor market. Scandinavia. Past and present. Vol. 3, 1959, 803-11. [448
- Loi no 536 du 4 octobre 1919 sur le tribunal permanent d'arbitrage. Annuaire de législation étrangère. 2. série. Année 17. Paris 1920, 238– 44.
- The Permanent Court of Arbitration. Act No. 81, 12 April 1910, substituted by Act No. 536, 4 October 1919. — Industrial relations in Denmark. Copenhagen 1947, 14-22. (With amendments 1934 and 1939.) [450
- Seaman's Act No. 229. Dated 7 June 1952. International Labour Office. Legislative series, 33: 1952, Denmark 1, 1-23. [451
- Seeler, Hans Joachim: Der Arbeitskampf in der deutschen und ausländischen Gesetzgebung. Frankf. a. M. 1958. 173 p. (Dänemark 77– 80). [452
- The September Agreement. Agreement between the Danish Employers' Confederation and the Confederation of Danish Trade Unions, 5th September 1899. – Industrial relations in Denmark. Copenhagen 1947, 7-10. (New agreement 1960.) [453]
- Sinding, S.: Danemark. Les conflits collectifs du travail et leur règlement dans le monde contemporain (Grèves, procedures de conciliation et d'arbitrage) par P. Grunebaum-Ballin et Renée Petit. Sirey, Paris

Adlercreutz, Axel: The rise and development of the collective agreement.

Danish Legal Publications in English, French and German 205

1954, 105–106. (Travaux et recherches de l'Institut de droit comparé de l'Université de Paris. 9.) [454

## G. COMPANY LAW

- Borum, O. A.: Scandinavian views on the notion of recognition of foreign companies. — Nederlands Tijdschrift voor Internationaal Recht, 9: 1962, 82-88. (Special issue October 1962. De conflictu legum. Essays presented to R. D. Kolewyn and J. Offerhaus.) [455]
- The Danish Companies Act No. 123 of 15th April 1930 as amended. J. H. Schultz, Copenhagen 1951. 31 p. [456]
- Gesetz über Aktiengesellschaften (Nr. 123) vom 15. April 1930. Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 4: 1930, 666–92. (Transl. by Curt Menzel. See now Act No. 313 of August 28, 1952.) [457
- The Insurance Operations Act of May 13th, 1959. Haase, Copenhagen 1960. 43 p. (Offprint of Forsikringsrådet. Beretning for året 1958. Vol. 3, 96-137). [458
- Marcus, Franz: Dänisches Aktienrecht. Die Aktiengesellschaft, 3: 1958, 102–106. [459

Marcus, Franz: Das dänische Gesetz über die Aktiengesellschaften. Alfred Metzner Verlag, Frankf. a. M. 1960. 92 p. (Ausländische Aktiengesetze hrsg. v. der Gesellschaft für Rechtsvergleichung in Hamburg Bd. 3.) [460]

- Menzel, Curt: Das neue dänische Aktiengesellschafts-sowie das neue Bankgesetz. Vorbemerkung und Übersetzung. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 4: 1930, 656–703 (Gesetz über Aktiengesellschaften 666–92. Bankgesetz 693–703). [461
- Philip, Allan: The formation and operation of foreign subsidiaries and branches. International Bar Association. 8th conference report, Salzburg 1960. Martinus Nijhoff, The Hague 1960, 254-7. [462]
- Philip, Allan: Studier i den internationale selskabsrets teori (Studies in the theory of international company law). Copenhagen 1961. 257 p. (Diss., with summary in English 246-57). Reviews: Franz Marcus in Rabels Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 26: 1961, 750-51. [463]
- Valko, Laszlo: International handbook of cooperative legislation. Washington 1954. 273 p. (Denmark 31-7). [464

## H. MARITIME LAW AND AIR LAW

## 1. Maritime law

Astle, W. E.: Shipowners' cargo liabilities and immunities. London 1954. 386 p. (Scandinavian enactments 205-11). [465

- Behrendt-Poulsen, E.: International ship-building contracts. Sixth conference of the International Bar Association, Oslo 1956. The Hague 1956. 6 p. [466]
- Brækhus, Sjur: The term "voyage" in section 267 No. 5 of the Scandinavian maritime codes (Art. 2 No. 5 of the International Maritime Lien Convention of 1926). – Liber amicorum of congratulations to Algot Bagge. Stockholm 1956, 22-36. [467]
- Dänisches Seegesetz vom 1. April 1892. Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa 1. Skandinavien. Nordisches Wechsel- und Seerecht. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906, 52–173. (Partly obsolete. Danish, Norwegian, Swedish and German text.) [468]
- Droit danois [des assurances maritimes]. Robert de Smet: Traité théorique et pratique des assurances maritimes. Tome 3. Paris 1960, 1-69. [469]
- Gesetz vom 12. April 1892 über die Errichtung von Seegerichten ausserhalb Kopenhagens sowie über Seeverklarung und Seeverhör. – Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa 1. Skandinavien. Nordisches Wechsel- und Seerecht. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906 189–192 (Danish and German text). [470
- Hambro, Edward: Das Seerecht Dänemarks, Norwegens und Schwedens.
  Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa
  1. Skandinavien. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906, 47–234. (Danish and German text. The account is now partly obsolete.) [471
- Loi sur les gens de mer (no 229 du 7 juin 1952). J. H. Schultz, Copenhagen. 21 p. [472
- Losch, Kurt: Die Erneuerung des skandinavischen Seehandelsrechts. Hamburg 1953. 9+224 p. (Diss. Hamburg, in typescript). [473
- The Merchant Shipping (Masters' and Seamen's) Act No. 229 of 7th June 1952. J. H. Schultz, Copenhagen. 21 p. [474
- The Merchant Shipping (Construction and equipment etc. of ships) Order of 15th November 1952. Copenhagen 1956. 150 p. [475]
- Rørdam, Kjeld: Treatises on the Baltcon-charterparty. Copenhagen 1954. 198 p.

Reviews: R. Stödter: Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 1954, 579. J. Milnes Holden: Law quarterly review, 1955, 156-7. J. P. Govare: Revue internationale de droit comparé, 1954, 615-16. Modern law review, 1955, 312. Allan Philip: The American journal of comparative law, 1955, 472-3. [476 Sandström, Jan: The limitation of the stevedore's liability. – Journal

of business law, 1962, 34–50. (Scandinavian law.) [477 Seaman's Act No. 229. Dated 7th June 1952. – International Labour

- Office. Legislative series, 33: 1952. Denmark 1, 1-23. [478
- Siesby, Erik: What law governs shipowner's liability for passenger's injury? – Arkiv for sjørett. 3. Oslo 1956/59, 196-229. [479
- Siesby, Erik: On jurisdiction and arbitration clauses in maritime contracts. – Arkiv for sjørett. 4. Oslo, 1957/61, 313-402. [480

- Siesby, Erik: What law governs carrier's liability according to a bill of lading? Arkiv for sjørett. 5. Oslo 1961, 417-523. [481
- Strandgaard, Knud: The competence and responsibility of pilots. -The Scandinavian shipping gazette, 32: 1948, 481, 515, 565, 591. [482
- Strandgaard, Knud: International maritime legislation. Acta Scandinavica juris gentium, 6: 1935, 85-95. [483
- Strandgaard, Knud: The internationality of shipping. 1. The international rules relating to bills of lading. Copenhagen 1939. 111 p. [484
- Strandgaard, Knud: Shipping guide (captains guide) on charterparties, bills of lading, manifests and other ship's documents. 2nd ed. Copenhagen 1951. 319 p. [485]
- Strandungsgesetz vom 10. April 1895. Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa. 1. Skandinavien. Nordisches Wechsel- und Seerecht. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906, 181–6 (Danish and German text). [486]

Tiberg, Hugo: Time for loading and unloading of ships, a comparative study of English and Scandinavian law. Oslo 1957. 111 p. [487]

Zachariasen, Fr.: Droit maritime comparé. Pays scandinaves. – Droit maritimes français, 1952 327-30, 1953 229-32, 1955 120-24, 1959 316-18. [488

### 2. Air law

- Bahr, Henrik: The Scandinavian Airlines System (SAS). Its origin, present organization and legal aspects. – Arkiv for Luftrett. Oslo, 1: 1961, 199–253 (SAS Consortium Agreement 240–53). [489
- Hjalsted, Finn: The air carrier's liability in cases of unknown cause of damage in international air law. Part I-II. The Journal of air law and commerce, 1959/60, 1-28, 119-49. [490
- Nelson, Robert A.: Scandinavian Airlines System cooperation in the air. – Journal of air law and commerce, 20: 1953, 178–96. [491
- Nylén, Torsten: Scandinavian cooperation in the field of air legislation. – The journal of air law and commerce, 24: 1957, 36-46. [492

## I. RESTRAINT OF TRADE AND UNFAIR COMPETITION

Andreasen, Hardy: Legal advertising in Danish law. – Ugeskrift for Retsvæsen, 1961, 166-9. [493

- Banke, Niels: Dänische Kartell- und Monopolpolitik. Internationales Handbuch der Kartellpolitik. Düncker und Humbolt. Berlin 1958, 69-87. [494
- Banke, Niels: Restrictive practices. Danish legislation. Cartel. Review of monopoly, developments and consumer protection, 6: 1956, 83-7.

495

- Boserup, W. ed.: Guide to legislation on restrictive business practices. Vols. 1-3. European Productivity Agency of the O.E.E.C. Paris 1960. (Looseleaf ed.) [496]
- Boserup, William, and Schlichtkrull, Uffe: Alternative approaches to the control of competition. An outline of European cartel legislation.
   Competition, cartels and their regulation. Ed. by J. P. Miller. Amsterdam 1962, 59-113.
- Gammelgaard, Søren: Resale price maintenance. Project No. 238. The European Productivity Agency of the Organization for European Economic Cooperation. Paris 1958. 114 p. [498]
- Gammelgaard, Søren: The regulation of private restraints and competition in the convention of the European Free Trade Association (EFTA) and its significance. – Kartelle und Monopole im modernen Recht. Bd. 1. Hrsg. vom Institut für ausländisches und internationales Wirtschaftsrecht. Frankf. a. M., Verlag C. F. Müller, Karlsruhe 1961, 151-5. [499]
- Gammelgaard, Søren: Survey of the Danish anti-trust policy. International conference on control of restrictive business practices. University of Chicago 1960, 65-70. [500
- Groes, Ebbe: Danish monopoly legislation. The next stage. Cartel, 4: 1954, 2-9. [501
- Günther, E.: Der Kartellgesetzentwurf des Handelsministeriums (Dänemark). – Wirtschaft und Wettbewerb, 5: 1955, 304-305. [502
- Günther, E.: Neues Kartellgesetz erlassen. Dänemark. Wirtschaft und Wettbewerb, 5: 1955, 632-3. [503
- Kjølby, Henning: Denmark. Guide to legislation on restrictive business practices. Vol. 1. O.E.E.C. Paris 1960. 27 loose leaves. (Introduction, legislation, explanatory notes, administrative and court decisions, bibliography.) [504]

Korst, Mogens: Restrictions in Denmark. - Cartel, 8: 1958, 38-9. [505]

- Loi contre la concurrence déloyale et les désignations illicites de produits (Du 31 mars 1937). – La propriété industrielle, 54: 1938, 97-100. (See now No. 145 of May 1, 1959.) [506]
- Marcus, Franz: Das dänische Monopolgesetz vom 31. März 1955. Zeitschrift für das gesamte Handelsrecht und Konkursrecht, 119: 1956, 73-88.
- Møller, Julius: Protection des armoires publiques. Annuaire de l'Association internationale de la protection industrielle, 53: 1950, 324–5. [508]
- The Monopolies and Restrictive Practices Control Act No. 102 of 31st March 1955. — International Bar Association. Seventh conference, Cologne 1958. Summary of proceedings. The Hague 1958, 264-7.

[509

The Monopolies and Restrictive Practices Control Act No. 102 of 31st March 1955 and ministerial order No. 193 of 18th June 1955 concerning registration of notification under the Monopolies Act. – Guide to legislation on restrictive business practices. Vol. 1. O.E.E.C. Paris 1960. [510

- The Monopolies and Restrictive Practices Control Act No. 102 of 31st March 1955. — International conference on control of restrictive business practices. University of Chicago 1960, 251-7. [511
- Neumeyer, Fredrik: Skandinavische Kartellgesetzgebung. Gewerblicher Rechtsschutz und Urheberrecht, 53: 1951, 16-20. [512
- Neumeyer, Fredrik: Neuere Kartellpolitik in Skandinavien. Wirtschaft und Wettbewerb, 5: 1955, 464-71. [513
- Nielsen, Charles V.: Konkurrenzverbote bei Übertragung von Handelsunternehmungen. Herman Sack Verlag, Berlin 1922. 124 p. [514
- Ovesen, Liv: Consumer protection in Scandinavia. Cartel. Review of monopoly developments and consumer protection, 6: 1956, 38-43.

515

- Reeh, Rasmus: Monopolies and restrictive trade practices. International Bar Association Seventh conference, Cologne 1958. Summary of proceedings. The Hague 1958, 260-63 (The Monopolies and Restrictive Practices Control Act No. 102 of 31st March 1955, 264-7.) [516]
- Ricklefs, Rolf: Vergleichende Werbung in Dänemark. Aussenwirtschaftsdienst des Betriebsraters. Recht der internationalen Wirtschaft, 8: 1962, 194. [517

# VII. CIVIL AND CRIMINAL PROCEDURE, ARBITRATION AND BANKRUPTCY

#### A. PROCEDURE IN GENERAL

- Buhl, Jon Palle: The client's privilege of secrecy in his communications with his attorney. Report. – International Bar Association. 8th conference, Salzburg 1960. Martinus Nijhoff, The Hague 1960, 458–63.
- Dix, Helmuth: Das Wechselverhör nach dem Recht der skandinavischen Länder. – Recht in Ost und West, 1957, 177-82. [519
- Gesetz vom 12. April 1892 über die Errichtung von Seegerichten ausserhalb Kopenhagens sowie über Seeverklarung und Seeverhör. Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa.
  1. Skandinavien. Nordisches Wechsel- und Seerecht. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906, 189–92 (Danish and German text). [520
  Gomard, Bernhard: The law Denmark. Publ. by The Royal Ministry
- of Foreign Affairs, Copenhagen 1961, 205–13 (Survey of courts and procedure). [521

Gomard, Bernhard: Die Rechtspflege. – Dänemark. Hrsg. vom Kgl. Dänischen Ministerium des Äusseren, Kopenhagen 1962, 207-15.

[522

[518

- Hjejle, Bernt: The legal profession and the community. International Bar Association. Sixth conference Oslo 1956. Summary of proceedings. The Hague 1957, 53-8.
- Iuul, Stig: The Danish Supreme Court through 300 years. Scandinavian studies in law, 6: 1962, 163-83 (From the author's article in "Højesteret 1661-1961", vol. 2, 1 ff.). [524
- Marcus, Franz: Die Rechtsprechungsmethode des dänischen Obersten Gerichtshofs. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 21: 1956, 243-56. [525]
- Møller, H. A. and Wolff, Harry: Handbook of foreign legal procedure. Legal relations in Europe. 4th year. London 1924. 503 p. (Denmark 199-162). [526]

Møller, Heinrich A.: Dänemark. – Handbuch der internationalen Rechtsverfolgung. Hrsg. v. H. A. Möller und H. Wolff. 5. Ausg. Carl Heymanns Verlag, Berlin 1929, 41–99. (Partly obsolete.) [527

- Møller, J. Kiesby: Greenland's new judicial system. Danish outlook, 7: 1954, 753-8. [528
- Munch-Petersen, Hans: The social aspects of procedure from a European point of view. Minnesota law review, 11: 1927, 624-34. [529]

Siesby, Erik: On jurisdiction and arbitration clauses in maritime contracts. – Arkiv for sjørett. 4. Oslo 1957/61, 313-402. [530 Teisen, Axel: Danish judicial code. – University of Pennsylvania law

review, 65: 1917, 543-70.

#### B. CIVIL PROCEDURE

## 1. In general

Bech, Robert: Adcitation og litis denuntiation (Adcitatio and litisdenunciatio). Juristforbundets Forlag 1961. 290 p. (Diss., with summary in English 279-82). [532

Clausen, Lauritz: Ein Vergleich zwischen dem deutschen und dem dänischen Zivilprozessrecht. Rostock 1923. 45 p. 4° (Diss. In typescript). [533

- von Eyben, W. E.: The attitude towards judicial precedent in Danish and Norwegian courts. — Scandinavian studies in law, 3: 1959, 53-86. (Transl. of the author's article in Tidsskrift for Rettsvitenskap, 1954, 484-536.) [534]
- Hambro, Edvard: Recognition and enforcement of foreign judgement in the Nordic countries. – Journal du droit international, 84: 1957, 908-47. [535]

Harms, Svend: Die dänische Anordnung über die Anerkennung von deutschen Urteilen vom 13. April 1938. – Juristische Wochenschrift, 67: 1938, 1942-3. [536]

Munch-Petersen, Hans: Einfluss der österreichischen Zivilprozessordnung

539

auf die skandinavischen Gesetzgebungen. – Festschrift für Franz Klein. Wien 1914, 251–60. [537

- Munch-Petersen, Hans: Haupteigentümlichkeiten der neuen dänischen Zivilprozessordnung. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 1: 1927, 221-32. [538
- Munch-Petersen, Hans: Das Zivilprozessrecht in Dänemark. Der Zivilprozess in den europäischen Staaten und ihren Kolonien. Berlin 1933, 555-69 (Die Rechtsverfolgung im internationalen Verkehr Bd. 1).
- Munch-Petersen, Hans: Der Zivilprozess Dänemarks. Mannheim, Berlin, Leipzig 1932. 222 p. (Das Zivilprozessrecht der Kulturstaaten. Bd. 4). [540
- Ross, Alf: The value of blood tests as evidence in paternity cases. Harvard law review, 71: 1957/58, 466-84. [541
- Uddgren, Lars: Die nordische Konvention über Anerkennung und Vollstreckung von Urteilen. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 9: 1935, 513-5. [542

# 2. Arbitration

- Hjejle, Bernt: Denmark. Sanders, Pieter (ed.): International commercial arbitration, Vol. 1. Union International des Avocats, Paris 1956, 154–67 (French and English). [543]
- Philip, Allan: Commercial arbitration in Denmark. The arbitration journal, 13: 1958, 16-22. [544
- Raffenberg, Mogens: Recht und Praxis der Schiedsgerichte in Dänemark. – Internationales Jahrbuch für Schiedsgerichtswesen in Zivilund Handelssachen. Hrsg. v. Arthur Nussbaum. 2: 1928, 3-14. [545]
- Raffenberg, Mogens: Überblick über die Schiedsgerichtsbarkeit in Zivilund Handelssächen in Dänemark. – Die Schiedsgerichtsbarkeit in Zivil- und Handelssachen in Europa Bd. 1. Berlin 1944, 220–51. [546]

# 3. Bankruptcy

- Bloch, Joachim-Dieter: Der Entwurf einer nordischen Konvention über die Vereinheitlichung des Konkursrechts. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 7: 1933, 458-67. [547]
- Deuntzer, J. H. und Getz, B.: Konkursrecht. Dänemark und Norwegen. – Rechtsverfolgung im internationalen Verkehr Bd. 2. Berlin 1897, 843-55. [548]
- Gesetz vom 25. März 1872 über den Konkurs sowie über einige Abänderungen der geltenden Bestimmungen über Pfand- und Zwangsvollstreckung. – Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und

Norawesteuropa 1. Skandinavien. Dänemark. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906, 149–79. (In Danish and German.) [549

- Gesetz vom 14. April 1905 über Zwangsvergleich ausserhalb des Konkurses und über Erweiterung der Zulässigkeit des Zwangsvergleichs während des Konkurses. – Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa. 1. Skandinavien. Dänemark. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906, 180–89 (Danish and German text). [550
- Gesetz vom 14. April 1905 über den Zwangsvergleich ausserhalb des Konkurses und über Erweiterung der Zulässigkeit des Zwangsvergleiches während des Konkurses. – M. Harnik: Der gerichtliche Ausgleich (Präventivkonkordat) nach den Gesetzen der verschiedenen Staaten Europas. Vienna and Leipzig 1928, 96–108. [551
- Holm-Nielsen, Henning: Wirtschaft und Insolvenzrecht in Dänemark 1931. – Mitteilungen des Creditoren-Vereins von 1870. Nr. 1. Vienna 1932. 7 p. [552
- Holm-Nielsen, Henning: The Scandinavian convention on bankruptcy and arrangements outside bankruptcy. — Journal of comparative legislation and international law, 18: 1936, 262-5. [553]
- Holm-Nielsen, Henning: Die Nordische Konkurs- und Vergleichskonvention. – Konkurs und Treuhandwesen. Berlin 1936, 67-8. [554
- Jaeger, Ernst: Nordisches Konkursabkommen. Zeitschrift für Zivilprozess, 61: 1937/39, 441-8. [555
- Konkurskonventionen zwischen Dänemark, Finnland, Island, Norwegen und Schweden vom 7. November 1933. – Zeitschrift für Zivilprozess, 61: 1937/39, 449-52. [556]
- Munch-Petersen, Hans: Une question relative à l'universalité de la faillite. Acta Scandinavica juris gentium, 3: 1932, 65-74. [557]
- Tybjerg, Erland: Den danske Handelsret og Konkursret. Das Handelsrecht und Konkursrecht Dänemarks. – Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa 1. Skandinavien. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906. 225 p. (Danish and German title and text). [558]

### C. CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

- Haarløv, Tyge: Should the protection of neglected and morally abandoned children be secured by a judicial authority or by a non-judicial body? Should the courts for delinquent children and juveniles be maintained? Report. — Proceedings of the 12th international penal and penitentiary congress 1950. Vol. 6, 1951, 155-65 (Summary in French 166). [559]
- Siciliano, Saverio: Lineamenti del processo penale danese. Rivista processuale penale 1962. 29 p. [560
- Waaben, Knud: Review of Stephan Hurwitz: Den danske strafferetspleje. 3. ed. København 1959. – Revue de science criminelle et de droit pénal comparé, 1961, 213-14. [561

# VIII. CRIMINAL LAW, TREATMENT OF OFFENDERS AND CRIMINOLOGY

### A. CRIMINAL LAW IN GENERAL

Andenæs, Johs.: Ignorantia legis in Scandinavian criminal law. - Müller, G. O. W.: Essays in criminal science, 1961, 717-23. 562 Annuaire des associations de criminalistes nordiques 1936-1940/41.

Stockholm 1937-42. With introductory surveys in French. Continued as: Yearbook of the Scandinavian criminologists' associations, 1942/43. With introductory surveys in English. See also No. 617. 563

Baebenroth, Erhard: Vorschlag und Debatten über die strafrechtliche Behandlung der Schwangerschaftsunterbrechung auf der 16. nordischen Juristentagung in Oslo im August 1934. – Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 26: 1935, 161-6. 564

- Christiansen, K. O.: The Institute of Criminal Science, University of Copenhagen. - British journal of delinquency, 10: 1959, 48-50. 565
- Christiansen, Karl O .: The Institute of Criminal Science of the University of Copenhagen. - Bulletin de l'association internationale de psychologie appliquée, 10: 1961, 100-107. [566 [567

Codigo penal danés. - Informacion Juridica, 1960, 3-64.

- Code pénal danois. Trad. établie par M. Richaume-Lambert avec le concours et les conseils de N. V. Boeg. - Nouvelle collection du comité de législation étrangère et de droit international. Les codes pénaux européens. Tome 1. Paris 1955, 325-86. [568
- Code pénal danois du 15 Avril 1930 entré en vigeur le 1. Janvier 1933. Trad. sous la direction de August Goll par Magda Schroll et Jean Adigard des Gautries. Paris 1935. 104 p. (Association Internationale de Droit pénal. Collection des lois pénales étrangères 2.) [569
- The Danish Criminal Code. With an introduction by Knud Waaben. Publ. by the Danish Committee on Comparative Law. Copenhagen 570 1958. 118 p.
- Denant, Henry: La nouvelle loi sur la presse au Danemark. Cahiers 571 de la presse, 1988, 405-10.
- Dragsted, Esben and Kromann, Johann: The third congress of criminalists of the Northern countries. - Yearbook of the Northern associations of criminalists, 1951/52. Stockholm 1953, LII-LXXVIII. (Summary in French LXXIX-XCI.) 572

Gesetz über Zusatz zum Bürgerlichen Strafgesetz betr. Verrats und anderer landesschädlicher Tätigkeit Nr. 259 vom 1. Juni 1945. - Ernst Siegfried Hansen: Disteln am Wege. Von der Besetzung Dänemarks bis zu Bonner Erklärungen. Bielefeld 1957, 387-95. 573

Givskov, Carl G.: The Danish purge laws. - Journal of criminal law and criminology, 39: 1948/49, 447-60. 574

Goldschmidt, Verner: The Greenland Criminal Code and its sociological

background. – Acta sociologica. Scandinavian review of sociology, 1: 1956, 217-65. [575

- Goll, August: Danemark. Rapport. Code pénal du 15. avril 1930. Recueil de documents en matière pénale et pénitentiaire. 1: 1931 177-206. 2: 1932 391-428. [576]
- Haslund, A.: L'enregistrement sur fil dans l'enquête criminelle. Revue internationale de police criminelle, 79: 1954, 168-70. [577
- Haulrig, Kurt: Dänemark 1949-52. Zeitschrift für die gesamte Strafrechtswissenschaft, 65: 1953, 611-9 (Survey). [578
- Hurwitz, Stephan: L'analogie dans le droit danois. Revue de science criminelle et de droit pénal comparé, 1950, 1-5. [579
- Hurwitz, Stephan: Dänemark 1942–48. Zeitschrift für die gesamte Strafrechtswissenschaft. 63: 1951, 131–9.
- und Haulrig, Kurt: Dänemark 1949-52. 65: 1953, 611-19. [580

 Hurwitz, Stephan: Denmark. – Bulletin of the International Penal and Penitentiary Commission, Berne, 15: 1951, 385-6 (The International Penal and Penitentiary Commission 1872-1951). [581

- Hurwitz, Stephan: La presse et la criminalité. Revue pénitentiaire (in Greece), 7: 1954, 4-9. [582
- "The Hypnosis Case". Application No. 343/57. Decision of 2nd September 1959. — Yearbook of the European convention on human rights. The European commission and European court of human rights. 1958–1959. The Hague 1960, 412–73 (also with French text). [583
- Kampmann, Erik: Danemark. Rapport. Loi no 166 du 18 mai 1937 sur l'organisation de la police et des maisons d'arrêt. – Recueil de documents en matière pénale et pénitentiaire, 7: 1938, 177-87. [584]
- Krabbe, Oluf H.: Strafrechtsreform in Dänemark. Zeitschrift für die gesamte Strafrechtswissenschaft, 48: 1928, 335-8. [585]
- Krabbe, Oluf H.: Dänemark. Zeitschrift für die gesamte Strafrechtswissenschaft.

56: 1937, 255-6. 57: 1938, 789-91. 59: 1940, 640-3. 62: 1943, 148-9.

[586 Kristensen, J. F.: La police au Groënland: une randonnée d'inspection en traineau à chièns. – Revue internationale de police criminelle, 1955, 130-6. [587

- Lehnemann, Wilhelm: Die Notwehrüberschreitung nach geltendem und zukünftigem deutschen Recht, sowie nach holländischem, dänischem, österreichischem Recht. Düsseldorf 1935. 28 p. (Diss., Erlangen). (Dänemark 24-5). [588]
- Lucas, F.: Entwürfe eines dänischen Strafgesetzbuches. Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 19: 1928, 577-97.

[589 Lucas, F.: Das neue dänische Strafgesetz. – Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 21: 1930, 641–6. [590

Lucas, F.: Die Analogie im dänischen Strafrecht. – Monatsschrift für Kriminalbiologie, 28: 1937, 231-4. [591

- Marcus, Franz: Das dänische Strafgesetzbuch vom 15. April 1930 in der Fassung der Bekanntmachung vom 24. Juni 1939. Nach dem Stande vom 1. April 1953. Walter de Gruyter, Berlin 1953. 75 p. (Sammlung ausserdeutscher Strafgesetzbücher 62). [592
- Marcus, Franz: Das dänische Kriminalgesetzbuch für Grönland vom 5. März 1954. Walter de Gruyter, Berlin 1955. 39 p. (Sammlung ausserdeutscher Strafgesetzbücher 68). [593
- Marcus, Franz: Das Strafrecht Dänemarks. Das ausländische Strafrecht der Gegenwart. Bd. 1. Berlin 1955, 67–207. [594
- Marcus, Franz: Das dänische Kriminalgesetzbuch für Grönland. Zeitschrift für die gesamte Strafrechtswissenschaft, 67: 1955, 323-43. [595
- Marcus, Franz: Das neue dänische Schwangerschaftsgesetz. Zugleich ein Bericht über neues dänisches Strafrecht. – Zeitschrift für die gesamte Strafrechtswissenschaft, 69: 1957, 339-53. [596]
- Marcus, Franz: Review of Nordisk Kriminalistisk Årsbok 1957. 1959. Monatsschrift für Kriminologie und Strafrechtsreform, 1960, 120–22. [597]
- Marcus, Franz: Bericht über die Entwicklung des Strafrechts in Dänemark 1957–1961. Neue Bestimmungen über bedingte Urteile, jugendliche Rechtsbrecher, Prostitution. – Zeitschrift für die gesamte Strafrechtswissenschaft, 74: 1962, 359–75. [598]
- Mittermaier, Wolfgang: Das dänische Strafgesetzbuch vom 15. April 1930. – Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 21: 1930, 552-3. [599]
- Mittermaier, W.: Dänisches Gesetz über Schwangerschaftsabbruch. Monatsschrift für Kriminalbiologie, 28: 1937, 572–5. [600
- Nielsen, Lars Nordskov: Droit pénal. Annuaire de législation francaise et étrangère, 7: 1958, 55-7. [601
- Nordisk kriminalistisk årsbok 1952/53 ff. Continuation of: De nordiska kriminalistföreningarnas årsbok 1936–1951/52. Stockholm 1937–53. (Contains introductions in English 1942/43 ff.) [602
- De nordiska kriminalistföreningarnas årsbok 1936–1951/52. Stockholm 1937–53. Continued as: Nordisk kriminalistisk årsbok 1952/53 ff. Stockholm 1954 ff. Contains introductions in French 1936–1940/41, incl., and in English 1942/43 ff. [603
- Rechnagel, Thomas: The maxim of Nulla poena sine lege. A historical and comparative legal study. Copenhagen 1959. 111 p. (Mim.). [604
- Schafer, Stephen: Restitution to victims of crime. Stevens, London 1960. 130 p. (Denmark 41-3). [605
- Siciliano, Saverio: L'errore di diritto nel sistema pènale danese. Archivio Penale. Edizioni Juris Domus, Rome 1961 Fasc. 5-6. 24 p. [606]
- Simson, Gerhard: Dritter Nordischer Kriminalistenkongress. Kopenhagen 3.-7. Juni 1952. – Zeitschrift für die gesamte Strafrechtswissenschaft, 65: 1953, 619-25.

- Strahl, Ivar: Aperçu de la législation pénale dans les pays scandinaves en 1949. – Revue de droit pénal et de criminologie, 30: 1950, 975-6. [608
- Strahl, Ivar: Aperçu sur le droit pénal dans les pays scandinaves en 1950. – Revue de droit pénal et de criminologie, 32: 1951/52, 146-8. [609
- Strahl, Ivar: Aperçu du droit pénal dans les pays scandinaves de 1951. – Revue de droit pénal et de criminologie. 33: 1952, 243-6.

– de 1952. 34: 1953/54, 49–50.

- de 1953-55. 37: 1956/57, 195-201. [610 Tetens, H.: Chronique danoise. - Revue pénitentiaire et de droit pénal, 81: 1957, 802-807. 87: 1963, 259-66. [611
- Torp, Carl: Remarques sur les travaux préliminaires d'un nouveau code pénal pour le Danemark. – Per il cinquantenario della "Rivista penale", 1925, 487-95.
- Vetli, Erik: To what extent does the protection of society require the existence and publicity of a register of convicted persons ("casier judiciaire") and how should both this register and the offender's restoration to full civic status be organized with a view to facilitating his social rehabilitation? Proceedings of the 12th international penal and penitentiary congress, 1950. Vol. 5, 1951, 437-41 (summary in French 442-3). [613
- Waaben, Knud: Det kriminelle forsæt (Criminal intent). København 1957. 373 p. (Summary in English 363-6.) [614
- Waaben, Knud: Droit pénal criminel. Annuaire de législation étrangère

1: 1938/49, 219-23. 2: 1950/51, 106-108. 3: 1952/54, 141-3. 4: 1955, 60-2. 6: 1957, 174-6 (Années 1956-57). 8: 1959, 138-9. 9: 1960, 132-5. [615]

- Yearbook of the Northern associations of criminalists 1944/45 ff. Continuation of: Yearbook of the Scandinavian criminologists' associations, 1942/43. [616]
- Yearbook of the Scandinavian criminologists' associations 1942/43. Continued as: Yearbook of the Northern associations of criminalists 1944/ 45 ff. Continuation of: Annuaire des associations de criminalistes nordiques, 1936-1940/41. See No. 563. [617

### B. TREATMENT OF OFFENDERS. PENOLOGY

Aude-Hansen, Carl: How is prison labour to be organized so as to yield both moral benefit and a useful social and economic return? Report. – Proceedings of 12th international penal and penitentiary congress 1950. Vol. 4, 1951, 379-89. (Summary in French 390-1.) [618
Berntsen, Karen and Christiansen, Karl O.: The resocialization of short-term offenders (with special reference to the Danish prison system).

- International review of criminal policy, 6: 1954, 25-39 (summary in French 40, in Spanish 41). [619

- Berntsen, Karen: The workhouse inmates. Statens Trykningskontor, Copenhagen 1955. 71 p. (Summary in English to report No. 102 on workhouse inmates.) [620
- Berntsen, Karen og Christiansen, Karl O.: Mandlige arresthusfanger i Københavns fængsler. En undersøgelse og et experiment (Short term prisoners in the prisons of Copenhagen. An investigation and an experiment). Publ. by Direktoratet for Fængselsvæsenet, Copenhagen 1955. 176 p. (Summary in English 168-73.) [621]
- Berntsen, Karen: Short-term prisoners. Summary. Société Internationale de Criminologie. Bulletin. 1960, 216-7. [622

Borgschmidt-Hansen, Kai: Should not some of the methods developed in the treatment of young offenders be extended to the treatment of adults? — Proceedings of the 12th international penal and penitentiary congress, 1950. Vol. 6, 1951, 289-99 (summary in French 300).

623

- Dehn, E.: On abolition of capital punishment. 3rd ed. Copenhagen 1929. 7 p. [624
- Ebeling, C.: Strafvollzug in Dänemark. Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 22: 1931, 385-90. [625
- European seminar on probation London 20-30 October 1952. United Nations, New York 1954, 144-8 (Probation and related measures in specific countries. Denmark). [626]
- Feldman, Wulff: Group psychotherapy with psychopaths at Herstedvester. – Société Internationale de Criminologie. Bulletin. 1960, 293-311. [627]
- Fenton, Norman: Observations of the correctional system of Denmark. Sacramento 1954. 130 p. [628
- Goll, August: Danemark. Aperçu du système pénitentiaire. Recueil de documents en matière pénale et pénitentiaire, 4: 1935, 129–216. [629]
- Halder, Nold: Das Gefängniswesen in Dänemark. Schweizerische Zeitschrift für Strafrecht, 47: 1933, 235-65. [630
- Hansen, Aage: What developments have there been in the penal treatment of juvenile offenders? – Proceedings of the 12th international penal and penitentiary congress 1950. Vol. 6, 1951, 45-53 (summary in French 54). [631
- Hansen, Asger: Treatment of educationally retarded offenders. Société Internationale de Criminologie. Bulletin. 1960, 312-9. [632
- Hansen, H. A., and Teilmann, K.: A treatment of criminal alcoholics in Denmark. – Quarterly journal of studies on alcohol, 15: 1954, 246– 87. [633
- Hegnby, Karl: Treatment in Danish borstals. Société Internationale de Criminologie. Bulletin. 1960, 227-31. [634

- Hertel, Axel: La maison de travail au Danemark. Recueil de documents en matière pénale et pénitentiaire, 8: 1939, 322-5. [635
- Hertel, Axel: Traitement et libération des délinquants d'habitude. – Proceeding of the 12th international penal and penitentiary congress, 1950. Vol. 4. 1951 261-75 (summary in English 276-7). [636
- Hurwitz, Stephan: Denmark. Survey of the penal system developments after 1935. – Recueil de documents en matière pénale et pénitentiaires, 14: 1949, 263-85. [637
- Hurwitz, Stephan: Conditional suspension of punishment and probationary supervision. – European seminar on probation. United Nations, New York 1954, 39-48. [638]
- Hye-Knudsen, A.: Probation and parole in Denmark. Société Internationale de Criminologie. Bulletin. 1960, 207–15. [639
- Hye-Knudsen, A.: The re-adaptation of prisoners to normal life in Denmark. – Publication of the International Penal and Penitentiary Foundation. Staempfli, Berne 1960, 319-26. [640
- Jacobsen, Otto: Treatment of criminal psychopaths in the detention institution and mental hospital at Nykøbing Seeland, Denmark. – Report on the 8th congress of Scandinavian psychiatrists 1946. Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1947, 42-53. (Acta psychiatrica et neurologica Scandinavica. Suppl. 47.) [641]
- Jensen, Cai: How should the conditional release of prisoners be regulated? – Proceedings of the 12th international penal and penitentiary Congress, 1950. Vol. 5, 1951, 257-64 (summary in French 265). [642]
- Kampmann, Erik: Notice sur l'organisation au Danemark de la surveillance des prisonniers liberés en vue de prévenir la récidive. – Recueil de documents en matière pénale et pénitentiaire, 3: 1933, 333-42.

[643

- Kampmann, Erik: Prisons and punishments in Denmark. Journal of criminal law and criminology, 25: 1934, 115-7. [644
- Le Maire, Louis: Danish experiences regarding the castration of sexual offenders. Journal of criminal law, criminology and police science, 47: 1956/57, 294-310. [645]
- Ludvigsen, Christian: Denmark. International review of criminal policy, 3: 1953, 97-102. 4°. (On medico-psychological and social examination of offenders.) [646
- Mittermaier, Wolfgang: Das Tagesbussensystem in Skandinavien. Zeitschrift für die gesamte Strafrechtswissenschaft. 55: 1935/36, 646– 54.
- Nagel, Heinrich: Die Sicherungsverwahrung in ihren Voraussetzungen nach deutschem, schwedischem, norwegischem und dänischem Recht vergleichend dargestellt. Rostock 1939. 93 p. (Deutsch-Nordische Schriftenreihe aus dem öffentlichen Recht 2.) [648]

Paludan-Müller, Bent: Parole. Theory and practice in the United States

of America and Denmark. A comparative study. New York 1958. 90 p. (Thesis, mim.) [649

- Paludan-Müller, Bent: About the treatment of habitual offenders in the "Workhouse" at Sdr. Omme. – Société Internationale de Criminologie. Bulletin. 1960, 232-5. [650
- Paludan-Müller, Bent: Prerelease treatment and aftercare as well as assistance to defendants of prisoners. General report. United Nations Department of Economic and Social Affairs, New York 1960. 79 p. (A/conf. 17/8. Second United Nations congress on the prevention of crime and the treatment of offenders London, 8-20 Aug. 1960. (Also in French and Spanish.) [651]
- Pausa, E.: Strafsystem und Strafvollzug in Dänemark. Österreichische Juristen-Zeitung. 15: 1960, 566. [652
- The penal system of Denmark. Prepared by the Danish Prison Administration. – Société Internationale de Criminologie. Bulletin. 1960, 187-203. [653]
- Petersen, H. W.: Leisure-time arrangements as part of the social rehabilitation of prisoners. – Publication of the International Penal and Penitentiary Foundation. Staempfli, Berne 1960, 177-82. [654]
- Practical results and financial aspects of adult probation in selected countries. United Nations, New York 1954. Denmark 39-44, 51 (table). [655
- Probation and related measures. United Nations, New York 1951. Denmark 79-83. [656
- Rafael, Carsten: The treatment of inmates in the Danish prisons. -Société Internationale de Criminologie. Bulletin. 1960, 218-26. [657
- Ravn, Jørgen: Ambulatory aftertreatment of patients discharged on trial. Acta psychiatrica et neurologica Scandinavica. Supplementum 106. Report on the 11th congress of Scandinavian psychiatrists in Oslo 1955. Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1956, 153-7. [658]
- Le régime pénitentiaire au Danemark 1933-1937. Recueil de documents en matière pénale et pénitentiaire, 9: 1940/41, 275-81. [659
- Reiter, P. J.: Treatment of psychopathic delinquents in Denmark. Journal of social therapy, 4: 1958, 16-25. [660
- Riismandel, V. J.: Punishments under the law of Denmark. Library of Congress, Law Library, Wash. 1955. 14 p. (Mim.) [661
- Royal commission on capital punishment. Report. London 1953. 506 p. (Also material concerning Danish criminal law, see p. 502.) [662
- Sachs, Jan: Zur Behandlung von kriminellen Psychopathen in Dänemark. – Monatsschrift für Kriminologie und Strafrechtsreform, 38: 1955, 69-82. [663
- Sachs, Jan: Introducing modern specialized treatment in an old prison. - Société Internationale de Criminologie. Bulletin. 1960, 330-40.
  - [664
- Schmidt, Max: Criteria governing the selection of offenders for examination. – International review of criminal policy, 3: 1953, 13-19. 4°.

[665

- Strahl, Ivar: Les jours amendes dans les pays nordiques. Revue de science criminelle et de droit pénal comparé 1951, 59-67. [666
- Stürup, Georg K.: A psychiatric establishment for investigation, training and treatment of psychologically abnormal criminals. – Acta psychiatrica et neurologica Scandinavica, 21: 1946, 781-93. [667
- Stürup, Georg K.: Treatment of criminal psychopaths. Report on the 8th congress of Scandinavian psychiatrists 1946. Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1947, 21-33 (Acta psychiatrica et neurologica Scandinavica. Supplementum 47). [668]
- Stürup, Georg K.: Treatment of psychopatic criminals in Denmark. Danish psychiatry. Copenhagen 1948, 44-55. [669
- Stürup, Georg K.: The psychiatric service in prisons. Select papers on penal and penitentiary affairs. Bulletin of the International Penal and Penitentiary Commission. Berne 1950, 22-5. [670
- Stürup, Georg K.: How can psychiatric science be applied in prison.
  Proceedings of the 12th international penal and penitentiary congress, 1950. Vol. 2, 1951, 59-66, Vol. 3, 1951, 165-84 (English and French), 269-78 (summary in French, 279).
- Stürup, Georg K.: The treatment of criminal psychopaths in Herstedvester. – The British journal of medical psychology, 25: 1952, 31-8.
- Stürup, Georg K.: Sexual offenders and their treatment in Denmark and the other Scandinavian countries. – International review of criminal policy, 4: 1953, 1-19. 4°. [673]
- Stürup, Georg K.: A problem of simulation in modern legal psychiatry. – Acta psychiatrica et neurologica Scandinavica, 30: 1955, 343-50.

[674

- Stürup, Georg K.: L'établissement pour psychopathes de Herstedvester. – Revue de science criminelle et de droit pénal comparé, 13: 1958, 593-8. [675]
- Stürup, Georg K.: Teamwork in the treatment of psychopatic criminals with special reference to Herstedvester. – Bulletin de la Société International de Criminologie, 1958, 299-362. [676]
- Stürup, Georg K.: The observations of prisoners in Denmark. Herstedvester papers 1942-1957. Herstedvester 1958, 1-12. [677
- Stürup, Georg K.: Group therapy with chronic criminals. Herstedvester papers 1942-1957. Herstedvester 1958, 13-20. [678
- Stürup, Georg K.: The treatment of sexual offenders. Société Internationale de Criminologie. Bulletin. 1960, 320-9. [679]
- Stürup, G. K.: The observation of prisoners in Denmark. Publication of the International Penal and Penitentiary Foundation. Stämpfli, Berne 1960, 29-39. [680
- Tetens, Hans: To what extent can open institutions take the place of the traditional prison? — Proceedings of the 12th international penal and penitentiary congress 1950. Vol. 4, 1951, 147-60 (Summary in French 161-2). [681

- Tetens, Hans: The training of prisoners in open institutions in Denmark. – Select papers on penal and penitentiary affairs. Bulletin of the International Penal and Penitentiary Commission. Berne 1950, 11-22. [682
- Tetens, Hans: Le système pénitentiaire du Danemark. Les grands systèmes penitentiaires. Tome 2. Exposé systematique du régime appliqué dans les differents pays. Publié sous la direction de Louis Hugueney et Marc Ancel. Sirey, Paris 1955, 55-86 (Travaux et recherches de l'Institut de droit comparé de l'Université de Paris. 10). [683
- Tetens, Hans: Le système pénal au Danemark. Revue pénitentiaire et de droit pénal, 80: 1956, 379-98. [684
- Tetens, Hans: Le système pénal danois. Bulletin de l'administration pénitentiaire, Brussels, 12: 1958, 91-133. [685
- Tetens, Hans: Penal and correctional institutions: character, classification, organization and related questions. Summary. – Société Internationale de Criminologie. Bulletin. 1960, 204-6. [686]
- Trolle, Jørgen: Short term imprisonment and its alternatives. Proceedings of the 12th international penal and penitentiary congress 1950. Vol. 5. 1951, 171-3 (summary in French 174). [687
- Trommer, Harry: Todesurteile in Dänemark in zwei Jahrzehnten. Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 20: 1929, 755–6. [688
- Waaben, Knud: Punishment and treatment in Danish criminal law. Bulletin de la Société Internationale de Criminologie, 1960, 255-63. [689]
- Worm, A. A.: Present principles for the classification of prisoners in Denmark. – Proceedings of the 12th international penal and penitentiary congress 1950. Vol. 3, 1951, 443-54 (summary in French 455). [690

#### C. CRIMINOLOGY

- Baebenroth, Erhard: Statistische Übersicht über die Kriminalität der nordischen Länder nach dem Kriege. – Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 26: 1935, 506–11. [691
  Christiansen, Karl O.: Theft with atypical motive. – Acta psychiatrica et neurologica Scandinavica, 21: 1946, 195–210. [692
- Christiansen, Karl O.: International criminal statistics. Nordisk Tidsskrift for Kriminalvidenskab, 38: 1950, 1-11. [693
- Christiansen, Karl O.: Mandlige landssvigere i Danmark under besættelsen (Male traitors in Denmark during the occupation. København 1950. 174 + 32 p. (With summary in English 153-74.) [694
  Christiansen, Karl O.: Crime in Denmark from 1937 to 1948. Bulletin
- of the International Penal and Penitentiary Commission. Berne, 14: 1951, 537-74. (Special number with title: The effects of war on criminality.) [695]

Christiansen, Karl O.: Landssvigerkriminaliteten i sociologisk belysning (The crime of treason from a sociological point of view). Copenhagen 1955. 348+60 p. (Diss., with summary in English 335-48). [696]

Christiansen, Karl O.: Industrialization and urbanization in relation to crime and juvenile delinquency. — International review of criminal policy, No. 16: 1960, 3-8 (summary in French 8-10, in Spanish 10-12). [697

- Dickmeiss, P.: On female criminality during the climacteric. Acta psychiatrica et neurologica, 21: 1946, 217-31. [698
- Doleisch, Wolfgang: Kriminalpolitische Erfahrungen aus einem Studienaufenthalt in England, Schweden und Dänemark. – Österreichische Juristenzeitung, 13: 1958, 420-22. [699]
- Fremming, Kurt H.: Criminal frequency in a Danish rural area. Acta psychiatrica et neurologica, 21: 1946, 257-74. [700
- Hurwitz, Stephan: Criminality and pathology. Acta psychiatrica et neurologica, 21: 1946, 375-7. [701
- Hurwitz, Stephan: Criminology. With a foreword by Thorsten Sellin. Copenhagen 1952. 442 p. (Italian ed. 1954, Spanish ed. 1956.) [702

Jersild, Jens: Boy prostitution. G.E.C. Gad, Copenhagen 1956. 104 p. [703

- Kemp, Tage: Prostitution. An investigation of its causes, especially with regard to hereditary factors. Transl. by E. M. W. Kornerup. Copenhagen 1936. 253 p. 4°. [704]
- Kjærsgaard, Hans Christian: Zur Frage der falschen Selbstbeschuldigung. – Monatsschrift für Kriminalbiologie und Strafrechtsreform, 33: 1942, 125-50. [705]
- Larsen, J. Finn: On the diagnosis of psychopathy in criminals. Report on the 8th congress of Scandinavian psychiatrists, 1946. Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1947, 54-63 (Acta psychiatrica et neurologica Scandinavica. Supplementum 47). [706]
- Le Maire, Louis: L'importance de la littérature comme facteur criminogène. – Acta psychiatrica et neurologica. Vol. 21: 1946, 585-93.

707

McWhinnie: Denmark – a new look at crime. Publ. by the Institute for the Study and Treatment of Delinquency, London 1961. 24 p. [708]

- Mittermaier, W.: Kriminalpolitisches aus Skandinavien. Monatsschrift für Kriminalbiologie, 30: 1939, 58-64. [709
- Molfenter, Werner: Die Bekämpfung der Trunkenheit im deutschen Strafrecht im Vergleich mit neueren ausländischen Strafgesetzen insbesondere dem italienischen Codice penale und dem dänischen Borgerlig Straffelov. Würzburg 1936. 55 p. (Diss. Erlangen). [710
- Nelson, Alvar: Sexual offences and sexual offenders in Denmark. –
   Sexual offences. A report of the Cambridge Department of Criminal
   Science. London 1957, 478–92 (English studies in criminal science.
   9).

- Ninth international course in criminology (Copenhagen 7-17 October 1959). The treatment of criminals as carried out in Denmark with special emphasis on the treatment of psychopathological cases at Herstedvester. – Société internationale de Criminologie. Bulletin 1960, 175-346. [712
- The prevention of juvenile delinquency in selected European countries. United Nations, New York 1955. 156 p. (Inter alia Denmark). [713
- Radzinowicz, Leon: In search of criminology. Heinemann, London 1961. 254 p. (Denmark, 109–13). [714
- Reistrup, Herman: Hypnose und Kriminalität. Report on the 8th congress of Scandinavian psychiatrists, 1946. Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1947, 638–48. (Acta psychiatrica et neurologica Scandinavica. Suppl. 47.) [715]
- Reiter, P. J.: Antisocial or criminal acts and hypnosis. A case study. Copenhagen 1958. 219 p. (With reference to a murder case.) [716
- Siciliano, Saverio: Risultati preliminari di un'indagine sull' omicidio in Danimarca. – La scuola positiva. 4. serie. Anno 3. Milano 1961, 718-29. [717
- Stürup, Georg K.: Sex offenses. The Scandinavian experience. Law and contemporary problems. Sex offenses. Duke University 1960, 361– 75. [718]
- Trommer, Harry, Zur Rückfallskriminalität in Dänemark. Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 21: 1930, 435-7. [719
- Waaben, Knud: Die kriminologische Bedeutung der Trunkenheit bei bestimmten Delikten und die Wirksamkeit der Trinkerheilanstalt. – Die Behandlung der Trunkenheit im Strafrecht. Alfred Metzner Verlag, Frankf. a. M. 1960, 7–16. (Arbeiten zur Rechtsvergleichung Bd. 8.)
- Wolf, Preben: Crime and social class in Denmark. The British journal of criminology, 3: 1962, 5-17. [721

### IX. PUBLIC LAW

#### A. PUBLIC LAW IN GENERAL

- Arneson, B. A.: The democratic monarchies of Scandinavia. 2nd ed. New York 1949. 294 p. [722
- Christensen, Bent: Droit public. Annuaire de législation française et étrangère, 1958. Paris 1959, 50-3. [723]

Freedom from arbitrary arrest, detention and exile. Yearbook on human rights. First supplementary volume. United Nations, New York 1959. 249 p. (Denmark, 75-81). [724

Hansen, Henrik: Das öffentliche Recht Dänemarks. 1914-21. – Jahrbuch des öffentlichen Rechts. Bd. 11. Tübingen 1922, 88-102. [725]

- Himmelstrup, Jens: Das öffentliche Recht Dänemarks 1922-1931. Jahrbuch des öffentlichen Rechts, 20: 1932, 338-59. [726]
- Himmelstrup, Jens: Das öffentliche Recht Dänemarks von 1932 bis 1953. – Jahrbuch des öffentlichen Rechts der Gegenwart, 40: 1955. 255–67. [727
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: The community of the future. Copenhagen and Oxford 1950. 828 p. [728
- Larsen, Jørgen Elkjær: How Denmark is governed. Scandinavia. Past and present. Vol. 3, 1959, 67-76. [729
- Marcus, Franz: Dänemark. Ausführungsgesetze zur dänischen Verfassung. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches öffentliches Recht und Völkerrecht, 16: 1955, 330–6. (1. Ombudsmand. 2. Reichsgericht. 3. Rechtspflege.) [730
- Nielsen, Lars Nordskov: Droit public. Annuaire de législation étrangère. 3: 1952/54, 130-7. 4: 1955, 56-7. [731
- Ross, Alf: Qu'est-ce que la démocratie? Revue du droit public et de la science politique en France et à l'Étranger. Paris 1950, 29-42. [732]
- Ross, Alf: Why democracy? Cambr., Mass., 1952. 8+249 p. [733
- Ross, Alf: Delegation of power. The American journal of comparative law, 7: 1958, 1-22. [734
- Ross, Alf: On the concepts "State" and "State organs" in constitutional law. – Scandinavian studies in law. Stockholm, 5: 1961, 111-29. (From: "Statsretslige studier" (Studies in constitutional law), Copenhagen 1959, 7-22.) [735]
- Sand, E.: Über wichtige staatsrechtliche Neuerungen in Dänemark. Deutsches Verwaltungsblatt, 69: 1954, 767-8. [736]
- Sørensen, Max. See Yearbook on human rights for 1947 ff. United Nations, New York 1949 ff. (Notes on the development of human rights in Denmark.) [737
- Sørensen, Max: Problèmes politiques contemporains du Danemark. Revue française de science politique, 2: 1952, 737-51. [738]
- Yearbook on human rights
  - for 1947. United Nations, New York 1949, 86-7. for 1948. United Nations, New York 1950, 55-7. for 1949. United Nations, New York 1951, 57. for 1950. United Nations, New York 1952, 67-8.
  - for 1951. United Nations, New York 1953, 68.
  - for 1952. United Nations, New York 1954, 47-8.
  - for 1953. United Nations, New York 1955, 62-7.
  - for 1954. United Nations, New York 1957, 76-7.
  - for 1955. United Nations, New York 1958, 45-6.
  - for 1956. United Nations, New York 1959, 50.
  - for 1959. United Nations, New York 1961, 85-6.
  - (Notes on the developments of human rights in Denmark prepared by Max Sørensen). [739

### B. CONSTITUTIONAL LAW

### 1. In general

- Anderson, Stanley V.: Article 20 of Denmark's new constitution. The American journal of international law, 50: 1956, 654-9. [740]
- Braunias, Karl: Das parlamentarische Wahlrecht. Ein Handbuch über die Bildung der gesetzgebenden Körperschaften in Europa. 1. Bd. Das Wahlrecht in den einzelnen Staaten. Walter de Gruyter, Berlin 1932. 640 p. (Dänemark 43-74). (Beiträge zum ausländischen öffentlichen Recht und Völkerrecht. 18.) [741]
- Campion, Lord, et Lidderdale, D. W. S.: La procédure parlementaire en Europe. Étude comparée. Armand Colin, Paris 1955. 247 p. (Danemark 53-68). (Cahiers de la Fondation nationale des sciences politiques 73.) (Transl. of European parliamentary procedure. A comparative handbook. London 1953. 270 p.) [742]
- Castberg, Frede: Verfassungsgerichtsbarkeit in Norwegen und Dänemark. – Verfassungsgerichtsbarkeit in der Gegenwart. Länderberichte und Rechtsvergleichung. Carl Heymanns Verlag, Cologne 1962, 417– 38. (Beiträge zum ausländischen öffentlichen Recht und Völkerrecht 36.) [743]
- Constitution du Royaume de Danemark du 5 juin 1953 et Loi de succession au trône du 27 mars 1953. – Revue du droit public et de la science politique, 60: 1954, 77-85. [744]
- Constitution of Denmark. Amos J. Peaslee: Constitutions of nations. 2nd. ed. Vol. 1. The Hague 1956, 730-46. [745]
- The Constitutional Act. Denmark. Publ. by The Royal Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Copenhagen 1961, 119-29. [746]
- The Constitution of the Kingdom of Denmark Act 5th June 1953 and the Succession to the Throne Act 27th March 1953. Publ. by the Bureau of the "Folketing". Copenhagen 1950. 12 p. [747]
- Constitution du Royaume de Danemark du 5 juin 1953 et Loi de succession au trône du 27 mars 1953. J. H. Schultz, Copenhagen 1953. 12 p. [748]
- Deister, Wilhelm: Staatsoberhaupt und Regierungschef nach der Weimarer Verfassung, dem Bonner Grundgesetzt und den Verfassungen der nordischen Königreiche. Marburg 1955. 113 p. (Diss., in typescript.) [749]
- Fusilier, Raymond: Les monarchies parlementaires. Étude sur les systèmes de gouvernement. Paris 1960. 657 p. (Danemark, 291-341). [750
- Harder, Erik: La constitution danoise de 1953. Revue internationale des sciences administratives, 22: 1956, 115-24. [751
- Heckscher, Kay: La monarchie parlementaire danoise après la révision constitutionnelle de 1953. – Revue internationale d'histoire politique et constitutionnelle, 4: 1954, 135-44. [752

<sup>15-631245</sup> Scand. Stud. in Law VII

- Kath, Werner: Die geschichtliche Entwicklung und gegenwärtige Gestalt des dänischen Regierungssystems, eine staatsrechtsvergleichende Studie.
  L. Röhrscheid, Bonn 1938. 8+87 p. (Bonner rechtswissenschaftliche Abhandlungen 40). (Diss.) [753
- Marcus, Franz: Dänemark. Die dänische Verfassung vom 5. Juni 1953 und das Thronfolgegesetz vom 27. März 1953. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches öffentliches Recht und Völkerrecht, 15: 1953/54, 211-17. [754]

Nielsen, Lars Nordskov: Droit constitutionnel. – Annuaire de législation étrangère. 1: 1938/49, 201-208. 2: 1950/51, 95-9. [756

Petrén, Gustaf: Quelques problèmes constitutionnels actuels dans les pays nordiques. – Revue internationale de droit comparé, 10: 1958, 719-34. [757

Robert, Jacques: Danemark. La constitution du 5 juin 1953. – Revue du droit public et de la science politique, 60: 1954, 64-76. (Constitution du Royaume de Danemark du 5 juin 1953, 77-84. Loi de succession au trône du 27 mars 1953, 85.) [758]

Thronfolgegesetz vom 27. März 1953. – Dänemark. Hrsg. v. dem Kgl. Dänischen Ministerium des Äusseren, Copenhagen 1962, 130. [759

Verfassung des Königreichs Dänemark. – Dänemark. Hrsg. v. dem Kgl. Dänischen Ministerium des Äusseren, Copenhagen 1962, 121-30. [760

Wendt, Frantz: Constitutional history. – Denmark. Publ. by the Royal Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Copenhagen 1961, 111-19. [761

### 2. Law of citizenship

- Andersen, Poul und Knud Larsen: Das Staatsangehörigkeitsrecht der Königreiche Dänemark und Island. – Das Recht der Staatsangehörigkeit der europäischen und der aussereuropäischen Staaten. 1. Berlin 1940, 31–56. (Rechtsverfolgung im internationalen Verkehr Bd. 7.)
- [762 Ausländisches Staatsangehörigkeitsrecht. Alfred Metzner Verlag, Frankf. a. M. 1955, 192 p. (Dänemark, Norwegen, Schweden, 39-45). (Kleine Fachbibliothek für Verwaltung und Recht Bd. 4.) [763
- Citizenship Act No. 252 of 27 May 1950. Laws concerning nationality. United Nations, New York 1955 (United Nations legislative series), 121-5. [764
- Larsen, Knud: Die nordische Zusammenarbeit auf dem Gebiete des Staatsangehörigkeitsrechts. – Le Nord. Revue internationale des pays du Nord, 5: 1942, 65-81. [765]
- Laws concerning nationality. United Nations, New York 1955. 594 p. (United Nations legislative series) (Denmark, 121-5). [766]
- Marcus, Franz: Neues skandinavisches Staatsangehörigkeitsrecht. Monatsschrift für deutsches Recht, 5: 1951, 662-4. [767

- Marcus, Franz: Das Staatsangehörigkeitsrecht der nordischen Staaten Dänemark, Norwegen, Schweden, Finnland, Island. Bearbeiter für Schweden: Josef Fischler. – Sammlung geltender Staatsangehörigkeitsgesetze. Bd. 8. Frankf. a. M. 1952. 171 p. – Nachtrag. Frankf. a. M. 1955. 22 p. [768]
- Nationality of married women. Rev. ed. United Nations, New York 1954, 35-6 (Danish Nationality Act). [769
- Skandinavische Staatsangehörigkeitsgesetze. Übers. v. Dieter Schneider. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 17: 1952, 100–108 (Dänisches Gesetz Nr. 252 vom 27.5.1950, 100–105).

[770

- Schneider, Dieter: Das neue Staatsangehörigkeitsrecht der Nordischen Länder. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 17: 1952, 86–99. [771
- Staatsangehörigkeitsgesetz Nr. 252 vom 27. Mai 1950, in Kraft seit 1. Januar 1951. – Bergmann, A.: Internationales Ehe- und Kindschaftsrecht. 3. Aufl. Bd. 1. Frankf. a. M. 1952 ff. (Looseleaf. Dänemark 2-5.)

### 3. The Schleswig question

- Andersen, Holger: Le Danemark et la minorité allemand du Slesvig du Nord. – Le Nord. Revue internationale des pays du Nord, 1: 1938, 59-74. [773]
- Berlin, Knud: Statut juridiques des personnes comprises avec leur déscendance par l'article XIX de la Paix de Vienne. — Manuel historique de la question du Slesvig 1906-1938. Reitzel, Copenhague et Pedone, Paris 1939, 68-90. [774]
- Biehl, Hans-Heinrich: Minderheitenschulrecht in Nord- und Südschleswig. Hansischer Gildenverlag, Hamburg 1960. 131 p. (Veröffentlichungen des Instituts für internationales Recht an der Universität Kiel. 44.) [775
- Bloch, Joachim-Dieter: Die Rechtsfolgen der Eingliederung Nordschleswigs in den dänischen Staatsverband. – Handbuch zur schleswigschen Frage von L. Alnor. Bd. 3. Ergänzungsheft. Neumünster 1934. 136 p. [776]
- Bunch-Jensen, K.: Législation danoise après 1920 par suite de la réintegration au Danemark du Slesvig du Nord. — Manuel historique de la question du Slesvig 1906–1938 par Franz von Jessen. Copenhagen-Paris 1939, 549–627. [777

Büscher, Alfred: Schweden-Norwegen und die schleswigholsteinische Frage in den Jahren 1848-63. Greifswald 1927. 171 p. (Diss.) [778 Cohn, Georg: Les sans patrie. – Manuel historique de la question du

15\*-631245

Slesvig 1906–1938. Reitzel, Copenhague et Pedone, Paris 1939, 91–101. [779

- Finch, George A.: Danish legislation protecting minorities. The American journal of international law, 18: 1924, 789-90. [780
- Garmisch, Hermann: Die Deutsch-Dänische Frage und der Versailler Friedensvertrag. Unter besonderer Berücksichtigung des Selbstbestimmungsrechts. Würzburg 1924. 124 p. 4° (Diss., in typescript). [781
- The German minority in South Jutland. A summary of the Danish legislation. Published by the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Copenhagen 1924. 16 p. (Also in French and German.) [782]
- Hanholz, Heinrich: Nationalitätsprinzip und Selbstbestimmungsrecht der Völker als Leitfaden der französischen Politik in der schleswigholsteinischen Frage 1863/64. Borna-Leipzig 1926. 83 p. (Diss., Münster). [783
- Hecher, Hellmuth: Schleswig und die Entwicklung des Selbstbestimmungsrechtes und des Minderheitenschutzes. Hamburg 1948. 197 p. (Diss.) [784]
- Hedtoft, Hans und Edert, Eduard: Das nationale Selbstbestimmungsrecht in Südschleswig. Ein Meinungsaustausch. Gesammelt und hrsg. v. Sydslesvigsk Udvalg af 5. Maj 1945. Copenhagen 1952. 39 p. [785]
- Héraud, Guy: Les accords germano-danois de minorités. Mélanges en l'honneur de Gilbert Gidel. Sirey, Paris 1961, 313-23. [786]
- Jäckel, Eberhard: Die Schleswig-Frage seit 1945. Dokumente zur Rechtsstellung der Minderheiten beiderseits der deutsch-dänischen Grenze. Alfred Metzner Verlag, Frankf. a. M. 1959. 152 p. (Dokumente 29. Forschungsstelle für Völkerrecht und ausländisches öffentliches Recht der Universität Hamburg.) [787]
- Jessen, Tage: The parliamentary representation of minorities with special reference to the South Sleswegians and the provincial parliament in Kiel. – Danish outlook, 7: 1954, 849–53. [788]
- Kölln, Hans-Jürgen: Minderheitenschulrecht in Nord- und Südschleswig. Vergleichende Darstellung der dänischen und preussisch-deutschen Minderheitsbestimmungen. Leipzig 1932. 150 p. (Archiv für Beiträge zum deutschen, schweizerischen und skandinavischen Privatrecht 11.)
  - [789
- Kunz, Josef L.: Die völkerrechtliche Option. Bd. 1. Breslau 1925. 328 p. (Schleswig 283-94.) [790
- Marcus, Franz: Ist Südschleswig ein zum Volksbegehren nach Art. 29 Abt. 2 des Grundgesetzes berechtigter Gebietsteil? – Archiv des öffentlichen Rechts, 76: 1950, 290–96. [791
- Matzen, Henning: Die nordschleswigsche Optantenfrage. Gyldendal, Copenhagen 1904. 204 p. [792
- Matzen, Henning: La questions des optants slesvicois. Manuel historique de la question du Slesvig. Gyldendal, Copenhague et Picard, Paris 1906, 177-295. [793

- Matzen, Henning: Das Indigenatrecht im Wiener-Frieden. Widerlegung der Schrift des Herrn Oberlandesgerichtsrates Dr. Otto Brandt in Kiel. G. E. C. Gad, Copenhagen 1906. 154 p. [794
- Moltesen, L.: La Société des Nations et la protection des minorités. Les origines et l'œuvres de la Société des Nations. Publié par Rask-Ørstedfondet sous la direction de P. Munch. Tome 2, 1924, 295-323. [795]
- Pape, Albert: Die schleswigsche Frage und der Versuch ihrer Lösung im Versailler Vertrag. Paderborn 1930. 7+79 p. (Diss., Würzburg). [796]
- Rühlmann, Paul: Das Schulrecht der deutschen Minderheiten in Europa. Eine Sammlung der gesetzlichen Bestimmungen. Breslau 1926. 698 p. (Dänemark 1-8). [797
- Statement of Sept. 26, 1949 by the government in Schleswig-Holstein concerning the position of the Danish minority ("The Kiel Agreement"). – Acta Scandinavica juris gentium, 19: 1949, 49–51. [798]
- Svane, Erik Bondo et Sørensen, Max: Les conventions contractées entre le Danemark et l'Allemagne du fait de la réunion du Slesvig du Nord avec le Danemark. – Manuel historique de la question du Slesvig 1906–1938. Reitzel, Copenhague et Pedone, Paris 1939, 628–34. [799
- Tardieux, André en collaboration avec F. de Jessen: Le Slesvig et la paix. Janvier 1919 janvier 1920. Paris 1928. 393 p. [800
- Thaysen, Oscar: Der Artikel XIX des Wiener Friedensvertrages vom 30. Oktober 1864 in seiner rechtlichen Bedeutung für die nordschleswigsche Optanten-, Optantenkinder- und Staatenlosenfrage. Berlin 1918. 59 p. (Diss., Greifswald.) [801
- Thorsøe, Alex: Principaux actes royaux relatifs aux rapports du duché de Slesvig avec la couronne danoise. – Manuel historique de la question du Slesvig. Glydendal, Copenhague et Picardt, Paris, 1906, 77-86. [802
- Traité de paix signé à Prague le 23 août 1866. Manuel historique de la question du Slesvig. Gyldendal, Copenhague et Picard, Paris, 1906, 309-13. [803
- Uldall, Erik: Die Südschleswig-Frage seit 1945. Chronologie und Dokumentenzusammenstellung. Hamburg 1951. 36 p. (Hektographierte Veröffentlichungen der Forschungsstelle für Völkerrecht und ausländisches öffentliches Recht der Universität Hamburg.) [804
- Ursprung und Geschichte des Artikels V des Prager Friedens. Die deutschen Akten zur Frage der Teilung Schleswigs (1863–1879). Hrsg.
  v. Fritz Hähnsen. Bd. 1–2. Breslau 1929. (Veröffentlichungen der Schleswig-Holsteinischen Universitätsgesellschaft 21<sup>1–2</sup>. Schriften der Baltischen Kommission zu Kiel XV, 1–2.)
- Wolff, Gerhard: Die Nordschleswig-Frage und der Versailler Vertrag. Frankf. a. M. 1939. 107 p. (Diss., Greifswald.) [806

### 4. The Faroe Islands

- Act respecting the home government of the Faroe Islands. Act No. 137 of 23 March 1948. — Yearbook on human rights for 1948. United Nations, New York 1950, 55-57. [807
- Gesetz über die Selbstverwaltung der Färöer vom 23. März 1948. Zeitschrift für ausländisches öffentliches Recht und Völkerrecht, 20: 1959/60, 264–70. [808
- Patursson, Joannes: Die Färöerfrage. Die Färinger, eine nordische Minderheit und ein norrönes Volk. Königsberg 1932. 66 p. (Öffentlichrechtliche Vorträge und Schriften. Heft 11.) [809
- Veiter, Theodor: Die Autonomie der Färöer. Zeitschrift für ausländisches öffentliches Recht und Völkerrecht 20: 1959/60, 243-64 mit Gesetz über die Selbstverwaltung der Färöer vom 23. März 1948, 264-70. [810
- Veiter, Theodor: Die Färöer und ihre Autonomie. Europa ethnica, 18: 1961, 55-74 (English summary 74-76). [811
- Veiter, Theodor: Das Selbstverwaltungsprogramm für die Färöer. Theodor Veiter: Nationale Autonomi. Vienna 1938. [812

#### C. Administrative law

#### 1. General and miscellaneous works

Act (No. 119-1938) on hospitalization of mental patients. – Danish psychiatry. Det Schönbergske Forlag, Copenhagen 1948, 20-25. [813

- Andersen, Poul: Ungültige Verwaltungsakte mit besonderer Berücksichtigung der Ungültigkeitsgründe. Übers. von Walther Pappenheim. Mit einem Geleitwort von Richard Thoma. Leipzig 1927. X+419 p. (Transl. of the author's dissertation 1924.) [814
- Andersen, Poul et Bent Christensen: Le Conseil d'Etat et le droit administratif danois. – Le Conseil d'Etat. Livre jubilaire. Recueil Sirey, Paris 1952, 595–9. [815]
- Bankgesetz (Nr. 122) vom 15. April 1930. Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 4: 1930, 693–703. (Transl. by Curt Menzel. See now Act No. 169 of June 15, 1956.) [816
- Brun, A. A.: The civil servant in Denmark. Personnel administration, 14: 1951, 18-25. [817
- Christensen, Bent: Nævn og råd (Boards and commissions). Copenhagen 1958. 477 p. (Diss., with summary in English 451-7). [818
- Denant, Henry: La nouvelle loi sur la presse au Danemark. Cahiers de la presse, 1938, 405-10. [819
- Dietzmann, Bernhard: Kirche und Staat in Dänemark. Berlin 1939. 194 p. 4º (Diss., Leipzig; in typescript). [820

- Le droit de rectification dans la nouvelle législation danoise (Loi du 13 avril 1938, arts. 9-11). — Cahiers de la presse, 1938, 659-61. (Text of arts. 9-11.)
- Das Gesetz Nr. 264 über Volksbüchereien vom 27. Mai 1950 wie durch die Gesetze Nr. 132 vom 25. Mai 1956 und Nr. 87 vom 21. März 1959 abgeändert. Hrsg. von Statens Bibliotekstilsyn. Dansk Bibliografisk Kontor, Copenhagen 1961. 9 p. [822
- Hampel, Gustav: Einwanderungsgesetzgebung und innereuropäische Wanderung. Die rechtlichen Regelungen der Zulassung ausländischer Arbeitsnehmer in fünfzehn europäischen Staaten. Institut für Weltwirtschaft, Kiel 1957. 451 p. (Denmark 114-35.) [823]
- Harder, Erik: Problèmes de la confédération administrative nordique. – Revue internationale des sciences administratives, 19: 1953, 710–14. [824]
- Harder, Erik: Des frontières à la competence des fonctionnaires au Danemark. – Revue internationale des sciences administratives, 22: 1956, no. 4, 5-15. (Summary in English p. 16.) [825]
- Herlitz, Nils: Die gegenwärtige Lage der Verwaltung und der Stand der verwaltungswissenschaftlichen Forschung in den skandinavischen Ländern. – Verwaltungsarchiv, 48: 1957, 309-23. [826]
- Holm, Alex: Danish local government. American political science review, 50: 1956, 1117-18. [827

Hooven, Eckart van: Grundzüge und Grundprobleme des auswärtigen Dienstes in Skandinavien. Hamburg 1955. 219 p. (Diss., in typescript.) [828]

- Humes, Samuel and Martin, Eileen M.: The structure of local governments throughout the world. Nijhoff, The Hague 1961. 449 p. (Denmark 256-60). [829]
- Hvass, Frants: Les instruments de la réforme administrative au Danemark. – Revue internationale des sciences administratives, 20: 1954, 849-51. [830

Instructions sur le service des affaires étrangères du Danemark du 21 septembre 1932. Levin & Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1933. 443 p.

Instructions for the Danish foreign service of Sept. 21, 1932. Levin & Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1933. 428 p. [832

831

- Instruktion für den dänischen auswärtigen Dienst vom 21. September 1932. Levin und Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1933. 470 p. [833
- Jensen, Carl P.: Town planning. Denmark. Publ. by the Royal Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Copenhagen 1961, 357-63. [834
- Larsen, Jørgen Elkjær: Central and local government. Denmark. Publ. by the Royal Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Copenhagen 1961, 141-6. [835]
- Larsen, Jørgen Elkjær: Staats- und Gemeindeverwaltung. Dänemark. Hrsg. vom Kgl. Dänischen Ministerium des Äusseren, Copenhagen 1962, 143-8. [836]

Lepps, Maffi: The double-budget system in the Scandinavian countries. – Public finance. Finances publiques, 5: 1950, 137-46. (Summary in French 146-7.) [837

Loi no 264 du 27 mai 1950 relative aux bibliothèques publiques du Danemark, modifiée par la loi no 132 du 25 mai 1956 et par la loi no 87 du 21 mars 1959. Publié par Statens Bibliotekstilsyn. Dansk Bibliografisk Kontor. Copenhagen 1961. 10 p. [838]

Madsen-Mygdal, N. P.: Das Devisenrecht Dänemarks. Basle 1942. 80 p. [839]

Madsen-Mygdal, N. P.: [Le contrôle des changes en] Danemark. – Le contrôle des changes. Ses répercussions sur les institutions juridiques. Étude de droit comparé. Recueil Sirey, Paris 1955, 166-72 (Travaux et recherches de l'Institut de droit comparé de l'Université de Paris. 11). [840]

Madsen-Mygdal, N. P.: The Bretton Woods Agreement article VII, sect. 2 (b). – Acta Scandinavica juris gentium, 25: 1955, 63-77. [841

Marcus, Franz: Grunderwerb in Dänemark. – Internationale Wirtschafts-Briefe, 1960, Nr. 22, 15–22. [842

Marcus, Franz: Erwerb von Grundeigentum durch Ausländer in Dänemark. – Aussenwirtschaftsdienst des Betriebs-Beraters, 1960, 163-6. [843]

Marschall, A. H.: Local government in Sweden and Denmark. – Journal of African administration, 9: 1957, 37-41. [844

Meyer, Poul: Remarques sur la terminologie administrative. – Revue internationale des sciences administratives, 20: 1954, 142-8. (Summary in English 148.) [845]

Meyer, Poul: Staff and line. – Revue internationale des sciences administratives, 21: 1955, 9-28. (Summary in French 28-29.) [846]

Meyer, Poul: Administrative organization. A comparative study of the organization of public administration. London and Copenhagen 1957. 323 p. [847]

Meyer, Poul: The administrative aspects of the constitutions of the Northern Countries. – Nordisk administrativt Tidsskrift, 1960, 254– 65. [848]

Meyer, Poul: The development of public administration in the Scandinavian countries since 1945. – Revue internationale des sciences administratives, 26: 1960, 135-46. [849]

Meyer, Poul: Verwaltungsorganisation. 2. Aufl. Otto Schwartz. Göttingen 1962. 292 p. [850

Nielsen, Verner: Droit administratif. – Annuaire de législation étrangère. 1: 1938/49, 208-11. 2: 1950/51, 99-101. [851

Order No. 258 promulgating the Act on the establishment of a credit institute for the fisheries industry. – Food and agricultural legislation, 9: 1960, No. 2, pp. 1-7. [852]

Philip, David: L'Association administrative des pays scandinaves. -

Revue internationale des sciences administratives, 21: 1955, 904-908. (Summary in English 908.) [853]

- Public Libraries Act of May 27, 1950 with amendments of May 25, 1956 and March 21, 1959. Published by Statens Bibliotekstilsyn. Dansk Bibliografisk Kontor, Copenhagen 1961. 9 p. [854]
- Strandungsgesetz vom 10. April 1895. Die Handelsgesetze des Erdballs. Bd. 10. Nord- und Nordwesteuropa. 1. Skandinavien. Nordisches Wechsel- und Seerecht. 3. Aufl. Berlin 1906, 181–6. (Danish and German text.) [855]
- Uhl, Erik and Hansen, Søren C.: Food additive control in Denmark. Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) 1961. 35 p. (Food additive control series No. 5.) [856]

### 2. Social welfare

- Act respecting invalidity and national pensions. No. 238. Dated 10 June 1960. — International Labour Office. Legislative series, 1960, Denmark 2. 28 p. [857]
- Haarløv, Tyge: Should the protection of neglected and morally abandoned children be secured by a judicial authority or by a non judicial body? Should the courts for delinquent children and juveniles be maintained? Report. – Proceedings of the 12th international penal and penitentiary congress, 1950. Vol. 6, 1951, 155-65. (Summary in French 166.) [858]
- Haarløv, Tyge: Administrative opdragelsessanktioner (Administrative measures for the care of children and juveniles). Copenhagen 1952. 364 p. (Diss., with summary in English 345-53). [859]
- Haarløv, Tyge: Les régimes scandinaves pour la protection de la jeunesse. – Revue internationale de défense sociale, 11: 1957, 50-62. [860]
- Halck, Niels: Social welfare in Denmark. Publ. by the Danish Ministries of Labour and Social Affairs, Copenhagen 1961. 72 p. [861
- Jensen, Orla: Dänisches Fürsorgewesen. Die dänische Gesellschaft Kopenhagen 1950. 143 p. (Handbücher der dänischen Gesellschaft). – Anhang 1958. 16 p. [862
- Jensen, Orla: Social welfare in Denmark. Transl. by Else Giersing. Publ. by Det danske Selskab, Copenhagen 1961. 136 p. (Danish Information handbooks.) [863
- Jensen, Orla: Réalisations sociales au Danemark. Det danske Selskab, Copenhagen 1961. 187 p. [864
- Ministry of Social Affairs Notification, No. 142 of the Industrial Injuries Insurance Act. Dated 8 May 1959. Ministry of Social Affairs, Copenhagen. 40 p. (Mim.) [865]
- Moltved, B. H.: Survey of Danish accident insurance legislation. 2nd ed. Publ. by Direktoratet for Ulykkesforsikring. Copenhagen 1960. 43 p. 4° (Mim.) [866]

- Nelson, George R.: Social welfare in Scandinavia. Publ. by the Danish Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs, Copenhagen 1953. 70 p. (Reprint from The Scandinavian Year Book, 1952). [867
- Nelson, George R.: Freedom and welfare. Social pattern in the Northern countries in Europe. Copenhagen 1953. 540 p. [868
- Notification of the National Insurance Act No. 228. Dated 12 September 1957. – International Labour Office. Legislative series, 38: 1957, Denmark 1, pp. 1–62. [869]
- Nouvelle convention de securité sociale des pays du nord de l'Europe. – Informations sociales, 15: 1956, 86–9. [870
- Rehabilitation Act. No. 170 Dated 29 April 1960. International Labour Office. Legislative series, 1960, Denmark 1, 12 p. [871
- Salvesen, Kaare: La collaboration sociale entre les pays du nord de l'Europe. Revue internationale de travaille, 73: 1956, 367-93. [872
- Social Denmark. A survey of the Danish social legislation. 1st ed. 2nd impr. Copenhagen 1947. 475 p. [873
- Die soziale Gesetzgebung Dänemarks 1891-1941. Aus dem Dänischen übers. Kopenhagen 1941. 474 p. [874
- Steincke, K. K.: The Danish social reform measures. International labor review, 31: 1935, 620-48. [875]
- Unified Danish legislation on the rehabilitation of disabled persons. Industry and labour, 25: 1961, 150-54. [876]
- United Nations legislative and administrative series. Vol. 3. 1951. Social defence. Denmark 1. Loss of civic rights (Amendment of sec. 78 of the Penal Code) Denmark 2. Remission of sentence (Circular No. 142 of 2 July 1951) Denmark 3. Youth prisons (Ordinance No. 464 of 27 November 1951). [877
- United Nations legislative and administrative series. Vol. 3. 1951. Child, youth and family welfare No. 3. Denmark 6. Day care for children. Instructions for the establishment of institutions for preventive child welfare. No. 147 of 6 July, 1951. 21 p. Denmark 7. School health services circular No. 208 of 2 November 1951. 9 p. [878]
- United Nations legislative and administrative series. Vol. 2. 1950. Child, youth and family welfare No. 2. Denmark 5. Order to make regulations for regular medical inspection of children in recognized and/or approved crèches and kindergartens. No. 337 of 7 July 1950. [879]
- Urbach, Peter: Das Unterhaltsrecht ehelicher und unehelicher Kinder unter Berücksichtigung der öffentlichen Kinderfürsorge nach dänischem Recht. Hamburg 1955. 106 p. 4° (Diss., Hamburg; in typescript.) [880

#### 3. Sterilization and castration

Act (No. 171-1934) on arrangements for mental defectives. – Danish psychiatry. Det Schönbergske Forlag, Copenhagen 1948, 37-43. [881

# Danish Legal Publications in English, French and German 235

- Bruun, Alice og Smith, Jens Chr.: Über die Sterilisation Schwachsinniger gemäss dänischem Gesetz Nr. 171 vom 16. Mai 1934 über Massnahmen betreffend Schwachsinnige. – Acta psychiatrica et neurologica Scandinavica, 16: 1941, 27-45. [882]
- Gesetz über Massnahmen bezüglich geistesschwacher Personen vom 16. Mai 1934. – Juristische Wochenschrift, 64: 1935, 2469-70. [883]
- Gesetz über Genehmigung der Sterilisation und Kastration vom 11. Mai 1935. – Juristische Wochenschrift, 64: 1935, 2470–72. [884
- Gesetz Nr. 176 vom 11. Mai 1935 über die Zulässigkeit der Sterilisation und Kastration. – Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 26: 1935, 544-6. [885]
- Goll, August: Danemark. Rapport. Loi du 16 mai 1934 contenant des dispositions concernant les faibles d'esprit. Recueil de documents en matière pénale et pénitentiaire, 3: 1933, 400-402. [886]
- Goll, August: Danemark. Rapport concernant la loi du 11 mai 1935 sur l'application de la stérilisation et de la castration. – Recueil de documents en matière pénale et pénitentiaire, 5: 1935, 6-11 (text of the statute 7-11). [887
- Kopp, Walter: Gesetzliche Unfruchtbarmachung. Die Sterilisationsgesetzgebung in den skandinavischen Ländern und der Schweiz und ihre praktischen Ergebnisse unter besonderer Berücksichtigung der deutschen Gesetze vom 14. Juli 1933. Kiel 1933. 145 p. (Diss.) (The Danish Sterilization Act of June 1, 1929, 28-47.)
- La loi du 11 mai 1935 sur l'application de la stérilisation et de la castration. Recueil de documents en matière pénale et pénitentiaire. 5: 1935, 7-11. [889]
- Lucas, F.: Die Wirkungen des dänischen Sterilisations-Gesetzes. Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 23: 1932, 182–83. (See also Lucas, 20: 1929, 627–8.) [890
- Mittermaier, Wolfgang: Die skandinavische Gesetzgebung über Unfruchtbarmachung und Entmannung. – Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 26: 1935, 543-9. [891
- Ruttke: Die dänische Sterilisationsgesetzgebung. Juristische Wochenschrift, 64: 1935, 2469-72. [892
- Sand, Knud: Das dänische Sterilisationsgesetz vom 1. Juni 1929 und seine Resultate. Mit Erwägungen über die Revision des Gesetzes. – Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 26: 1935, 49–83.
- Wildenskov, H. O.: Das dänische Sterilisationsgesetz und die Schwachsinnigenfürsorge. – Monatsschrift für Kriminalpsychologie und Strafrechtsreform, 25: 1934, 1-14. [894

### 4. The Parliamentary Commissioner or Ombudsman

Abraham, H. J.: A people's watchsdog against abuse of power. – Public administration review 20: 1960, 152-57. (On the Ombudsman.) [894 a

- Act No. 203 of 11 June 1954 on the Parliamentary Commissioner for civil and military administration. Stephan Hurwitz: The Ombudsman. Det danske Selskab, Copenhagen, 1961, 47–53. Journal of the International Commission of Jurists, 1958, 234–43. Public law, 1958, 245–53. Political science, Wellington, 1960, 135–42. [895]
- Chapman, Brian: The Ombudsman. Public administration, 38: 1960, 303-10. [896]
- Christensen, Bent: The Danish Ombudsman. University of Pennsylvania law review, 109: 1961, 1100–26. [897
- The Danish Ombudsman. A report by Justice. The citizen and the administration. The redress of grievances. Stevens, London 1961, 53-60. [898]
- Gesetz Nr. 203 vom 11. Juni 1954 über den Parlamentskommissar für Zivil- und Militärverwaltung. – Journal der internationalen Juristenkommission, 1958, 253–62. [899
- Hansen, Poul: Der Folketingsbeauftragte. Dänemark. Hrsg. vom Kgl. Dänischen Ministerium des Äusseren, Copenhagen 1962, 131-3.

[900

- Hansen, Poul: The Ombudsmand. Denmark. Publ. by The Royal Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Copenhagen, 1961, 129–31. [901
- Hurwitz, Stephan: Le controleur général de l'administration civile et militaire au Danemark. – Revue internationale des sciences administratives, 22: 1956, 181-90. [902
- Hurwitz, Stephan: Public trust in government services. Danish Foreign Office journal, 1956, 11–15. – Danish outlook, 9: 1956, 1030– 35. (Reprinted from the above-mentioned journal.) [903
- Hurwitz, Stephan: Die Kontrolle der Verwaltung in Dänemark. Der dänische Parlamentskommissar für Zivil- und Militärverwaltung. – Journal der Internationalen Juristenkommission, 1958, 242–62 (text of the statute 253–62). [904
- Hurwitz, Stephan: The Danish Parliamentary Commissioner for civil and military government administration. – Public law, 1958, 236-53 (text of the statute 245-53). – Journal of the International Commission of Jurists, 1958, 224-43 (text of the statute 234-43). [905]
- Hurwitz, Stephan: The Folketingets Ombudsmand. Parliamentary affairs, 12: 1958/59, 199-208. [906]
- Hurwitz, Stephan: The Scandinavian Ombudsman. Political science, Wellington, 1960, 121-42 (text of the statute 135-42). [907
- Hurwitz, Stephan: Denmark's Ombudsmand. The Danish Parliamentary Commissioner for civil and military government administration. -

Wisconsin law review, 1961, 169–99 (the act cited 194–9). [908 Hurwitz, Stephan: Dänischer Parlamentskommissär für Zivil- und Militärverwaltung. – Schweizerische Juristen-Zeitung, 57: 1961, 85–90.

Hurwitz, Stephan: The Ombudsmand. Denmark's Parliamentary Com-

<sup>[909</sup> 

missioner for civil and military administration. Publ. by Det danske Selskab, Copenhagen 1961. 63 p. [910

- Karve, D. G.: Parliamentary supervision of public administration, a Danish experiment. – Indian journal of public administration 1960, 131-40. [910 a
- Langrod, Georges: Le contrôle parlementaire de l'administration dans les pays nordiques. Le rôle de Ombudsman in Suède, en Finlande et au Danemark. – La revue administrative, 12: 1959, 664-73. [911
- Middleton, K. S. B.: The Ombudsman. Juridical review, 1960, 298– 306. [912
- Pedersen, Inger M.: The Danish Parliamentary Commissioner in action. – Public law, 1959, 115-27. [913
- Pedersen, Inger M.: The Parliamentary Commissioner. A Danish view. – Public law, 1962, 15-23. [914
- Rowat, Donald C.: The Parliamentary Ombudsman. Should the Scandinavian scheme be transplanted? – Revue internationale des sciences administratives 28: 1962, 399-405. (A revised and shortened version of "An Ombudsman scheme for Canada" in: Canadian journal of economics and political science 1962.) [914 a
- Supervision by the Ombudsman (Parliamentary Commissioner) as in certain Scandinavian countries. - 1962 seminar on judicial and other remedies against the abuse of administrative authority, with special emphasis on the role of parliamentary institutions. Stockholm, Sweden, 12 to 25 June 1962. United Nations, New York, 1962, 12-17 (ST/ TAO/HR/15). [915]

## D. TAXATION

- Carroll, M. B.: Income tax convention between the United States and Denmark. – Bulletin for international fiscal documentation, 3: 1949, 182-90. [916]
- Danish income tax service. Publ. for members of the Foreign Tax Law Association, Florida 1962. 39 p. (Looseleaf.) [917
- Gelting, Jørgen: Main features of the present Danish tax system. Bulletin for international fiscal documentation, 1: 1946/47, 112-14.

Herler, Povl: The taxation of "blocked accounts" in Denmark. – Bulletin for international fiscal documentation. 1: 1946/47, 379-81. [919

- Herler, Povl: The Danish-American convention for the avoidance of double taxation in relation to the Danish taxation rules. – Bulletin for international fiscal documentation, 3: 1949, 27-9. [920]
- Herler, Povl: Taxes affecting industrial and commercial enterprises in Denmark. – Bulletin for international fiscal documentation, 4: 1950, 395-401. [921]
- Hiorth-Lorenzen, S.: Danish capital levy. Bulletin for international fiscal documentation, 1: 1946/47, 264-73. [922

- Hiort-Lorenzen, S.: The struggle against tax evasion. The situation in Denmark. - Bulletin for international fiscal documentation, 7: 1953, 8-15. 923
- Marcus, Franz: Die Einkommensteuer der natürlichen und juristischen Personen in Dänemark 1960. - Internationale Wirtschafts-Briefe, Heft 12, 1960, 7-24. – Änderungen für das Steuerjahr 1961/62. 13. 1961, 11-18. 024
- Marcus, Franz: Die Umsatzsteuer im Dänemark. Internationale Wirtschafts- Briefe, 1962, Heft 23. 4 p. 925
- Morstein, M. F.: The divided budget in Scandinavian practice. National tax journal, 8: 1955, 186-200. [926
- Nielsen, Thøger: Den tidsmæssige afgrænsning af det skatteretlige beregningsgrundlag (The allocation of taxable income to taxable years). - Acta Jutlandica 29, 1: 1957, 96 p. (Summary in English, 95-96.) [927

Nielsen, Thøger: Working expenses and working losses. A study of taxation law. - Scandinavian studies in law, Stockholm, 4: 1960, [928 151-76.

Rørdam, Kjeld: The Danish-American convention for avoidance of double taxation. - Federal tax treaties report. Prentice-Hall, New Jersey. Vol. 1. No. 2, 1958, 110,013-110,019. 929

Spang-Thomsen, V.: Recent developments in Danish taxation. - Bulletin for international fiscal documentation, 13: 1959, 263-75. 930

Spang-Thomsen, V.: Guide to taxes in Denmark. - European taxation. Vol. 1. No. 22, 3-15. International Bureau of Fiscal Documentation, [931

Amsterdam, 1961.

### X. PUBLIC INTERNATIONAL LAW

#### A. GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS WORKS

Anderson, Stanley V.: Article 20 of Denmark's new constitution. - The American journal of international law, 50: 1956, 654-9. 932 Bajer, F.: L'arbitrage dit "Butterfield". - Revue d'histoire diplomatique

15: 1901, 88-108. 933 Bechmann, H. G.: Meditations à l'occasion de la suppression d'une institution de collaboration internationale. - Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 20: 1950, 3-22. 934

- Boeg, N. V.: Le tribunal arbitral mixte Turco-grec. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 8: 1937, 3-18. 935
- Boeg, N. V.: La condition juridique en matière d'impôts des ressortissants hellènes dans l'ancien empire ottoman. - Revue de droit international et de legislation comparée, 64: 1937, 144-55. [936

Boeg, N. V.: Review of Axel Möller: International law in peace and war. Part 1-2. - Bibliographie du droit des gens et des relations internationales par Karl Strupp. Leyden 1938, 267-9. 937 Boeg, N. V.: Le différend dano-belge au sujet des navires danois "Gorm" et "Svava". - Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 23: 1953, 48-54. 938 Brüel, Erik: Der Zugang zur Ostseepolitik und ihre völkerrechtliche Stellung. - Deutsch-Nordisches Jahrbuch, 10: 1929, 26-48. 939 Brüel, Erik: La protestation en droit international. - Acta scandinavica 940 juris gentium, 3: 1932, 75-93. Brüel, Erik: Le barrage des Belts danois pendant la guerre 1914-18. - Revue d'histoire de la guerre mondial, 14: 1936, 201-30. 941 Brüel, Erik: R. W. Erich élu membre de la Cour permanente de justice internationale. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 9: 1938, 93-4. 942 Brüel, Erik: Die dänische Beltsperre 1914-18 und ihre völkerrechtliche Berechtigung. Leipzig 1938. 120 p. (Würzburger staatswissenschaftliche Abhandlungen. Reihe B. Heft 9.) 943 Brüel, Erik: Die juristische Bedeutung des Atlantikpaktes. - Archiv des öffentlichen Rechtes, 4: 1953/54, 288-300. 944 Brüel, Erik: 25 years of the Scandinavian review of international law. An acknowledgement. - Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 25: 1955, 945 I-II. Cohn, Georg: Kellogg-Vertrag und Völkerrecht. - Zeitschrift für Völker-[946 recht, 15: 1930, 169-82. Cohn, Georg: Kriegsverhütung und Schuldfrage. Mit einer Einleitung über die Mischung völkerrechtlicher und landesrechtlicher Elemente. Leipzig 1931. 18+199 p. (Frankfurter Abhandlungen zum modernen 947 Völkerrecht. Heft 23.) Cohn, Georg: Observations concernant le programme d'études sur la question de la sécurité collective. - Revue de droit international, 948 14: 1934, 38-43. Cohn, Georg: Åke Hammarskjöld et le Danemark. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 8: 1937, 42-4. 949 Cohn, Georg: La théorie de la responsabilité internationale. - Académie de droit internationale, Recueil des cours, 68: 1939, 209-325. 950 Congratulations on the occasion of the 25th anniversary of the review. - Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 25: 1955, III-XIV. 951 Le Danemark et le Marché commun. - Revue du Marché commun, 1062, 161-8. 952 Danmarks Handels- og Skibsfartstraktater. Les traités de commerce et de navigation du Danemark. Udg. på Udenrigsministeriets Foranstalt-

ning. Publiés par les soins du Ministère des affaires étrangères. Copenhagen 1934. 611 p. (Most treaties in Danish and French.) [953 Les document scandinaves 1938. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 9: 1938, 82-4, 123-9, 174-7. (In French.) [954

- Foighel, Isi: Nationalisering af fremmed ejendom (Nationalization of foreign property). Copenhagen 1961, 322 p. (Diss., with summary in English 293-6). [955]
- Foighel, Isi: Nationalization. A study in the protection of alien property in international law. Copenhagen 1957. 136 p. (Also in Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 26: 1956, 89–152, and 27: 1957, 145–204.) [956
- Die Grundlage der Diskussion zwischen Dänemark und Deutschland betreffend den Umfang des Meistbegünstigungsrechtes. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 1: 1930, 69–73. [957]
- Heyman, Aage: An attempt to define laws and regulations for a Commonwealth of Nations. Hellerup (Cph.) 1949, 28 p. (A bill with comments.) [958
- Kulsrud, Carl J.: Seizure of the Danish fleet, 1807. The American journal of international law, 32: 1938, 280-311. [959]
- Laws and regulations regarding diplomatic and consular privileges and immunities. United Nations, New York 1958. 511 p. (Denmark 95-105). (United Nations legislative series.) [960
- Legislative texts and treaty privisions concerning the legal status privileges and immunities of international organizations. United Nations, New York 1959. 392 p. (Denmark, 18-31). (United Nations legislative series.) [961]
- Møller, Axel: La Societé des Nations et la réduction des armements. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, Copenhagen, 1: 1930, 19-24. [962

Møller, Axel: Quelques observations sur la clause de la notion la plus favorisée. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 1: 1930, 37-42. [963

- Møller, Axel: The Briand-Kellogg Pact. Acta scandinavica juris gentium. 3: 1932, 94–105. (From the author's book: International law in peace and war. Part 2.) [965]
- Møller, Axel: International law in peace and war. Transl. by H. M. Pratt. Parts 1-2. Copenhagen 1931-35. (2 vols.) [966]
- Møller, Axel: Le conflit entre l'Italie et l'Éthiopie. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 6: 1935, 37-40, 96-98, 157-61. [967]
- Møller, Axel: L'Allemagne et le traité de Versailles. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 6: 1935, 98-103. [968
- Møller, Axel: La violation par l'Allemagne du traité de Locarno. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 7: 1936, 68–74. [969]
- Møller, Axel: Le conflit Italo-Éthiopien. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 7: 1936, 74-7. [970
- Nørgaard, Carl Aage: The position of the individual in international law. Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1963. 328 p. (Diss. Aarhus). [970 a

Peschardt, C.: La clause de la nation la plus favorisée. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 1: 1930, 88–95. [971

Petersen, Niels: La contribution des pays du Nord à l'œuvre en faveur de la paix. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 1: 1930, 66-77. [972

Møller, Axel: Einige Bemerkungen über die Meistbegünstigungsklausel. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 1: 1930, 43-8. [964

- Quelques observations sur la base de la discussion entre le Danemark et l'Allemagne relative à la comprehension de l'étendue de la notion "nation la plus favorisée". – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 1: 1930, 65-8. [973]
- Rasmussen, Gustav: Code des prisonniers de guerre. La convention du 27 juillet 1929 relative au traitement des prisonniers de guerre. – Revue de droit international de sciences diplomatiques et politiques, 8: 1930, 1-14, 93-113, 228-38, 348-60. [974]
- Rasmussen, Gustav: Code des prisonniers de guerre. Commentaire de la convention du 27. juillet 1929 relative au traitement des prisonniers de guerre. Avec le texte de la convention et un extrait du règlement de la Haye. Copenhagen 1931. 147 p. [975]
- Rolin, Henri: Une conciliation belgo-danoise (Affaire des SS "Gorm" et "Svava"). – Revue générale de droit international public, 24: 1953, 353-71. [976]
- Ross, Alf: A textbook of international law. General part. Longmans, London 1947. 313 p. Reviews: American journal of international law, 43: 1949, 197; Cambridge law journal, 10: 1949, 305; Illinois law review, 44: 1949, 416. [977
- Ross, Alf: Eine österreichische Völkerrechtslehre. Jus gentium. Nordisk Tidsskrift for Folkeret og international Privatret. Copenhagen 1950, vol. 2, 218–26. (Review of A. Verdross: Völkerrecht. 2. Aufl. 1950). [978]

Ross, Alf: Lehrbuch des Völkerrechts. Stuttgart and Cologne 1951. 296 p. (Göttinger Studien zum Völkerrecht und internationalen Privatrecht. 3.) [979

- Ross, Alf: Law and the growth of international society. University of Illinois Law Forum, 1956, 262–9. [980
- Rosting, Helmer: Protection of minorities by the League of Nations. — The American journal of international law, 17: 1923, 641-60. [981
- Rosting, Helmer: Die Entwicklung der Minderheitenfrage in Europa. – Europäische Revue, 14: 1938, 12–21. [982
- Rosting, Helmer: Die modernen Minderheitenverträge. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 9: 1938, 14-48. [983
- Scandinavian documents. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 10: 1939, 58-68, 136-45, 181-203 (regarding Germany and Russia)
  - 11: 1940, 131-50
  - 12: 1941, 92–107
  - 13: 1942, 31-5, 68-9, 92-4
  - 14: 1943, 192-210
  - 15: 1944, 28-38, 74-85
  - 16: 1945, 61-7
  - 17: 1946, p. 36–50
  - 18: 1947/48, 3-6, 66-8

	1010	00 04	10-10
19.	1949,	29-35,	49-03

- 20: 1950, 78-83 (Inter alia Denmark and the Korea crisis)
- 21: 1951, 35-46 (Inter alia defence of Greenland)
- 24: 1954, 76-8 (Scandinavian economic cooperation, Greenland)
- 25: 1955, 99-116 (The Northern countries and the United Nations)
- 26: 1956, D20-D28 (The Scandinavian countries and the Suez Canal conference)
- 27: 1957, D25-D32 (Territorial water of Iceland)
- 28: 1958, 355-66 (The Icelandic fishery question)
- 29: 1959, 276-89 (Inter alia Nato and fishing around the Faroe Islands)

[984

30: 1960, 232-54

Scheel, Poul: La conference du désarmement, Genève 1932. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 2: 1931, 142-62. [985]

Schou, Peter: Les conditions juridiques de la sécurité internationale. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 4: 1933, 85-99, 127-46. [986]

- Schou, Peter: Le rôle du territoire dans le droit international. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 10: 1939, 17-29. [987
- Sørensen, Max: La prescription en droit international. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 3: 1932, 145-70. [988
- Sørensen, Max: The modifications of collective treaties without the consent of all the contracting parties. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 9: 1938, 150-73. [989]
- Sørensen, Max: Les sources du droit international. Études sur la jurisprudence de la Cour permanente de justice internationale. Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1946. 274 p. (Diss.) [990
- Sørensen, Max: Some observations of the functional principle in international organization. – Jus gentium. Nordisk Tidsskrift for Folkeret og international Privatret. Copenhagen, 1: 1949, 104–106. (Summary in English of article in Danish, *ibid.* 83–104). [991
- Sørensen, Max: Federal states and the international protection of human rights. – American journal of international law, 46: 1952, 195-218.
- Sørensen, Max: The draft statute of an international criminal court. – International Bar Association. Fourth international conference, Madrid 1952. The Hague 1954, 71–9. [993
- Sørensen, Max: Principes de droit international public. Cours général. – Academie de droit international. Recueil des cours. Leyden 1960, III, 1-245. [994]
- de Visscher, Ch.: Projet de conventions portant institution de commissions de conciliation entre le Danemark, la Finlande, la Norvège et la Suède. – Revue de droit international et de législation comparée, 5: 1924, 268-73. [995]

# B. WORKS ON SPECIAL SUBJECTS

I. Law of the sea, territorial waters, straits, fishery

Abkommen zwischen der dänischen und britischen Regierung zur vorläufigen Regelung der Fischerei in den Gewässern um die Färöer-Inseln vom 27. April 1959. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches öffentliches Recht und Völkerrecht, 20: 1959/60, 83-7. [996 The Baltic and the North Seas. - The American journal of international law, 2: 1908, 646-8. 997 Böhmert, V.: Die grönländische Fischereigrenze. - Zeitschrift für Völkerrecht, 21: 1937, 46-86. [998 Brüel, Erik: Die völkerrechtliche Stellung der dänischen Meerengen. -Niemeyers Zeitschrift für internationales Recht, 38: 1928, 185-96. 999 Brüel, Erik: Über ein baltisches Meerengenabkommen. - Niemeyers Zeitschrift für internationales Recht, 41: 1929, 76-97. [1000 Brüel. Erik: Les détroits danois au point de vue du droit international. - Revue générale de droit international public, 36: 1929, 116-20. [1001 Brüel, Erik: The Little Belt bridge and international law. - Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 6: 1935, 142-156. [1002 Brüel. Erik: Die Brücke über den Kleinen Belt und das Völkerrecht. - Zeitschrift für Völkerrecht, 19: 1935, 327-32. 1003 Brüel, Erik: Les détroits danois au point de vue du droit international. - Academie de Droit International. Recueil des cours, 55: 1936, 595-696. [1004 Brüel, Erik: Die Strasse von Gibraltar. - Zeitschrift für öffentliches Recht, 19: 1939, 353-434. 1005 Brüel, Erik: The Danish Straits. - Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 11: 1940, 3-107. [1006 Brüel, Erik: The Straits of Gibraltar. - Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 12: 1941, 3-86. [1007 Brüel, Erik: The Strait of Magellan. - Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 13: 1942, 3-29, 41-66. [1008 Brüel, Erik: The Turkish straits. - Acta scandinavica juris gentium. 14: 1943, 3-53, 61-124, 131-91. [1009 Brüel, Erik: International straits. A treatise on international law. Vols. 1-2. Copenhagen, London 1944-47. (Transl. of the author's diss. 1939-40. Vol. 1 transl. by C. Byriel, vol. 2 by H. M. Pratt.) 1010 Brüel, Erik: Some observations on two of the statements concerning the legal position of international straits. Made by the International Court of Justice in its judgement of April 9th, 1949 in the Corfu Channel Case. - Gegenwartsprobleme des internationalen Rechtes und der Rechtsphilosophie. Festschrift für Rudolf Laun zu seinem siebzigsten Geburtstag. Hamburg 1953, 259-78. 1011

Brüel, Erik: Die völkerrechtliche Stellung des Suezkanals und die Nationalisierung der Kanalgesellschaft. – Archiv des Völkerrechts, 7: 1958, 24-67. [1012

Cohn, Georg: The continental shelf. – Jus gentium. Nordisk Tidsskrift for Folkeret og international Privatret. Copenhagen, 2: 1950, 28-31. (Summary in English of the author's article in Danish, *ibid*. 21-8.)

Extension des eaux territoriales autour des îles Féroé; problème de la revision de l'accord anglo-danois du 22 avril 1955. — Revue générale de droit international public, 29: 1958, 677-81. [1014]

[1013

- Favilli, V.: Le nouveau pont sur le Petit-Belt du point de vue du droit international. – Revue de droit international et de législation comparée, 63: 1936, 633-44. [1015]
- Kalijärvi, Thorsten: Scandinavian claims to jurisdiction over territorial waters. – The American journal of international law, 26: 1932, 57-69. [1016]
- Kruse, Frederik Vinding: On the rights to the sea and its subsoil. A decision by the Supreme Court of Finland. Legal essays. A tribute to Frede Castberg. Universitetsforlaget, Oslo 1963, 570–87. [1016 a
- Laws and regulations on the regime of the territorial sea. United Nations, New York 1957. 811 p. (United Nations legislative series). (Denmark 8-11, 119-23, 335, 369-73, 467-77, 629-33, regarding extent, jurisdiction, fishing and neutrality.) [1017
- Leistikow, Gunnar: The fisheries dispute in the North Atlantic. American Scandinavian review, 47: 1959, 15-24. [1018
- Sørensen, Max: The law of the sea. International conciliation No. 520. Carnegie Endowment for International Peace. New York 1958, 193–255. [1019
- Sørensen, Max: The territorial sea of archipelagos. Varia juris gentium. Questions of international law. Liber amicorum presented to J. P. A. François, 1959, 315-31. [1020]
- Sørensen, Max: Pirate broadcasting from the High Seas. Legal essays. A tribute to Frede Castberg. Universitetsforlaget, Oslo 1963, 319-31. [1020 a
- Staël-Holstein, L. de: Le régime scandinave des eaux littorales. Revue de droit international et de législation comparée, 51: 1924, 630-79.
- Staël von Holstein, L.: Le nouveau régime du Sund. Revue de droit international et de législation comparée, 59: 1932, 800-812. [1022]
- Supplement to laws and regulations on the regime of the high seas and laws concerning the nationality of ships. United Nations, New York 1959, 118-23. (Translation of provisions regarding nationality in the Shipping Act No. 319 of 7 May 1937 as amended 1957 and in the Shipping Registration Act No. 93 of 29 March 1957.) [1023]

# 2. United Nations and other international organizations

- Boeg, N. V.: Review of the Charter of the United Nations. Transactions of the Grotius Society, 40: 1955, 5-14, 23. [1024]
- Eek, Hilding: Attitude of the Scandinavian countries to the revision of the Charter. Revision of the United Nations Charter. A symposium. New Delhi 1956, 93-101. [1025]
- Fischer, Paul H.: Det europæiske kul- og stålfællesskab. Folkeretlige studier over internationalt samarbejde (European Coal and Steel Community). Copenhagen 1957. 340 p. (Summary in English, 297-310.) [1026]
- Jones, S. S.: The Scandinavian states and the League of Nations. New York 1939. 16 + 298 p. Review: The American journal of international law, 1939, 627-8. [1027]
- Jorstad, J.: Les Scandinaves et la Cour permanent de justice internationale. – Le Nord. Revue internationale des pays du Nord, 3: 1940, 94-103. [1028]
- Krabbe, Ludvig: Le secrétariat géneral de la Société des Nations. Les origines et l'œuvre de la Société des Nations. Publié par Rask-Ørstedfonden sous la direction de P. Munch. T. 2. Copenhagen 1924, 264-82. [1029]
- Møller, Axel: La réforme de la Société des Nations. Acta Scandinavica juris gentium, 10: 1939, 30-57, 118-35. [1030
- Munch, P.: Les états neutres et le pacte de la Société des Nations. Les origines et l'œuvre de la Société des Nations. Publié par Rask-Ørstedfonden sous la direction de P. Munch. T. 1. Copenhagen 1923, 161-88. [1031
- Munch, P.: L'Assemblée des Délégués. Les origines et l'œuvre de la Société des Nations. Publié par Rask-Ørstedfonden sous la direction de P. Munch. T. 2. Copenhagen 1924, 359-415. [1032]
- Nyholm, D. G.: La Cour permanente de justice internationale. Les origines et l'œuvre de la Société des Nations. Publié par Rask-Ørstedfonden sous la direction de P. Munch. T. 2. Copenhagen 1924, 241-63.
- Ørsted, H. C.: Un danger pour le caractère tripartite de l'organisation internationale du travail. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 9: 1938, 49-74.
- Ørsted, H. C.: Amendments of the constitution of the International Labor Organization. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 18: 1947/48, 56-65. [1035]
- Les origines et l'œuvre de la Société des Nations. Publié par Rask-Ørstedfonden sous la direction de P. Munch. 1-2. Copenhagen 1923-24. 608+500 p. 4°. [1036]

Ross, Alf: La souveraineté des états et la Société des Nations. - Revue

16-631245 Scand. Stud. in Law VII

de droit international et de législation comparée. Brussels 1931, 652-68, and 1932, 112-30. (Transl. from the German by Léon Devogel.) [1037]

- Ross, Alf: Völkerbund und Staatssouveränität. Vortrag. Zeitschrift für öffentliches Recht, 11: 1931, 441–64. [1038]
- Ross, Alf: Maintenance of peace and the veto rule in the United Nations. Jus gentium. Nordisk Tidsskrift for Folkeret og international Privatret. Copenhagen, 1: 1949, 165-9. (Summary in English of article in Danish, *ibid.*, 147-65.) [1039]
- Ross, Alf: Is the Charter of the United Nations a treaty or a constitution? – Jus gentium. Nordisk Tidsskrift for Folkeret og international Privatret. Copenhagen, 1: 1949, 238-46. [1040]
- Ross, Alf: General legal characterization of the United Nations. Jus gentium. Nordisk Tidsskrift for Folkeret og international Privatret. Copenhagen, 2: 1950, 63-70.
- Ross, Alf: Review of Hans Kelsen: The law of the United Nations. London 1950. In: Jus gentium. Nordisk Tidsskrift for Folkeret og international Privatret, Copenhagen, 2: 1950, 250-5. [1042]
- Ross, Alf: The proviso concerning "Domestic Jurisdiction" in art. 27 of the Charter of the United Nations. – Österreichische Zeitschrift für öffentliches Recht. N.F. Bd. 2, 1950, 562–71. [1043]
- Ross, Alf: Constitution of the United Nations. Analysis of function and structure. Munksgaard, Copenhagen 1950. 236 p. (New ed. in preparation). Review: Max Sørensen in Jus gentium. Nordisk Tidsskrift for Folkeret og international Privatret. Copenhagen, 2: 1950, 245-9.

[1044

- Ross, Alf: Power politics and the ideology of the United Nations. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 22: 1952, 33-48. (With special regard to G. Schwarzenberger: Power politics. 1951.) [1045]
- Ross, Alf: Constitución de las Naciónes Unidas. Version española por F. Atrias Parga. Madrid 1954. 356 p. [1046]
- Serup, A.: L'article 16 du Pacte et son interprétation dans le conflit italo-éthiopien. Paris 1938. 226 p. [1047]
- Serup, Axel: The second session of the International Law Commission of the United Nations. – Jus gentium. Nordisk Tidskrift for Folkeret og international Privatret, Copenhagen, 2: 1950, 171-80. [1048]
- Sørensen, Max: Review of Alf Ross: Constitution of the United Nations. Copenhagen 1950. In: Jus gentium. Nordisk Tidsskrift for Folkeret og international Privatret, 2: 1950, 245-9. [1049]
- Sørensen, Max: The Council of Europe. The yearbook of world affairs, 1952, 75–97.
- Sørensen, Max: The Council of Europe. Academie de droit international. Recueil des cours, 81: 1952, 121-99. [1051
- Sørensen, Max and Haagerup, Niels J.: Denmark and the United Nations. Manhattan Publ. Co., New York 1956. 167 p. (National studies on international organization.) [1052]

Sørensen, Max: The International Court of Justice. Its role in contemporary international relations. – International organization, 14: 1960, 261-76. [1053]

# 3. Neutrality

- Cohn, Georg: Neutralité et Societé des Nations. Les origines et l'œuvre de la Société des Nations. Publié par Rask-Ørstedfondet sous la direction de P. Munch. T. 2. Copenhagen 1924, 153-204. [1054]
- Cohn, Georg: La néo-neutralité. Revue de droit international et de législation comparée, 65: 1938, 281-93. [1055]
- Cohn, Georg: Neo-Neutrality. Transl. from Danish by Arthur S. Keller and Einar Jensen. New York 1939. 10+388 p. (Diss., Copenhagen 1937). Review: Carl Rasting in Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 9: 1938, 120-22 (in French). [1056]
- Erklärung der nordischen Staaten über gleichartige Neutralitätsregeln vom 27. Mai 1938. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches öffentliches Recht und Völkerrecht, 8: 1938/39, 522-41 (In French. Denmark 522-6).

[1057

Genet, R.: La déclaration commune de neutralité des états du Nord. – Revue internationale française du droit des gens, 5: 1938, 285-8.

[1058

Genet, R.: La rehabilitation de la neutralité et la déclaration commune des pays du Nord. – Affaires étrangères, 8: 1938, 331-50, 474-81.

[1059

- Hambro, Edvard: Das Neutralitätsrecht der nordischen Staaten. Zeitschrift für ausländisches öffentliches Recht und Völkerrecht, 8: 1938, 445-69. [1060
- Padelford, Norman J.: The new Scandinavian neutrality rules. The American journal of international law, 32: 1938, 789-93. [1061]
- Rasting, Carl: Review in French of Georg Cohn: Neo-Neutralitet. 1937. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 9: 1938, 120–22. [1062
- Verdross, A. v.: Das neue nordische Neutralitätsrecht. Zeitschrift für öffentliches Recht, 19: 1939, 44-77. [1063]

# 4. Denmark-Germany during the Second World War

- Brüel, Erik: The Danish-German non-aggression pact. Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 10: 1939, 157–63. [1064
- Brüel, Erik: Militärische Besetzung. Zeitschrift für öffentliches Recht, 21: 1941, 145–65. [1065]
- Hansen, Ernst Siegfried: Disteln am Wege. Von der Besetzung Dänemarks bis zu den Bonner Erklärungen. Deutscher Heimat Verlag, Bielefeld 1957. 456 p. [1066]

- Hinze, Rolf: Das Verhältnis Deutschland-Dänemark während des zweiten Weltkrieges. Eine völkerrechtliche Untersuchung. Göttingen 1955. 14+222 p. (Diss., in typescript.) [1067
- Hubatsch, Walther: Die deutsche Besetzung von Dänemark und Norwegen 1940. Musterschmidt, Göttingen 1952. 15+511 p. (Göttinger Beiträge zu Gegenwartsfragen. Völkerrecht, Geschichte, Internationalpolitik. Bd. 5). [1068]
- Hurwitz, Stephan: Was Denmark at war? Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 16: 1945, 49-60. [1069
- Ross, Alf: Denmark's legal status during the occupation. Jus gentium. Nordisk Tidsskrift for Folkeret og international Privatret. Copenhagen, 1: 1949, 3-21. [1070
- Ross, Alf: Opinion for the use in the appeal case against K. R. Werner Best e. a. – Jus gentium. Nordisk Tidsskrift for Folkeret og international Privatret, Copenhagen, 1: 1949, 290–93 (summary in English of the Danish text *ibid.*, 274–90). [1071
- Satz, Margot: Enemy legislation and judgements in Denmark. Journal of comparative legislation and international law, 31: 1949, 1-3. [1072]

# 5. The West Indies

Cession par le Danemark aux États Unis d'Amerique des Antilles danoises. – Revue générale de droit international public, 24: 1937, 454-66.

- Convention providing for the cession of the West Indies. August 4, 1916. The American journal of international law, 11: 1917, Supplement, 53-61.
- Finch, George A.: The Danish West Indies. The American journal of international law, 11: 1917, 413-16. [1075]
- Scott, James Brown: The purchase of the Danish West Indies by the United States of America. – The American journal of international law, 10: 1916, 853–9. [1076]

# 6. The Danish-Norwegian Greenland dispute

- Berlin, Knud: Denmark's right to Greenland. A survey of the past and present status of Greenland, Iceland and the Faroe Islands in relation to Norway and Denmark. Transl. by P. T. Federspiel. Copenhagen 1932. 185 p. [1077]
- Berlin, Knud: Dänemarks Recht auf Grönland. Eine Darlegung der Stellung Grönlands, Islands und der Färöer zu Norwegen und Dänemark in Vergangenheit und Gegenwart. Übers. v. Knud Larsen. Königsberg 1932. 160 p. (Öffentlichrechtliche Vorträge und Schriften. Heft 12.) [1078]

- Berlin, Knud: Les droits du Danemark sur le Groënland. Exposé de la situation ancienne et moderne du Groënland, de l'Islande et des Feroé par rapport au Danemark et à la Norvège. Traduit du Danois. Copenhagen 1933. 208 p. [1079]
- Berlin, Knud: Neue norwegische Ansprüche auf Grönland. Völkerbund und Völkerrecht, 2: 1935/36, 658-64. [1080
- Berlin, Knud: Über dolus bonus und dolus malus im Völkerrecht. Eine Antwort an Herrn Professor N. Gjelsvik. – Zeitschrift für Völkerrecht, 20: 1936, 165–84. [1081
- Bull, Jens: La question de la souveraineté sur le Groënland oriental. – Revue de droit international et de législation comparée, 10: 1929, 572-605.
- Castberg, Frede: Le conflit entre le Danemark et la Norvège concernant le Groënland. – Revue de droit international et de législation comparée, 51: 1924, 252-67. [1083]
- Castberg, Frede: L'accord sur le Groënland oriental. Revue générale de droit international public, 32: 1925, 162-93. [1084]
- Cavaré, L.: Le statut juridique du Groënland oriental et la notion de territoire étatique. Travaux juridiques et économiques de l'Université de Rennes, 13: 1934, 118-59.
- Cohn, Georg: Statut juridique du Groënland oriental. Revue de droit international et de législation comparée. Brussels 1933, 557-71. [1086]
- Die dänisch-norwegische Grönlandsfrage. Niemeyers Zeitschrift für internationales Recht, 31: 1923, 141-62. [1087

Duason, Jon: Die koloniale Stellung Grönlands. Göttingen 1955. 59 p. (Göttingar Beiträge zu Gegenwartsfragen. Bd. 11.) [1088]

- Fachiri, A. P.: Legal status of Eastern Greenland. The British yearbook of international law, 14: 1933, 174-80. [1089]
- Federspiel, Per: The disputed sovereignty over East Greenland. International affairs, 11: 1932, 784–811. [1090
- Gjelsvik, N.: Über dolus bonus und dolus malus im Völkerrecht. Zeitschrift für Völkerrecht, 19: 1935, 175–216. [1091
- Hambro, Edvard: The Ihlen Declaration revisited. Grundprobleme des internationalen Rechts. Festschrift für Jean Spiropoulos. Bonn 1957, 327-36. (About Greenland.) [1092
- Haver, Wolfgang: Wurde Ostgrönland durch Dänemark in dem Zeitraum von 1921 bis 1931 okkupiert? Kiel 1937. 144 p. (Institut für internationales Recht an der Universität Kiel. 22). (Diss.). [1093
- Hyde, Charles C.: The case concerning the legal status of Eastern Greenland. – The American journal of international <sup>1</sup>aw, 27: 1933, 732-8. [1094]
- Knaplund, Paul: The Dano-Norwegian conflict over Greenland. The American journal of international law, 19: 1925, 374-7. [1095]
- Legal status of Eastern Greenland. Judgement of April 5th 1933. Publications of the International Court of Justice. Series A/B Fasc. 53, 22-147 (also with French title and text). [1096]

- Møller, Axel: La controverse Dano-Norwegienne au sujet du Groënland. – Revue politique et parlementaire, Paris, 39: 1932, 148-54.
- [1098 Møller, Axel: Antwort an Professor Wehberg. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 2: 1931, 40-44 (Wehberg, *ibid.*, 21-39, 45-48). [1099
- Mogens, V.: Greenland. The Norwegian-Danish conflict. The Greenland question in the light of history and international law. Oslo 1932. 46 p: [1100
- Münch, Ingo von: Grönland-Fall. Wörterbuch des Völkerrechts von Karl Strupp. 2. Aufl. hrsg. von Hans Jürgen Schlochaner. Bd. 1. Berlin 1960, 711–13.
- Payre, G.: Une controverse dano-norvégien au sujet du Groënland. Revue politique et parlementaire, 39: 1932, 306-309. [1102
- Preuss, Lawrence: Dispute between Denmark and Norway over the sovereignty of East Greenland. The American journal of international law, 26: 1932, 469-87. [1103]
- La question du Groënland. Le succès de la thèse danoise devant la Cour permanente de justice internationale. — Affaires étrangères, 1933, 240-47. [1104
- Rasmussen, Gustav: L'accord Dano-Norvégien sur le Groënland oriental et son historique. – Revue de droit international et de législation comparée, 54: 1927, 293-321, 656-96. [1105]
- Rasmussen, Gustav: The status of Greenland in international law. Greenland 3. Copenhagen and London 1929, 15-28. [1106]
- Rasmussen, Gustav: La souveraineté du Danemark sur le Groënland. Revue de droit international et de legislation comparée, 58: 1931, 220-33.
- Redslob, Robert: Le jugement du Groënland au point de vue norvégien. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 4: 1933, 9-24. [1108]
- Skeie, Jon: Die Grönlandsfrage. Der Streit zwischen Norwegen und Dänemark um Ostgrönland. Eine kurze historische und juristische Darstellung. Berlin 1932. 118 p. [1109]
- Skeie, Jon: Greenland. The dispute between Norway and Denmark. London 1932. 94 p. [1110
- Smedal, G.: Acquisition of sovereignty over polar areas. Oslo 1931, 77-128. (East Greenland.) [1111
- Smith, O. M.: Le statut juridique des terres polaires. Paris 1934, 75-124 (Greenland). [1112
- Sørensen, Max: Le statut juridique du Groënland. Revue juridique et politique de l'Union française, Paris, 7: 1953, 425-42. [1113]
- Staël von Holstein, L.: Autour du différend du Groënland. L'esprit international, 6: 1932, 403-18.
- Strupp, Karl: Kommentar zum Urteil im Grönlandsstreit (vom dänischen Gesichtspunkt). – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 4: 1933, 3-8.
- Wolgast, Ernst: Die dänisch-norwegische Grönlandsfrage. Niemeyers

Zeitschrift für internationales Recht, 31: 1924, 141-62; 33: 1924/25, 457-65; 35: 1925/26, 512-14.

- Wolgast, Ernst: Le différend dano-norvégien au sujet de Groënland. Affaires étrangères, 1931, 457-78. [1117
- Wolgast, Ernst: Die Grönlandsfrage. Zeitschrift für öffentliches Recht, 12: 1932, 329-85.
- Wolgast, Ernst: Das Grönlandsurteil des Ständigen internationalen Gerichtshofs vom 5. April 1933. – Zeitschrift für öffentliches Recht, 13: 1933, 545-616, 751.

Wolgast, Ernst: Das Urteil im dänisch-norwegischen Grönlandsprozess. – Völkerbund und Völkerrecht, 1: 1934/35, 53-6. [1120

# XI. PRIVATE INTERNATIONAL LAW AND INTERNATIONAL LAW OF PROCEDURE

#### A. PRIVATE INTERNATIONAL LAW

- Bentzon, Viggo et Hammerich, K.: La récente union scandinave de droit international privé. – Revue critique de droit international, 29: 1934, 855-72.
- Bloch, Joachim-Dieter: Literatur und Rechtsprechung auf dem Gebiete des internationalen Privatrechts in Dänemark, Schweden und Norwegen 1911 bis 1928. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht 2: 1928, 863-74. – 1928-1933. 7: 1933, 920-49. – 1933-1935. 10: 1936, 620-35. – 1936-1941. 13: 1940/42, 822-52.

[1122] Le droit international privé du Dane-

Borum, O. A. et Meyer, Karsten: Le droit international privé du Danemark. – Repertoire de droit international. Paris, 6: 1930, 213-27.

1123

- Borum, O. A.: Danemark. Jugements scandinaves en matière de droit international privé. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 4: 1933, 100– 107. [1124]
- Borum, O. A.: Principles of the private international law of contracts. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 11: 1940, 121-30. [1125]
- Borum, O. A.: Quelques observations sur le projet de convention de la Haye (1951) pour régler les conflits entre la loi nationale et la loi du domicile. — Liber amicorum of congratulations to Algot Bagge. Stockholm 1956, 16-21. [1126]
- Borum, O. A.: Scandinavian views on the notion of recognition of foreign companies. – Nederlands Tijdschrift voor Internationaal Recht, 9: 1962, 82–88. (Special issue October 1962. De conflictu legum. Essays presented to R. D. Kollewyn and J. Offerhaus.) [1127

Conference de la Haye de droit international privé. Documents relatifs

à la 7ième session 1951. Le Haye 1952. (Danemark. Réponses aux questionnaires, 187–207.)

- Hambro, Edvard: Autonomy in the international contract law of the Nordic states. — The international and comparative law quarterly, 6: 1957, 689-697. [1129]
- Hoeck, Peter C.: Das Personalstatut im dänischen internationalen Eherecht. Würzburg 1939. 47 p. 4°. (Diss., Hamburg). Review by Kurt Günther in Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 13: 1940/42, 724-6.
- Jentzsch, Wilhelm: Domizilprinzip und Nationalitätsprinzip insbesondere im neuen Rechtsleben Dänemarks. 1936. 35 p. (Diss., Greifswald).

- Jugements scandinaves en matière de droit international privé. O. A. Borum: Danemark. C. Kruse-Jensen: Norvège. Folke Malmar: Suède. – Acta scandinavica juris gentium, 4: 1933, 100–112. [1132
- Korkisch, Friedrich: Der Anteil der nordischen Länder an den Fragen des internationalen Privatrechts. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 23: 1958, 599-623. [1133]
- Lando, Ole: Scandinavian conflict of law rules respecting contracts. American journal of comparative law, 6: 1957, 1-26. [1134
- Lando, Ole: Kontraktstatuttet. Copenhagen 1962. 475 p. Diss. With a summary in English: The proper law of the contract, 402-437. [1135]
- Madsen-Mygdal, N. P.: Ordre public og Territoralitet. Analytiske Betragtninger over Dispariteter i international Privatret (Public policy and territoriality. Analytic comments on disparities in the conflict of laws). 2 vols. Copenhagen 1946. 826 p. (Diss., with summary in English 811-23). Review: Friedrich Korkisch in Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 15: 1949/50, 173-6. [1136]
- Marcus, Franz: Die dänische Rechtsprechung auf dem Gebiete des internationalen Privatrechts 1945-54. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 20: 1955, 507-18.
- Marcus, Franz: Review of Borum, O. A.: Lovkonflikter. Lærebog i international privatret (Conflicts of law. Textbook on private international law), 1957. – Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 1959, 388-9.
- Marcus, Franz: Dänische Rechtsprechung auf dem Gebiete des internationalen Privatrechts 1955-1960. – Rabels Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 26: 1961, 255-67. [1139]

[1140

Philip, Allan: American-Danish private international law. New York 1957. 80 p. (Bilateral studies in private international law. No. 7). Review: J. E. J. Th. Deelen in Nederlands tijdschrift voor internationaal recht, 1959, 393-6.

Philip, Allan: The Scandinavian conventions on private international

<sup>[1131</sup> 

Philip, Allan: Notes on Danish judicial decisions (1939-1952). - Journal du droit international, 81: 1954, 480-505 (also with French text).

law. – Academie de droit international. Recueil des cours 1958. Vol. 96. Leyden 1959, 247-348. [1142

- Philip, Allan: Survey of Danish judicial decisions. Journal du droit international, 1960, 492-9. [1143
- Philip, Allan: The application of foreign law in Denmark. American Bar Association. Section of international and comparative law. Proceedings 1960. American Bar Centre. Chicago 1961, 151–7. [1144
- Philip, Allan: Studier i den internationale selskabsrets teori (Studies in the theory of international company law). Copenhagen 1961. 257 p. (Diss., with summary in English 246-57). Reviews: Franz Marcus in Rabels Zeitschrift für ausländisches und internationales Privatrecht, 26: 1961, 750-51.

 Schneider, Dieter: Nationalitäts- und Domizilprinzip im internationalen Privatrecht der skandinavischen Länder, zugleich mit Hinweisen über das internationale Personenrecht in Dänemark und Norwegen 1953.
 8+130+11 p. 4°. (Diss., Cologne; in typescript.) [1146]

- Siesby, Erik: What law governs carrier's liability according to a bill of lading? Arkiv for sjørett. 5. Oslo 1961, 417-523. [1147]
- Siesby, Erik: What law governs shipowner's liability for passenger's injury? – Arkiv for sjørett. 3. Oslo 1956/59, 196-229. [1148]
- Synnestvedt, Magnus: Le droit international privé de la Scandinavie. Paris 1904. 16 + 331 p. [1149]

----

# B. INTERNATIONAL LAW OF PROCEDURE

Hambro, Edvard: Recognition and enforcement of foreign judgement in the Nordic countries. – Journal du droit international, 84: 1957, 908-47.

Harms, Svend: Die dänische Anordnung über die Anerkennung von deutschen Urteilen vom 13. April 1938. – Juristische Wochenschrift, 67: 1938, pp. 1942-3.

Vreeland, Hamilton: Validity of foreign divorces. Chicago 1938. 355 p. (Denmark 269-70). [1152

# XII. FOREIGN AND COMPARATIVE LAW

Andersen, Poul et Bent Christensen: Le Conseil d'Etat et le droit administratif danois. – Le Conseil d'Etat. Livre jubilaire. Recueil Sirey, Paris 1952, 595-9.

Gomard, Bernhard: Civil law, common law and Scandinavian law. – Scandinavian studies in law. Vol. 5, Stockholm 1961, 27–38. [1154 Gomard, Bernhard: Civil law, common law and Scandinavian law. –

New York University Institute of Comparative Law. First conference Copenhagen 1960. Publ. by N. Y. U. Law Association in Scandinavia, Copenhagen 1962, 7-14.

- Hye-Knudsen, Axel: Impressions of correctional practices in the United States. – Federal Probation, 15: 1951, 23-25. [1156]
- Mazanti-Andersen, J.: The doctrine of consideration. A comparative analysis. Copenhagen 1957. 55 p. [1157
- Møller, Heinrich A.: Dänemark. Handbuch der internationalen Rechtsverfolgung. Hrsg. v. H. A. Möller und H. Wolff. 5. Ausg. Carl Heymanns Verlag, Berlin 1929, 41–99. (Partly obsolete.) [1158]
- Møller, H. A., and Wolff, Harry: Handbook of foreign legal procedure. Legal relations in Europe. 4th year. London 1924. 503 p. (Denmark 99-162). [1159
- New York University Institute of Comparative Law. First conference Copenhagen 1960. Publ. by N. Y. U. Law Association in Scandinavia, Copenhagen 1962. 69 p. [1160
- Schram-Nielsen, Erik: Studier over erstatningslæren i islamisk ret (Studies in the law of torts in Mohammedan law). Copenhagen 1945. 170 p. (Diss. Summary in French 159-69.) [1161